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Introduction and Executive Summary

The King County Housing Authority (KCHA) is one of 24 high-performing housing authorities authorized by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to participate in the Moving to Work (MTW) Demonstration Program.  As mandated by Congress, the MTW Demonstration provides KCHA and other designated housing authorities with significant flexibility to develop local approaches to meet their jurisdiction’s housing needs.  This regulatory and financial flexibility is intended to increase the efficiency and effectiveness of Housing Authority programs.

The specific objectives of KCHA’s MTW program participation include:

· Expanding KCHA clients’ housing choices;  

· Helping KCHA clients become increasingly self-sufficient;  

· Ensuring cost effectiveness of KCHA operations;  

· Preserving and increasing affordable housing opportunities while focusing on those in greatest need.

Since entering the demonstration program in 2003, KCHA has developed and implemented many innovative policies and programs in lieu of HUD rules and regulations and select provisions of the 1937 Housing Act.   Reductions in federal funding and an increasing gap between housing costs and income makes MTW program flexibility a critical component in meeting the growing needs of the region’s poorest households.  A detailed analysis of program outcomes is found in previously published MTW Annual Reports, however, KCHA is particularly proud of its progress on the following issues:

· Expanding its role as the safety net for homeless and special needs populations in King County:  In partnership with the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation and local government, KCHA has created a network of service-enriched housing for homeless families. It has redefined tenant selection preferences to move more homeless families into public housing. KCHA’s “Housing First” program, in partnership with local behavioral health care systems and the United Way, provides housing and services to chronically homeless individuals.

· Deconcentrating poverty: Utilizing the HOPE VI program, new project-basing rules for Housing Choice Vouchers developed under MTW and KCHA’s bond and tax credit financed inventory, KCHA is giving low income households greater access to neighborhoods with strong school systems and ample entry-level job opportunities.

· Property-based Management:  Working in advance of new Operating Subsidy rules, KCHA has shifted to site-based management.  Each public housing development now has its own management office, site-based waiting list and utilizes site-based budgeting and accounting protocols. This approach provides more direct customer service, efficient operations and better long-term planning.
· Environmental Sustainability:  Faced with rising utility rates and a strong regional focus on environmental concerns, KCHA has pushed to reduce its footprint on the environment.  Using its MTW authority, it established an Energy Savings Company (ESCO) and implemented over $4 million in water and energy saving initiatives.  Water usage alone is down 33% from FY 2005.   KCHA completed its first solar electric installation at a public housing site in FY 2006 and is awaiting LEED certification for its Springwood Youth Center. 

· Encouraging Homeownership:  Using a Resident Opportunities and Self-Sufficiency (ROSS) grant and MTW flexibility, KCHA is helping Public Housing residents become homeowners.  Exceeding the program target, 31 households purchased homes under the program, with 66% utilizing KCHA down-payment assistance grants of up to $15,000.  An additional 16 families relocating from the Park Lake Homes HOPE VI site purchased homes in the last two years without KCHA down payment assistance.    

Key FY 2008 MTW Initiatives
Under KCHA’s MTW Agreement, the Authority is required to submit to HUD an Annual MTW Plan (adopted by the Board of Commissioners) outlining the framework of KCHA activity anticipated during the next fiscal year.  This is KCHA’s MTW Annual Plan for FY 2008, which begins on July 1, 2007 and ends on June 30, 2008.  Fiscal Year 2008 will mark KCHA’s fourth full year of participation in the MTW Program - which has been renamed “Making Transition Work” by the Authority to better reflect the program’s intent. As described in this plan, in FY 2008 KCHA will continue prior year programs and undertake new initiatives in the following key areas:

· Ending Homelessness:  KCHA will continue its leadership role in the region’s efforts to end homelessness by expanding housing for homeless and special needs households, working to serve “hard-to-house” populations not traditionally served by mainstream housing programs, and coordinating rental subsidies with private and public service funding.  This year, partnering with King County and behavioral health providers, KCHA will house up to 100 chronically homeless and mentally ill individuals who currently cycle between psychiatric hospitals, jails and the street.  New contracts will be negotiated with local service providers and landlords, and new leased housing models will be developed. 

· Increasing Family Self-Sufficiency and Resident Opportunities:  KCHA will help Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher clients achieve economic self-sufficiency through a comprehensive Resident Opportunities Plan (ROP) - a 5-year plan to complement rent simplification and rent reform policies. Assessing residents’ challenges and identifying available internal and external resources will assist families in their transition to unsubsidized housing or homeownership.  In conjunction with the ROP, changes in rent and income policies, asset development, lease terms and work incentives also will be considered.

· Rent Reform and Simplification:  During FY 2008, KCHA will undergo a comprehensive review of possible changes to current Public Housing and Section 8 rent policies and related regulations.  Simplifying rent and income calculation procedures (including verification of data) and encouraging employment and wage progression, while maintaining KCHA’s financial viability, is the goal.

· Increased Investment in Public Housing:  The Authority will use a variety of funding approaches to address capital needs identified in its 10-year plan.  With less than $24 million in capital grant funding (CFP) expected during the next five years - and identified repair needs in excess of $95 million - KCHA will use mixed-finance approaches to leverage private funds necessary to sustain its public housing inventory over the long term.  In FY 2008, eight senior/disabled complexes will be refinanced to leverage over $27 million for the installation of fire/life safety systems and KCHA’s largest public housing complex, Springwood Apartments, will be refinanced to begin renovations estimated at more than $45 million. 

· Administrative Efficiencies:  In the face of declining federal resources, KCHA will continue to improve efficiency and customer-friendly operations by reviewing and modifying administrative practices and program regulations.  During FY 2007, KCHA began to re-engineer paper-flow and business processes for Section 8 HQS inspections. During FY 2008, KCHA will implement changes to inspection protocols that could save  $100,000 annually. “Lean” engineering consultants will also review other highly paper intensive functions, including application and wait list processing in both the Public Housing and Section 8 programs and the public housing inspection process.

· Development and Analysis of Performance Measurements:  During FY 2008, KCHA will establish locally relevant performance standards and benchmarks to evaluate the MTW program’s impact on housing services.  KCHA will also coordinate with national efforts to develop evaluative data for the MTW Demonstration Program.

· Development of Local Funding Models:  Using the flexibility of the MTW Agreement, KCHA will develop its own local funding model for the Section 8 and Public Housing programs. The goal is to maintain program integrity while developing a system of budgeting and accounting that ensures property and program viability.

KCHA is committed to developing MTW program policies through an open and inclusive process and works closely with two (2) Resident Advisory Committees (RAC) comprised of Public Housing residents and Section 8 program participants.  On April 5, 2007, following RAC and community stakeholders meetings, KCHA held a public hearing to receive comment on the proposed MTW Plan for FY 2008.  A list of RAC, community stakeholder, and public comments obtained during this process is included in Section XI of this Plan.

Section I.  Households Served

A.
Number and Characteristics of Households Served

KCHA’s Public Housing Program currently serves approximately 2,725 households in 48 developments and 12 scattered site single-family homes. The Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program serves nearly 9,000 households, including over 2,000 participants utilizing vouchers issued by other housing authorities (“port-ins”).  These programs serve a culturally and linguistically diverse population; more than 20 languages are spoken in some public housing developments.  Appendices A, B and C provide demographic information for KCHA residents and participants as of April 1, 2007. Exclusive of Section 8 port-ins, KCHA anticipates serving 10,341 households through its HUD funded programs by the end of FY 2008.  This is 234 more than at the commencement of the MTW contract.  An additional 103 units of public housing will be under development.

The tables in Appendix A and B show demographic information for Public Housing households by development type (family versus mixed populations), geographic area (KCHA’s Public Housing Program is divided into four (4) geographic areas to maximize service delivery), and development.  Appendix A provides information about residents in the family developments, while Appendix B covers information about the Authority’s mixed-population buildings.

The tables in Appendix C provide demographic information for all Section 8 Housing Choice households, including voucher recipients funded through the MTW block grant, vouchers issued by other jurisdictions (“port-ins”) and voucher holders utilizing Mainstream vouchers funded separately from the block grant.  

 B.
Number and Characteristics of Applicants

Public Housing:  Appendix D shows demographic characteristics for all Public Housing applicants.  Because of KCHA’s large geographic area, the Authority operates both regional waiting lists and site-based waiting lists throughout its Public Housing inventory.  Applicants may elect to place their name on up to two regional or two site-based waiting lists.  The demographic information in Appendix D represents a snapshot of the waiting lists as of April 1, 2007.  Information regarding issues and proposed actions that could affect applicants on the waiting list are outlined in Section II and VII of this Plan.

Housing Choice Vouchers:  KCHA’s waiting list was last opened on April 25, 2006, for a two-week period. From more than 10,800 submitted applications, KCHA held a “lottery” to award 2,500 available positions to qualified applicants.  Over the year, KCHA used the resulting waiting list to extend voucher assistance to applicants as funding became available. Appendix E provides information for applicants remaining on the Housing Choice Vouchers waiting list as of February 28, 2007.  Information regarding issues and proposed actions that could affect Section 8 program applicants is located in Section II and VIII of this Plan.

C.    Changes in Populations to Be Served at End of Period and Explanation

Public Housing:  By the end of FY 2008, the Authority expects to be serving slightly fewer households in Public Housing.  Factors likely to influence the number of households include:

· The status of capital projects (discussed in Section VI) that may require temporary tenant relocation;

· Completion and occupancy of Seola Crossing II, a 105 unit Mixed-Finance development (including 37 public housing units) constructed through the redevelopment of Park Lake Homes into the new Greenbridge community;

· Redevelopment of the Springwood Apartments (projected to begin in late 2007).  While the work will decrease the public housing inventory, approval for 324 Section 8 replacement vouchers to offset that loss has been received.

Changes in the demographics of KCHA’s Public Housing households resulting from other policy and program changes are expected to be minor.

Housing Choice Vouchers:  During FY 2008, the Authority expects between 3% and 6% more Section 8 households to be served in its jurisdiction, partly the result of replacement vouchers brought on-line from the Springwood Apartments redevelopment (noted above). Any remaining increase will result from a decision by the Authority (currently under review) to establish a higher baseline utilization target.  With KCHA issued vouchers nearing 6,900 households as of March 1, 2007, the program is currently operating at 102% of the allocated Annual Contributions Contract (ACC). The ability to lease up to baseline has been enormously facilitated by the creation of a one-month operating reserve under the MTW Program. 

While the program’s demographic make-up is not expected to significantly change next year, a shift in resident profiles may result as the Authority partners with behavioral health care systems to address priorities outlined under the county’s 10-Year Plan to End Homelessness. 

Project Based Assistance:  Since 2003, KCHA has converted nearly 500 housing choice vouchers to Project Based Assistance to:

· Create new supportive housing opportunities; and

· Deconcentrate assisted housing opportunities in the county.  

During FY 2008, KCHA will continue expanding its Project Based program, seeking to project base up to 600 additional vouchers for similar purposes.

Provider Based Supportive Housing Program:  In FY 2007, the Authority established a Provider Based Supportive Housing Program through innovative use of MTW block-grant funds. Rental housing payments, coupled with supportive service funding, is channeled through direct contracts with service providers. They, in turn, provide housing to chronically homeless individuals and families. In FY 2007, this new, local leased- housing program housed 25 individuals under a “housing first” model.  This number is anticipated to increase by approximately 70-100 units during FY 2008.   Because these individuals are not Housing Choice Voucher recipients, the number of households served and other demographic data will be reported separately in the annual MTW Report. 

Section II.  Occupancy and Admissions Policies

A.   Statement of Admissions and Occupancy Policies:

Prior to becoming an MTW program participant, KCHA implemented Public Housing and Section 8 Program policies that were consistent with the 1937 United States Housing Act and subsequent amendments, including the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act of 1998 (QHWRA).  During fiscal years 2004 through 2007, KCHA adopted a number of new policies consistent with the Authority’s MTW Agreement that depart from the 1937 Act.  The following highlights on-going policy and program changes already implemented:

Public Housing Policies:

· Allocation Plan.  During FY 2004, KCHA’s new Allocation Plan created a set-aside preference of 78% of the units in each of the Authority’s mixed population buildings for elderly and near elderly (55 to 62 years old) applicants. This percentage equals the overall percentage of elderly residents in the mixed-population buildings at the time the policy was adopted.

· Admissions Preferences. Under MTW, KCHA adopted a policy to allows applicants with incomes lower than 75 % of 30 % of the Area Median Income (AMI) to self-certify their qualification for a local preference.   During FY 2006, KCHA expanded this measure, qualifying all families with incomes below 30% of the Area Median Income (not currently receiving another source of housing assistance) as having an “urgent need” for housing.  These households now have a local preference for admission to KCHA’s public housing developments without additional documentation requirements. The Authority also offers former federal preferences as local preferences for admissions, including a preference to assist victims of domestic violence.

· Site-Based Waiting Lists.  During FY 2004, the Authority set up site-based waiting lists for its two most geographically remote sites.  During FY 2006, KCHA expanded this model to all public housing developments, letting applicants place their names on the waiting list for up to two specific sites.  Alternatively, families with urgent housing needs and no specific building preference can apply for up to two regional lists and receive the first available unit within the selected region(s).  To assist families as they work toward self-sufficiency, KCHA has set up a separate waiting list for graduates of the Sound Families transitional housing network for homeless families.  Under policies adopted in 2006, eligible public housing applicants are selected to fill vacant units by rotating between each of the three waiting list types:  Site-based, Regional and Sound Families.

· Deconcentration Policies.  KCHA’s deconcentration strategies include targeted self-sufficiency programs, flat rents, HOPE VI redevelopment and the siting of replacement housing in Eastside suburban communities. In combination with exception rent policies in the Housing Choice Voucher Program, these strategies have created mixed-income communities without KCHA having to target higher income applicants.  Therefore, KCHA hasn’t had to skip applicants on the waiting list, implement affirmative marketing strategies and/or create other incentives to achieve the desirable income mix in affected buildings.  

Housing Choice Voucher Policies:

· Admissions Preferences.  During FY 2004, KCHA adopted a policy under MTW that allowed Section 8 applicants with income below 75% of 30% of the Area Median to self-certify their qualification for a local preference. The Authority currently uses former federal preferences as local admission preferences, but may exercise MTW program flexibility during FY 2008 to make additional changes to the preference system.
· Occupancy Standards:  During FY 2005, the Authority’s Board adopted new occupancy standards in response to Section 8 funding reductions.  The occupancy standards determine the size of the voucher (number of bedrooms). The FY 2005 changes generally reduced the number of bedrooms a family qualified for by allocating one bedroom per two adults or two minors.  These changes were to become effective on the second annual review of participating households.  During FY 2006, when Housing Choice Voucher funding levels stabilized, the Authority determined that these standards could be partially loosened, allowing bedroom voucher size to again reflect such family characteristics as sex, age, and disability status.

· New Payment Standards:  In an additional response to the FY 2005 funding cuts, the Authority adopted lower payment standards – the maximum amount of subsidy a tenant may receive for a given voucher size (number of bedrooms).  The new payment standards (set at 104 % of the HUD established Fair Market Rent) started at the time of the annual review for current Section 8 participants.  Near the end of fiscal year 2006, based on housing market trends, growing rent burdens and the partial restoration of federal funds, these payment standards were revised upward.  During FY 2007, KCHA used MTW authority to make two additional changes relating to payment standards: (1) to increase its “base range,” providing the ability to establish payment standards between 90% and 120% of the FMR; and (2) self-approval of Exception Payment Standards to accommodate a disabled household’s needs.

· Inspections:  During FY 2004, KCHA increased program efficiency and reduced costs.  Changes included allowing KCHA staff to complete inspections and Rent Reasonable studies on properties KCHA owned, in lieu of these functions being completed by outside contractors.  In addition, KCHA substituted owner self- certification for correction of minor fail items, reducing the number of reinspections necessary.   During FY 2007, KCHA further streamlined the inspection process by decoupling the inspection date from the annual review, allowing units to be grouped by area rather than by date.  This “clustering” greatly reduces daily travel time, allowing for more efficient use of an inspector’s time. 

Project Based Assistance Policies 

In FY 2003, the Authority adopted a Project Based Assistance Policy.  In FY 2006, it made further changes, following the release of a final rule for the Project Based Voucher program. Housing choice increased by pairing Project Based Assistance with supportive services for homeless and special needs populations. Automatic provision of exit vouchers was eliminated.  The Authority also changed the operating guidelines for Project Based Assistance, conforming government operating subsidies in developments containing more than one type of federal subsidy. Neighboring residents now get equal treatment and administration is more efficient. 

During FY 2007, KCHA changed inspection procedures for project-based transitional housing units, which have significantly higher turnover rates than permanent units. The Authority now trains owners of these developments and certifies them to complete initial inspections. This reduces turnover time for KCHA, owners, and homeless households waiting to be housed. In FY 2008, KCHA will pursue even more operational efficiencies.

B.   Rent Policies

KCHA’s current rent policies are based on the Brooke Amendment to the 1937 Housing Act, which limits a household’s cost of rent and utilities to 30 % of their adjusted income.  Over the years, this policy has helped many households afford housing under KCHA assisted programs.  However, this basic “30 % of income” policy has some unintended consequences, including a disincentive for households to increase their income through employment.  In addition, current federally designed rent formulas are excessively complicated, and are not easily understood by program participants or Authority staff.   

To date, KCHA has made only modest policy changes relating to Rent and Income calculations, including:

· Bi-annual Rent Recertifications for Fixed-income Participants Receiving Housing Voucher and Project Based Assistance.  Under this policy change, full rent reviews can be conducted every two years.  In the intervening year, rents are adjusted based on cost of living increases, if any, for Social Security recipients.  Residents may request a full review at any time if and when their financial circumstances change.  Making this change reduced administrative costs in response to funding cuts.

· Forty Percent of Gross Income Limitation on New Leases under the Housing Choice Voucher program.  In FY 2005, lower payment standards reduced choice in the rental market.  Under MTW, KCHA allowed households to pay up to 40 % of gross income, instead of adjusted income, toward their housing costs in the initial year of their lease.  This change expanded the potential number of rentable units under the Section 8 Program.
· Payment Standards and Exception Payment Standards.  In late FY 2007, KCHA used its MTW authority to expand the payment standards’ basic range to 120% of FMR without prior HUD approval.  In addition, KCHA streamlined its ability to offer higher payment standards to a disabled client as a reasonable accommodation. It did so by allowing the Authority’s 504 Coordinator to approve requests up to 120% of FMR and the Executive Director to approve increases over 120%, without seeking individual approvals from HUD. 
. 

C.   Planned FY 2008 Policy and Program Initiatives

During FY 2008, KCHA will explore, develop, adopt and/or implement a number of policy and program changes.  Some continue existing initiatives approved under previous Annual Plans, while others reflect new initiatives:

Joint Program Initiatives

· Public Housing and Section 8 Rent Policy:  During FY 2008, KCHA will review current Public Housing and Section 8 rent policies and related regulations to simplify rent and income calculation and verification procedures for staff and residents, help households achieve economic self-sufficiency and strengthen KCHA’s financial viability.  KCHA will engage residents (through focus groups, the Resident Advisory Committees and surveys) and other community partners throughout the process.  Participants will have every opportunity to respond to policy options or propose their own.  Comments and responses to policy recommendations will be gathered at public hearings and meetings with residents before final recommendations are submitted to the Board of Commissioners.  Potential changes include alterations in the basic rent formulas and all related policies, definitions of household income and deductions and the calculation of utility allowances that collectively determine how much rent a resident pays. Policy alternatives based on differing household income and household types, and shifts in subsidy levels over time may also be considered.  
· Public Housing and Section 8 Admissions Preferences:  During FY 2008, KCHA may explore new or modified preferences for the Public Housing, Section 8  Housing Choice Voucher and Project Based Assistance programs.  Each program’s policies will be developed in concert with other admissions-related policies.  During FY 2008, KCHA will continue to monitor the impact of the Public Housing Site-based, Regional and Sound Families waiting lists and use MTW authority where needed to address problem areas.  

· Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program:  Possible changes to the Section 8 FSS Program will increase resident incentives and decrease the costs of managing individual escrow accounts and other administrative costs.  KCHA will also seek to coordinate FSS policies with rent and income calculation policies and expand and modify the FSS Program for both Section 8 and Public Housing.

· Communicating with Clients with Limited English Proficiency:  Ensuring that applicants and residents understand program requirements is essential to program compliance and efficiency.  Public housing residents speak more than 20 languages, so KCHA’s diverse population presents significant challenges to effective communication.   During FY 2008, KCHA will consider the use of MTW program flexibility to address the limited English proficiency of client households and the need to create more effective communication strategies for all housing programs.  
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher and Project Based Assistance Program Initiatives  

· Payment Standards:  Under a new rent formula, rent payment standards may need to be revised and redesigned, or may become unnecessary.  The underlying basis and/or method for setting rent payment standards may have to be changed.  Further modification of rent payment standards may also help the Authority address issues of poverty concentration, rent burdens and housing choice.

· Housing Choice Vouchers Waiting List Assignment: As outlined in last year’s plan, and earlier in this plan, KCHA’s lottery system selected 2,500 households for waiting list positions from the more than 10,800 households seeking assistance. Current projections indicate that the list will be fully utilized by June 2007, prompting a reopening of the list in the near future.  KCHA plans a similar application format and lottery system for the new Section 8 waiting list; however, eligible applicants will be limited to households not currently receiving federal housing assistance to ensure that limited resources are targeted to those with the greatest housing need.  
· Utility Allowances:  Considering alternatives to the current utility allowance system may help the Authority simplify local programs, accurately reflect usage and encourage conservation, while keeping housing costs affordable.

· Inspections:  During late FY 2007, KCHA consultants completed stage one of a multi-stage “lean” analysis of the HQS inspection process. This preliminary analysis identified areas where streamlining could save in excess of $100,000 and increase productivity by nearly 25%. In FY 2008, KCHA anticipates instituting the following changes: (1) sampling inspections in buildings with large numbers of Section 8 participants; (2) bi-annual inspections for qualified landlords; and (3) approval of initial HAP payments to landlords who agree to correct minor fail items within 30-days.  Changes to the inspection protocols will ensure safe, decent, and sanitary housing.

· Designation of Housing Choice Vouchers and Project Based Assistance to Support Specific Populations:  In consultation with organizations serving homeless and disabled households, KCHA will seek to coordinate Section 8 resources with providers targeting specific disabilities and at-risk populations, such as youth and those exiting institutions.  Changes to eligibility criteria for certain populations may be explored. Adoption of such policies will comply with all applicable Fair Housing laws and regulations and, at the same time, address housing needs in the local community and the region’s 10-Year Plan to End Homelessness.

Changes to other aspects of the Section 8 program may include those authorized under Section V.A. of KCHA’s MTW Agreement (as amended) and listed in Section VIII of this MTW Plan.  KCHA intends to continue using outside consultants this year to review and re-engineer internal business processes as described in this Plan. 

Public Housing Program Initiatives

· Inspections:  KCHA staff may recommend changes to current inspection protocols for public housing to reduce costs and increase program efficiency, while maintaining the viability of housing units and community safety.

· Utility Allowance: Alternatives to the public housing utility allowance system will be considered, including both KCHA and tenant-paid utilities. This will simplify program administration and encourage conservation, while keeping housing costs affordable.  Strategies include possible sub-metering and billing for excess usage in public housing complexes.

· Public Housing Waiting List Administration: During FY 2006, KCHA restructured its waiting list system, allowing applicants to determine where they would like to reside and providing a local preference for households whose total family income fell below 30% of the Area Median Income. It also established a separate waiting list for families graduating from the Sound Families transitional housing network. While these changes increased housing choice and efficiency, the revised system has been challenging to administer. During FY 2008, KCHA will again analyze current waiting list policies and procedures to identify and implement additional changes. It is hoped that these changes will eliminate wasteful duplication and ensure more efficient service delivery to KCHA clients.  
· Transfers: In consultation with stakeholders, KCHA will propose changes to existing transfer policies. The intent is to create greater administrative efficiencies, increased response to reasonable accommodation requests, more economic self-sufficiency and enable transfer of tenants between the Housing Choice Voucher, Public Housing and subsidized housing that KCHA controls. 

In addition, KCHA may consider changes to other aspects of the Public Housing program as authorized under KCHA’s MTW Agreement (as amended) and/or as listed elsewhere in this MTW Plan.

Section III.  Changes in Housing Stock

The Authority is committed to providing the same or increased subsidized housing opportunities for low-income households than before its MTW Demonstration participation.  The table below details the total number of Section 8 vouchers issued and the number of federally subsidized housing units available through KCHA’s programs as of July 1 of each year of MTW participation, as well as the number projected at the end of FY 2008.  

	Housing Program
	7/1/2003
	7/1/2004
	7/1/2005
	7/1/2006
	7/1/2007
	7/1/2008

	Section 8 Vouchers
	6,374
	6,730
	6,850
	6,850
	6,909
	7,304

	Low Income Public Housing (LIPH) Units
	3,288
	3,288
	2,985
	2,854
	2,763
	2,467

	Section 8 New Construction 
	174
	174
	174
	174
	174
	174

	Preservation Program 
	271
	271
	271
	271
	271
	271

	Provider Based Program
	0
	0
	0
	0
	25
	125

	Total Subsidized Units
	10,107
	10,463
	10,280
	10,149
	10,142
	10,341


The number of Section 8 vouchers projected for July 2008 (7,304) represents 102% of KCHA’s current block grant baseline.  It is possible KCHA will further increase the baseline through over-issuance of vouchers funded with MTW block grant resources.  All told, KCHA’s voucher program is projected to increase between 3% and 6% over the coming year.  These numbers do not reflect the additional 2,000+ “port-ins” that the Authority administers.  

The Public Housing numbers in the table above include units available for resident occupancy as well as 9 units currently accommodating agencies serving KCHA residents. The reduction in the number of Public Housing units from 2004 to 2006 reflects units demolished at the Park Lake Homes HOPE VI site. These units are scheduled to be replaced on a one-for-one basis with either new public housing units or project based replacement housing choice vouchers issued by HUD.  The table also reflects changes in inventory anticipated at the end of FY 2008 resulting from continued re-occupancy of the Greenbridge development and the redevelopment of the Springwood Apartments. The number of Public Housing units projected as of July 1, 2008 does not include 103 units that will be under development at that time.

Using block-grant funds, the Provider Based Supportive Housing Program has increased the subsidies that KCHA administers. In FY 2008, the Authority intends to add an estimated 70 to 100 subsidies through this program. 

Section IV.  Sources and Amounts of Funding

This section details the sources and amounts of funding in the Authority’s MTW budget statement, the funding for federal housing programs outside this budget and a Consolidated Budget Statement.

A.  Sources and Amounts of Funding in the MTW Budget

The following table shows the FY 2007 budget adopted by the Board of Commissioners and FY 2008 projected revenues for housing program operation included in the MTW Demonstration.  The Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher funding is reported under two line items, one for funding received for Section 8 vouchers in the form of a block grant and one for mainstream and portable voucher administration fees.  

	PROJECTED REVENUES
	FY 2007 BUDGET
	FY 2008 BUDGET

	Dwelling Rental Income
	$     7,063,433
	$      6,861,174

	Investment Income
	          819,012
	        1,285,356  

	Other Income
	          734,082
	           500,202

	Section 8 Block Grant
	     59,303,861
	      58,818,000 

	Section 8 Subsidy and Port/Admin Fees
	       3,203,571
	        2,555,888

	Capital Subsidy (CFP all years)
	       7,992,260
	        3,603,700

	Operating Subsidy (PH)
	       6,901,391
	        7,158,659

	Bond Proceeds and Tax Credit Equity
	
	      28,227,920

	Total Revenues
	$ 86,522,696
	$109,010,899


B.  Sources and Amounts of Funding for HUD Programs Outside the MTW Budget

The table below shows the FY 2007 budget and projected 2008 revenues for the Section 8 New Construction and Preservation programs, grants that fund services to KCHA residents and program participants and the HOPE VI redevelopment grant for Park Lake Homes.

	PROJECTED REVENUES
	FY 2007 BUDGET
	FY 2008 BUDGET

	Dwelling Rental Income
	   $     1,341,546 
	$      1,569,268

	Investment Income
	             309,580
	           376,094

	Other Income
	               56,871 
	             57,008

	Section 8 Subsidy and Admin Fees
	          3,180,284 
	        2,958,356

	Capital Subsidy 
	              0 
	             82,500

	Operating Subsidy
	              0 
	            175,000

	Grants  (non CFP)
	        13,567,510
	         7,487,602

	Bond Proceeds and Tax Credit Equity
	
	       39,582,217

	Total Revenues
	$ 18,445,791
	 $  52,288,045


C.  Consolidated Budget Statement for HUD Programs

	PROJECTED REVENUES
	FY 2007 BUDGET
	FY 2008 BUDGET

	Dwelling Rental Income
	  $     8,404,979
	$     8,430,442

	Investment Income
	         1,128,592
	       1,661,450

	Other Income
	            790,953
	          557,210

	Section 8 Block Grant
	       59,303,861 
	     58,818,000     

	Section 8 Subsidy and Admin Fee
	         6,383,855 
	       5,514,244

	Capital Subsidy
	         7,992,260
	       3,686,200

	Operating Subsidy
	         6,901,391 
	       7,333,659

	Grants
	       13,567,510
	       7,487,602

	Bonds and Tax Credit Equity
	
	     67,810,137

	Total Revenues
	   $ 105,191,617 
	$ 161,298,944


Categories of Revenues

· Dwell Rent includes rents received from residents at both existing public housing properties and at properties such as Greenbridge, which contain public housing units but are now owned by private Tax Credit Partnerships.

· Investment income is earned on all KCHA reserves; most reserves are invested in the Washington State Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).  Such investments are allowable under previously granted MTW authority.

· Other Income generally includes other tenant charges, such as work orders and legal fees.  

· Section 8, Capital and Operating Subsidy are amounts received directly from HUD to support the Public Housing and Section 8 programs.

· The majority of grant funding is from the HOPE VI program; however, KCHA receives other HUD and government grants not considered within MTW authority.

· Revenues and Sources of Funding now includes projected proceeds from issuance of debt and tax credit syndications to support various public housing redevelopment initiatives of KCHA which will either be continued or undertaken during FY 2008.  

Section V.  Uses of Funds

This section details FY 2007 budgeted and FY 2008 planned MTW expenditures by line item, an explanation of the changes in expenses between the two years, and intended initiatives included in the 2008 budget.  It also reviews the level and adequacy of reserves.

A. Planned Expenditures and Changes in Expenses in the MTW Budget

	PROJECTED EXPENSES
	FY 2007 BUDGET
	FY 2008 BUDGET*

	Administration and General
	 19,970,768 
	    21,351,059

	Housing Assistance Payments
	   1,931,676
	      1,660,000

	Section 8 Block Grant HAP
	 59,303,861
	    58,818,000

	Utilities
	    2,829,795
	      2,719,219

	Maintenance
	    1,775,626
	      1,330,668

	Capital Projects
	    6,437,605
	    31,514,920

	Total Expenses
	$92,249,331
	$117,393,866


*Note:  Due to HUD requirements regarding the submission date for the MTW Plan, FY 2008 budget numbers are preliminary and may be changed before adoption of the FY 2008 budget by the KCHA Board of Commissioners in June. 

Categories of Costs:
· Administration and General: Salaries and employee benefits, office costs, professional service contracts, property and liability insurance and debt service on KCHA’s Section 8 offices and ESCO financing.

· Housing Assistance Payments: Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) projected to be paid on behalf of Section 8 participants are separated into two categories:  Section 811/Five-Year Mainstream (non-MTW) and all other vouchers (MTW Block Grant)

· Utilities: KCHA-paid utilities, including water, sewer, electricity, natural gas and heating oil.  This category also includes trash collection costs, in conformity with private sector real estate accounting.

· Maintenance: All materials and contracts for the maintenance of KCHA’s public housing developments.

· Capital projects: Capitalized improvements to KCHA’s developments are funded through the CFP; in Fiscal Year 2008, significant activities will be funded through the Capital Fund Financing Program (CFFP) involving bond and tax credit equity proceeds.  Costs include Public Housing’s pro rata share of any hardware or software costs charged to CFP.
Changes from the FY 2007 Budget

Revenues and Sources of Funding

· The amount of Section 8 funding for CY 2007 is not known as of this Plan date.  KCHA estimates its eligibility for Block Grant funding at 92% of formula.  The formula prorate in CY 2006 was almost 95%; AAF’s have remained low for this market despite significant rent increases in the Puget Sound region. This year’s 1.7% AAF will not offset this lower prorate.
· Regular (non-block granted) HAP is also less than FY 2007. In prior years, Mainstream vouchers were overfunded; the above amount more accurately reflects voucher costs.  In addition, KCHA recently had to turn over contract administration for two Mod/Rehab projects to a state-wide contract administrator, removing these cash flows from  KCHA’s financial statements.
· Capital expenditures from CFP are significantly below last year. Budget cuts and reductions in unit inventory decreases the money available to KCHA, and staff has redirected its focus to projects funded through debt and tax credit equity.  However, the Authority will continue to meet all existing deadlines for the expenditure of funds. 
· Grant activity is far below FY 2007 levels as the Greenbridge Project spends down its HOPE VI funding and turns to debt sources.
· This year, to present an accurate picture of activities  involving the Authority’s FY 2008 HUD inventory, bond proceeds and tax credit equity are included within Section IV.  These funds support several projects.  In FY 2008, four of eight Fire/Life Safety projects will start in Public Housing senior buildings and KCHA will begin major redevelopment of the Springwood Apartments.  Bond or other debt will be issued to cover initial expenses.  Finally, the Greenbridge HOPE VI project, included in the non-MTW section, expects to draw on existing and new debt sources as well as the $26 million in equity pay-ins being made available by its equity partners.

Planned Expenditures

· Administrative and General:  

· Included in this category is $335 thousand in relocation costs for the Springwood redevelopment initiative.

· Excluding relocation, this category will increase approximately 3% over FY 2007’s budget.  The Authority has experienced increased personal service costs, particularly in state mandated pension contributions, and  in the second half of CY  2006, cost of living increases escalated in the Seattle/Tacoma area by 4%.  

· Maintenance costs are lower than FY 2007.  Properties in the CFFP and other redevelopment initiatives should have lower maintenance costs in the current year.

· Utility consumption is declining following installation of $4.0 million in energy upgrades funded through the KCHA Energy Savings Corporation (ESCO) initiative in FY 2006.  Utility rates climbed during the year, however, offsetting some cost savings.

· Capital program costs reflect not only the CFP activities but the initial phase of the CFFP project (four developments) and Springwood.

Major FY 2008 Initiatives:
During FY 2008, the Authority will use its budget to explore and/or undertake initiatives in the following areas, either by continuing current activities or by developing new strategies with long-term benefits for the Authority and its clients:

· KCHA will develop its own local funding model for Public Housing and Section 8 using its block grant authority.  Under its current agreement, KCHA can treat these funds and CFP dollars fungibly. In contrast to 990.280 regulations, which require transfers between projects after all project expenses are met, KCHA’s model allows budget-based funding at the start of the fiscal year from a central ledger, not other projects.  KCHA will maintain a budgeting and accounting system that gives each property sufficient funds to support annual operations, including allowable fees.  Actual revenues will include those provided by HUD and allocated by KCHA based on annual property-based budgets. As envisioned, all block grants will be deposited into a single general ledger fund.  This will have multiple benefits. 

· KCHA gets to decide subsidy amounts for each public housing project.  It’s estimated that HUD’s new funding model has up to a 40% error rate for individual sites.  This means some properties get too much, some too little.  Although funds can be transferred between sites, it’s simpler to determine the proper subsidy amount at the start of the fiscal year rather than when shortfalls develop.

· KCHA will establish a restricted public housing operating reserve equivalent to two months’ expenses.  Because KCHA’s fiscal year is different from its funding year (calendar year), subsidy must be estimated as much as a year ahead.  KCHA will estimate subsidies and allow sites to use them in their budgets.  If the estimate exceeds the actual subsidy, the difference will come from the operating reserve.  Properties may be asked to replenish this central reserve in the following year by reducing expenses, or KCHA may choose to make the funding permanent by reducing the unrestricted block grant reserve.

· Using this approach will improve budgeting.  Within a reasonable limit, properties will know what they have to spend each year, allowing them autonomy to spend excess on “wish list” items and carefully watch their budgets.  The private sector doesn’t wait until well into its fiscal year to know how much revenue is available to support its sites.

· Reporting site-based results is an important component of property management and KCHA will continue accounting for each site separately; however, KCHA, as owner of the properties will determine how much revenue will be included as each project’s subsidy.  All subsidies will be properly accounted for under the MTW rubric.

· Allowable fees to the central office cost center (COCC) will be reflected on the property reports, as required.  The MTW ledger won’t pay fees directly to the COCC.  As allowable under the asset management model, however, any subsidy needed to pay legacy costs, such as pension or terminal leave payments and excess energy savings from the Authority’s ESCO, may be transferred from the MTW ledger or the projects to the COCC.  

· Actual Section 8 amounts needed for housing assistance payments and administrative costs will be allotted to the Housing Choice Voucher program, including sufficient funds to pay asset management fees.  Block grant reserves and their interest earnings will not be commingled with Section 8 operations, enhancing budget transparency.  Section 8 program managers will become more responsible for their budgets in the same manner as public housing site managers.

Block grant ledger expenses, other than transfers out to sites and Section 8, will be those that support MTW initiatives, such as the South County Pilot or resident self-sufficiency programs.  Isolating these funds and activities will help KCHA’s Board of Commissioners and its management keep track of available funding for incremental initiatives and enhance KCHA’s ability to compare current to pre-MTW historical results with other housing authorities that do not have this designation. 

In lieu of multiple submissions of Operating Subsidy for individual Asset Management Projects, KCHA may submit a single subsidy request using a weighted average project expense level (WAPEL) with aggregated utility and add-on amounts.

· In May 2007, KCHA will syndicate eight public housing properties to raise tax credit equity for upgrading urgently needed life-safety systems.  The CFFP process in combination with tax credits will raise approximately $34.0 million.  Although the properties will change ownership, they will continue as public housing.  Property managers will learn about necessary tax-credit compliance in addition to public housing regulations.   Four of the properties will undergo significant renovation this fiscal year and will be placed in service by December 2007.

· The Authority will explore placing ACC funding (using “banked subsidy”) in its local developments to increase affordability within existing communities and create greater housing choice for extremely low-income residents.

· The Authority’s core software product, in place since May 2004, remains difficult to use, although reporting has been improved through its use.  During FY 2008, the Authority will address these problems with the following projects:

· Recently purchased “refacing” technology will enhance existing software to reduce keystrokes and make it match existing business processes by adding menus, linking databases, and creating new functionality.  Because field personnel were trained on and are used to existing software, this refacing project will hopefully solve many of the staffs’ complaints about its usability in the short term.

· The existing software’s financial modules aren’t sufficient for KCHA’s evolving role as property developer and asset manager.  Although reports are timely, excessive work required to load data and develop the reports reduces staff’s ability to analyze results.  During FY 2008, KCHA will hire a consultant to define needs and help search for replacement financial software.

· KCHA is initiating a year-long study of its compensation and classification systems to promote internal pay equity and properly align itself with market competitors.  Following completion of this study, KCHA will return to an examination of performance management systems and hopes to find a system to reward its employees for exceeding job standards and meeting Authority goals.  Depending on the level and responsibility of employee groups, several performance systems will likely exist in the future.

· During FY 2008, KCHA may change its fiscal year for all programs to fit a standard calendar year.  In the near future, a significant part of KCHA’s public housing portfolio will be financed under the mixed-finance model that, for tax credit purposes, must adhere to a calendar year-end.  A calendar year basis will be easier to administer, with KCHA properties conforming more closely to the asset management model.

· Ongoing Review of Energy Costs.  During FY 2004, KCHA’s Public Housing Program entered into an Energy Performance Contract (EPC).  During FY 2006, most of the $4.0 million in energy measures were installed, resulting in approximately 33% savings in water usage.  The Authority will hire a Resource Conservation Manager to monitor this project.  Individual tenant billing in KCHA’s developments for excess water consumption will be the EPC’s final phase.  KCHA will roll out water billing at a limited number of properties to test if it can further reduce usage, but project formula income will not be adjusted for any excess utilities revenues.

· During FY 2007, KCHA was awarded 324 replacement-housing vouchers for redevelopment activity at the Springwood Apartments, its largest public housing site.  KCHA plans to project base these vouchers on-site after the property’s disposition.

· Replacement Housing Funds from Springwood’s demolition/disposition, as well as from Greenbridge (HOPE VI), will be included in fungible MTW funds and be available to KCHA for any MTW purpose.  KCHA will seek to draw Replacement Housing Funds fungibly with other CFP funds and may collect a 10% Administrative Fee in lieu of the allowable 3 - 6% of project costs.  However, should the RHF be used for replacement of public housing, KCHA will limit such charges to 6% of the project costs without further HUD approval.  KCHA will work with HUD to determine a methodology for drawing these available funds within regulatory time constraints.

· Many of the Authority’s public housing units, while in usable shape, are dated.  In FY 2007, the Authority upgraded approximately 50 units using its own force account.  In FY 2008, this highly successful initiative will be expanded with a budget of $1.0 million in CFP or other block grant funds. 

· KCHA will request a HUD waiver to allow a mixed-finance closing to occur without review of evidentiary material by a HUD attorney, based on a model developed by HUD and the Atlanta Housing Authority.

· Using Section 8 Block Grant flexibility will help expand the regional network of supportive housing units. In FY 2007, KCHA designated a portion of its unrestricted MTW reserves to support up to 25 units of rental subsidy for chronically homeless persons.  Although beneficiaries of Section 8 funding, these persons are not considered voucher holders and will not be included in KCHA’s PIC reporting.  In FY 2008, KCHA intends to expand this program by as many as 100 individuals, and use MTW flexibility to replace staff HQS inspections with those by the individual provider.

· Use of Section 8 Block Grant funds to develop a self-sufficiency program for Public Housing residents and expand current Housing Choice Voucher initiatives may be accounted for in KCHA’s proposed MTW ledger rather than at the project level. This is both for administrative simplicity and because benefits of such a program may not be immediately attributable to individual projects.

· KCHA may use its block grant authority to exceed the baseline number of units utilized in its Housing Choice Voucher program.  The current baseline is 78,000 unit months per year.  KCHA will submit actual usage via the VMS reporting system.  By this plan, KCHA is notifying HUD of its intent, utilizing its MTW authority, to exceed its authorized cap in its VMS submission without audit exception.

· KCHA will develop measures to evaluate and improve the MTW Program’s impact on agency operations and outcomes.  On a program level, the Authority will continue monthly Public Housing and Section 8 performance review meetings to evaluate operations, and improve the quality of services to its customers.  At the Public Housing project level, site reporting will be expanded so regional and property managers can quickly react to vacancy, crime or financial challenges in their apartment communities.

· The Authority will use its MTW Authority to continue already-identified initiatives from prior plan years.

· The Authority is working with an insurance entity to position KCHA’s portfolio in the insurance market.  Although regulations require competitive bidding in insurance products, guidelines suggest the Authority can directly manage this process.  However, the complexities of KCHA’s business lines and potential for exposure make self-management ill-advised and highlight the need for an outside broker.  In FY 2007, KCHA used Alliant to approach these markets.  Alliant is compensated on an hourly basis, but must represent itself (with KCHA’s approval) as broker of record, something not allowable under current guidelines.  Alliant’s services were competitively procured.

· KCHA has accumulated significant reserves in its HUD funded programs.  Using its MTW flexibility, the KCHA Board of Commissioners is developing an investment approach to using these reserves to further the Authority’s mission.

· KCHA will also review and possibly implement other investment strategies to maximize yield while keeping risk and liquidity within acceptable parameters.

· KCHA will self-certify that property management services are in the best interests of the property while considering such factors as costs and responsiveness.

· KCHA will charge a reasonable fee for property management services based on published HUD guidelines, but will update fee levels no less than semi-annually. It will do so by applying the CPI for Urban Wage Earners in the Seattle-Tacoma area published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics.  The current fee is based on 2005 data.

· As a Block Grant Authority, KCHA does not receive a separate allocation of administrative fees.  KCHA will set its fee at a reasonable level within the block grant and may state this fee on a per unit basis at the beginning of its fiscal year for administrative simplicity and adjust it as appropriate thereafter.  KCHA will take 20% of its self-determined fees for the HCV program or $12 per unit based on full utilization of its authorized units, whichever is higher.

· KCHA is not currently required to file a Financial Data Schedule.  It will, nonetheless, use excess cash as calculated in the manner prescribed by HUD for approved uses.

· KCHA will consolidate all its mixed-financing projects into a single Asset Management Project (AMP).

· KCHA will draw 100% of its allowable CFP/RHF Administrative Fee upon receipt of the related grant.  That fee may be allocated to one or more AMPs at KCHA’s discretion; no prorate or CFP project matching will be required.

· KCHA will retain all cost savings not related to debt service of its ESCO within the Central Office Cost Center.

· As part of the CFFP financing project, the eight Public Housing buildings being sold to a tax credit partnership will carry debt related to energy conservation measures.  That debt must be repaid to a third party lender upon syndication to preserve the lender’s tax-exempt return on its loan and meet funding requirements.  KCHA will internally lend an equivalent amount to these mixed finance developments; this internal debt will satisfy all HUD requirements for retention of savings through the operating fund calculation throughout the remaining life of the ESCO.

B.  Level and Adequacy of Reserves:  Public Housing and Section 8 Programs

	PROJECTED RESERVES
	FYE 2008

	Public Housing: Project Reserves
	$  3,174,000

	Public Housing: Operating Reserve
	    3,000,000

	Section 8 Program Reserve
	 4,100,000

	Section 8 Admin Fee and HAP           Reserve
	5,143,042

	MTW Designated Reserve
	    850,000

	Unrestricted MTW Reserve
	10,733,958

	Total Reserves
	$27,001,000 


As of July 2007, KCHA will be required to designate a portion of its reserves on a project basis.  In addition, approximately 6 months in fees will be given to the COCC.  As discussed above, KCHA will reflect the balance of any reserves in its MTW ledger, with a portion designated as an operating reserve.  

As of this plan’s date, KCHA has not been informed by HUD as to the level of funding for CY 2007 and can only estimate the January through June 2008 subsidy portion.   Its best estimate is $7.3 million for KCHA’s entire fiscal year, as shown above in Section IV.C.  Reserves are adequate to cover any shortfalls between operating needs and revenues.  

The Section 8 Program Reserves total one month’s housing assistance payment as a safety net for HUD funding delays and shortfalls.  The administrative fee and HAP reserve is the accumulated excess over costs for the Section 8 program built up over several years and Mainstream excess HAP received. The MTW Designated Reserve covers the South County Pilot’s funding obligation for the next five years. The remaining balance in reserves represents excess block grant funding for both Section 8 and Public Housing and can be spent for various MTW purposes outlined in this or future plans.

Section VI.  Capital Planning 

A.  Major Capital Needs, Projects, Estimated Costs, and Proposed Timetables

The King County Housing Authority’s 10-year work plan covers FY 2003 through FY 2012.  Over $95.2 million in capital work needs to be performed between FY 2008 and FY 2012 through various funding sources, including the Capital Fund Finance Program (CFFP), and the Capital Fund Program (CFP).  The plan addresses the highest priorities among those identified for public housing developments.  

KCHA’s capital grant funding from HUD has declined steadily over the past five years, the result of on-going budget cuts by Congress and the reduction in Public Housing units due to the redevelopment of Park Lake Homes under the HOPE VI program.  KCHA has fully expended the Capital Fund Program allocation from CFP year 2004 and 94% of the CFP allocation for 2005.  All remaining CFP 2005 and CFP 2006 funds are fully committed to projects scheduled within the KCHA 10-year work plan.

KCHA projects FY 2008 through FY 2012 Capital Fund availability at $23 million.  The total planned work for the five-year period of $95.2 million will use Capital Fund resources, leveraged funds and other forms of mixed financing.  KCHA will spend an additional $10.2 million to cover debt service on CFP and RHF Bonds between FY 2008 and FY 2012.  For FY 2008, $30.2 million in construction contracts will be undertaken.  These work items are indicated below in the five-year projection of capital improvement expenditures.  Major projects include the following:

· Park Lake Homes Redevelopment.  The Park Lake Homes I redevelopment under the HOPE VI Program is underway.  The project is now called Greenbridge.  This once distressed public housing project will become a mixed-income neighborhood of new low-income and workforce rental housing combined with affordable and market rate for-sale homes. This planned community is organized around the 8th Ave SW “Main Street,” which includes facilities for services, recreation, neighborhood retail and education, including a new elementary school and Head Start facilities. Greenbridge will be pedestrian friendly and incorporate an array of parks, walking trails, gardens and natural features into the neighborhood.  The original 569 public housing units will be replaced with 300 subsidized on site units for very low-income households and 269 offsite units to insure one for one “hard unit” replacement.  The first phase of new housing, including 82 units and park space, was occupied in August 2006.  A second phase, including 37 units of public housing will come on-line in FY 2008.  The project involves 900 - 1,000 units of housing and will be completed in 2012.

· Park Lake II Redevelopment.  Upgrading the infrastructure and housing on this site to acceptable standards is so expensive that KCHA needs to demolish the existing housing and initiate a HOPE VI-like redevelopment of this 31 acre parcel within 5 years.  Although approximately $100,000 is budgeted in FY 2007 to mitigate chronic moisture and mold problems in some Park Lake II units, other non-emergency capital work will be deferred pending redevelopment.  In FY 2008, master planning will continue for this site’s redevelopment.

· Springwood Apartments Redevelopment.  This aging and physically distressed 334 unit property cannot be sustained as public housing and will need financial restructuring to leverage the approximately $45 million needed to rehabilitate most of the buildings.  In FY 2007, KCHA received HUD approval to dispose of the property to a Tax Credit limited partnership or limited liability company controlled by KCHA. The property will be decommissioned as public housing.  Sale proceeds will leverage other federal, state, local and private financing to undertake necessary renovations and insure that approximately 250-270 low-income units are maintained on the site through the use of project based Housing Choice Voucher subsidies.  Any low-income units removed will be replaced on a one-for-one basis. Some $10-$12 million is expected to be financed with bonds backed by Replacement Housing Factor (RHF) funds and another $25 million with Tax Credit Equity.  Construction is planned to commence in fiscal year 2008.

· Unit Upgrade Demonstration Program.  Building on a demonstration begun in FY 2007, KCHA will perform major unit interior renovations using internal KCHA staff. Approximately $1 million was budgeted for 50+ renovations in selected public housing units. In the past, major unit upgrades were undertaken on a building by building basis, requiring KCHA to employ architects, vacate entire buildings, and relocate residents for up to 6 months so general contactors could complete the work.  Having a dedicated upgrade crew working only in “turnover” units realizes substantial savings on soft costs, general contractor’s overhead and profit, and relocation.  Although the 10-Year Capital Plan still projects major property by property interior renovation, in FY 2008, KCHA will continue with the unit turnover approach.

· Improved On-Site Community Facilities.  KCHA continues to upgrade community facilities at its major family sites to improve on-site services.  Last year, KCHA finished the Springwood Recreation Center, providing an indoor gymnasium, computer lab, arts center, and classrooms for Springwood Apartment residents. In FY 2007, the Jim Wiley Community Center at Greenbridge was also completed. This $5.5 million renovation serves Greenbridge and surrounding communities.  KCHA used New Markets Tax Credit financing for this project, necessitating the sale of the Wiley Center to the Greenbridge Foundation.  The property will revert to KCHA ownership in 7 years.  

KCHA recently applied for a $30 million allocation of new market tax credits to finance the Early Learning and Adult Learning Centers planned for Greenbridge.  In Fiscal Year 2008, the Adult Learning Center, which will offer programs sponsored by the YWCA, King County Library System and Washington State University, will break ground. 

B.  Fire and Life Safety Upgrades in Mixed Population Buildings through the Capital Fund Financing Program (CFFP)

KCHA is currently leveraging $27 million for public housing capital improvements through a mixed financing approach combining private activity bond proceeds and 4% Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) equity.  KCHA will sell up to $10 million in bonds to be paid in annual installments over 20 years from the Capital Fund Program (See Debt Service line item in the table entitled “Five-Year Capital Plan and Projected Expenditures by KCHA Fiscal Year” in Section C. Capital Plan Expenditures below.)  These properties will be sold to a Tax Credit limited partnership or Limited Liability Company controlled by KCHA and will continue to operate as public housing under HUD regulatory and operating agreements.  

Funding will provide for fire and life/safety improvements at eight multistory, elevator buildings that house elderly and/or disabled residents.  The buildings, with a total of 439 units, include Brittany Park (43 units), Casa Madrona (70 units), Gustaves Manor (35 units), Mardi Gras (61 units), Munro Manor (60 units), Paramount House (70 units), Plaza Seventeen (70 units), and Riverton Terrace (30 units).  KCHA will complete the fire/life-safety retrofit of its 21 mixed-populations mid-rises with the next two years. 

Scope and Costs of Renovations

A brief description of the scope of work and a cost estimate for each building follows:

Brittany Park








$3,081,520

Replace fire alarm system and install new fire sprinkler system.  Upgrade emergency stairways with new flooring and lighting.  New lighting and finishes for hallways, lobby, elevator, and laundry room.  Replace doors and hardware at unit entries, common areas, and main entry.  Improve unit and common area ventilation, replace carpet in unit entries, and provide units with new water lines, faucets and baseboard heaters.  Replace roof, clean and reseal siding, and resolve site drainage issue.

Casa Madrona







$5,645,690

Replace fire alarm system and install new fire sprinkler system.  Upgrade emergency stairways with new railings, flooring, and lighting.  New lighting and finishes for hallways, lobby, elevator, and laundry room.  Replace doors and hardware at unit entries, common areas, and main entry.  Improve unit ventilation.  Replace carpet in unit entries with vinyl, and provide units with new water lines and faucets.  Reconfigure lobby.  Reconfigure and reconstruct entry driveway and parking lot.  Repair hot water system.  Remove underground fuel storage tank and replace damaged sidewalks.  Replace roof. Repair and repaint building exterior and repair decks.

Gustaves Manor 







  $930,790
Extend fire sprinkler system from common areas into apartments and replace fire alarm system.  Replace doors and hardware at unit entries and common areas.  Repaint hallways and replace hallway lighting.  Construct office.

Mardi Gras 








$3,278,090
Replace fire alarm system and install new fire sprinkler system.  Upgrade emergency stairways with new flooring and lighting.  Install new lighting and finishes for hallways, lobby, elevator, and laundry room.  Reconfigure lobby and offices.  Replace doors and hardware at unit entries, common areas, and main entry.  Replace carpet in unit entries with vinyl, and provide units with new water lines and faucets.  Replace domestic water supply and water heater.  Remove underground storage tank.  Reconstruct parking lot and install lighting and drainage.

Munro Manor 







$3,549,180

Replace fire alarm system and install new fire sprinkler system.  Provide new water service.  Upgrade emergency stairways with new handrails, flooring and lighting.  Install new lighting and finishes for hallways, lobby, elevator, and laundry room.  Reconfigure lobby and offices.  Replace doors and hardware at unit entries, common areas, and main entry.  Improve common area ventilation.  Replace carpet in unit entries with vinyl and replace faucets.  Replace decks.

Paramount House







$3,251,850

Replace fire alarm system and install new fire sprinkler system.  Upgrade emergency stairways with new railings, flooring, and lighting.  Install new lighting and finishes for hallways, lobby, elevator, and laundry room.  Reconfigure lobby and offices.  Replace doors and hardware at unit entries, common areas, and main entry.  Replace carpet in unit entries with vinyl and provide units with new faucets.  Replace building entry ramp and frontage sidewalk.  Modify site drainage to eliminate water intrusion and upgrade parking lot.

Plaza Seventeen 







$3,796,590
Replace fire alarm system and install new fire sprinkler system.  Repair boiler and hot water heating system.  Install new lighting and finishes for hallways, lobby, elevator, and laundry room.  Reconfigure lobby and offices.  Replace doors and hardware at unit entries, common areas, and main entry.  Replace carpet in unit entries with vinyl, and provide units with new water lines and faucets.  Remove underground storage tank.

Riverton Terrace 







$3,726,283

Replace fire alarm system and install new fire sprinkler system.  Upgrade emergency stairways with new handrails and flooring.  Install new lighting and finishes for hallways, lobby, elevator, and laundry room.  Improve hallway ventilation.  Reconfigure lobby and offices, and upgrade community room with new ceiling, lighting, and flooring.  Replace doors and hardware at unit entries, common areas, and main entry.  Replace carpet in unit entries with vinyl, and provide units with new water lines and faucets.  Replace siding, windows, roof, and drainage.  Replace damaged sidewalks and community room patio.

Construction Schedule - First and Life Safety Upgrades

	Property
	FY 07


	FY 08
	FY 09

	Brittany Park
	
	X
	

	Paramount House
	
	X
	

	Riverton Terrace
	
	X
	

	Munro Manor
	
	
	X

	Gustaves Manor
	
	X
	

	Casa Madrona
	
	
	X

	Mardi Gras
	
	
	X

	Plaza 17
	
	
	X

	
	
	
	


C.  Capital Plan Expenditures 

Planned Construction Expenditures by KCHA Fiscal Year:  2008 – 2012

	Property
	Scope of Work
	Total
	FY 08
	FY 09
	FY 10
	FY 11
	FY 12

	Pickering Court
	Infrastructure –continuation of FY07 project 
	$350,000
	$350,000
	
	
	
	

	Northridge II
	Roofing –continuation of FY07 project
	$350,000
	$350,000
	
	
	
	

	Riverton Terrace (family)
	Site Drainage
	$50,000
	$50,000
	
	
	
	

	Lakehouse
	Common Area Ventilation/

Decks
	$450,000
	
	$450,000
	
	
	

	Eastside Terrace
	Storm Drainage
	$500,000
	
	$500,000
	
	
	

	Kirkwood Terrace
	Roofing/Siding
	$650,000
	
	$650,000
	
	
	

	Juanita Trace
	Roofing/Siding,

Kitchens, Bathrooms
	$2,190,000
	
	$790,000
	$1,400,000
	
	

	Juanita Court
	Exterior Envelope 

Kitchens, Bathrooms
	$1,200,000
	
	
	$1,200,000
	
	

	Green River
	Exterior Envelope/Interior Remodel/Site Upgrades
	$3,600,000
	
	
	$1,800,000
	$1,800,000
	

	Southridge
	Building Envelope Upgrades
	$750,000
	
	
	
	$750,000
	

	Cedarwood
	Exterior Envelope 

Kitchens, Bathrooms
	$1,100,000
	
	
	
	$1,100,000
	

	Valli Kee
	Exterior Envelope Upgrades
	$1,500,000
	
	
	
	$1,500,000
	

	Evergreen Court
	Kitchens, Bathrooms
	$1,150,000
	
	
	
	
	$1,150,000

	Kings Court
	Exterior Envelope 

Kitchens, Bathrooms
	$1,100,000
	
	
	
	
	$1,100,000

	Bellevue 8
	Exterior Envelope 

Kitchens, Bathrooms
	$400,000
	
	
	
	
	$400,000

	Casa Juanita
	Fire Sprinkler Supply valve/Roofing
	$275,000
	$50,000
	
	
	
	$325,000

	Federal Way Houses
	Siding
	$75,000
	
	
	
	
	$75,000

	Boulevard Manor
	Fire Sprinkler Supply Valve
	$50,000
	$50,000
	
	
	
	$50,000

	Various
	Unit Turn Remodels
	$5,000,000
	$1,000,000
	$1,000,000
	$1,000,000
	$1,000,000
	$1,000,000

	Total Construction Expenditures
	$20,790,000
	$1,800,000
	$3,390,000
	$5,400,000
	$6,150,000
	$4,050,000

	A & E Expenditures
	$2,250,000
	$200,000
	$250,000
	$700,000
	$700,000
	$400,000

	Total Expenditures
	$23,040,000
	$2,000,000
	$3,640,000
	$6,100,000
	$6,850,000
	$4,450,000


Planned Expenditures from Bond Proceeds & Tax Credit Equity-FY 2008-2012

(Capital Fund Financing Program and Replacement Housing Factor Funds)

	Expenditures*
	Total
	FY 08
	FY 09
	FY 10
	FY 11
	FY 12

	Source
	Use
	
	
	
	
	
	

	CFFP Bonds & Tax Credit Equity
	Fire/Life Safety Improvements in 8 Buildings
	$27,259,993
	$18,227,920
	$9,032,073


	
	
	

	Capital Fund Allocation
	Debt Service CFFP Bonds
	$4,100,000 
	$1,000,000
	$950,000
	$800,000
	$700,000
	$650,000

	RHF Bonds & Tax Credit Equity
	Springwood Redevelopment
	$45,000,000
	$10,000,000
	$25,000,000
	$10,000,000
	
	

	RHF Funds
	Debt Service on RHF Bonds
	$6,057,000
	$287,000
	$1,510,000
	$1,450,000
	$1,420,000
	$1,390,000

	Total (Bond & Tax Credit Equity)
	$72,259,993
	$28,227,920
	$34,032,073
	$10,000,000
	$0
	$0

	Total (Debt Service)
	$10,157,000
	$1,287,000
	$2,460,000
	$2,250,000
	$2,120,000
	$2,040,000

	Total Expenditures
	$82,416,993
	$29,514,920
	$36,492,073
	$12,250,000
	$2,120,000
	$2,040,000


*Includes A & E.

Section VII: Owned and Managed Units

This section provides the information on planning, operations and performance indicators for public housing units under KCHA management required under KCHA’s MTW Agreement. 

A. Vacancy Rates

The table below provides vacancy rates for public housing developments as of April 1, 2007.  The Authority provides annual snapshots of performance indicators and other data for April 1 of each year of the Demonstration because the timing of MTW Annual Plan submission does not allow for analysis of end-of-fiscal-year data. 
	DEVELOPMENT
	HOUSEHOLDS
	UNITS
	VACANCY RATE

	AVONDALE MANOR
	20
	20
	0%

	BALLINGER HOMES
	110
	110
	0%

	BELLEVUE SINGLE-FAMILY HOMES
	8
	8
	0%

	BOULEVARD MANOR
	69
	70
	1.4%

	BRIARWOOD
	70
	70
	0%

	BRITTANY PARK
	43
	43
	0%

	BURNDALE HOMES
	50
	50
	0%

	CAMPUS COURT
	13
	13
	0%

	CASA JUANITA
	79
	80
	1.3%

	CASA MADRONA
	69
	70
	1.4%

	CASCADE APTS
	108
	108
	0%

	CEDARWOOD
	25
	25
	0%

	COLLEGE PLACE
	50
	51
	2.0%

	EASTRIDGE HOUSE
	40
	40
	0%

	EASTSIDE TERRACE
	50
	50
	0%

	EVERGREEN COURT
	30
	30
	0%

	FIRWOOD CIRCLE
	50
	50
	0%

	FOREST GLEN
	40
	40
	0%

	FOREST GROVE
	25
	25
	0%

	GLENVIEW HEIGHTS
	10
	10
	0%

	GREEN RIVER HOMES
	60
	60
	0%

	GREENLEAF
	27
	27
	0%

	GUSTAVES MANOR
	35
	35
	0%

	JUANITA COURT
	30
	30
	0%

	JUANITA TRACE
	30
	30
	0%

	JUANITA TRACE II
	9
	9
	0%

	KINGS COURT*
	25
	30
	16.7%

	KIRKWOOD TERRACE
	28
	28
	0%

	MARDI GRAS
	61
	61
	0%

	MUNRO MANOR
	60
	60
	0%


* King’s Court – 5 units remain vacant as a result of fire – anticipated return to occupancy late FY 2007.

	DEVELOPMENT
	HOUSEHOLDS
	UNITS
	VACANCY RATE

	NORTHRIDGE HOUSE I
	70
	70
	0%

	NORTHRIDGE HOUSE II
	70
	70
	0%

	PARAMOUNT HOUSE
	68
	70
	2.8%

	PARK LAKE HOMES II**
	164
	165
	0.6%

	PICKERING COURT
	30
	30
	0%

	PLAZA 17
	70
	70
	0%

	RIVERTON TERRACE
	60
	60
	0%

	SHOREHAM
	18
	18
	0%

	SOUTHRIDGE HOUSE
	80
	80
	0%

	SPRINGWOOD APTS **
	314
	333
	5.7%

	THE LAKE HOUSE
	70
	70
	0%

	VALLI KEE HOMES
	114
	114
	0%

	VICTORIAN WOODS / FEDERAL WAY HOMES
	18
	18
	0%

	VISTA HEIGHTS
	30
	30
	0%

	WAYLAND ARMS
	66
	67
	1.5%

	WELLSWOOD
	29
	30
	0%

	YARDLEY ARMS
	67
	67
	0%

	YOUNGS LAKE
	28
	28
	0%

	SEOLA CROSSING
	40
	40
	0%

	DEVELOPMENTS NOT UNDER REDEVELOPMENT
	2,730
	2,763
	1.2%


**Pending Redevelopment

KCHA’s overall vacancy rate as of April 1, 2007, was 1.2% percent.  In FY 2008, the Authority expects a similarly low overall vacancy rate for its public housing properties.

B. Rent Collections

The Authority projects meeting Rent Collection targets established for FY 2008 with collection levels anticipated above 98% of total public housing rents assessed. 

C. Work Orders

During FY 2008, KCHA will respond within 24 hours to 100 percent of the requests for emergency maintenance work orders.  The Authority will also respond within 30 days to at least 97% of the requests for regular maintenance work orders, consistent with response targets identified upon entering the MTW demonstration.

D. HQS Inspections

HUD’s Housing Quality Standards regulations currently require each public housing unit and system to be inspected annually. During FY 2007, KCHA is on track to complete 100 percent of HQS inspections. In FY 2008, KCHA will possibly modify inspection procedures, but pending such modifications, will continue inspecting public housing units and systems in accordance with the Housing Quality Standards.  

E. Security

KCHA employs strict suitability standards for screening applicants, including the use of criminal background checks by local, state, and federal law enforcement agencies. This strategy ensures that its communities are safe places for households to live.  Proactive and consistent lease enforcement by housing management staff is the Authority’s next line of defense in its anti-crime strategy.  Although the defunding of the Drug Elimination Grant (DEG) has severely curtailed certain drug and crime prevention programs, KCHA continues the operation of the core strategies previously funded under that grant.  These core strategies include:

· Partnerships with police departments throughout the Authority’s jurisdiction.  KCHA maintains strong relationships with police departments to ensure public housing residents receive needed services for safety and security.  These relationships take the form of contracts with police departments funded by KCHA and Memoranda of Understanding between the Authority and other local law enforcement agencies.  Police department cooperation with management is especially crucial for KCHA to successfully pursue evictions or other solutions in cases of serious criminal and drug activity.

· Community Policing.  KCHA is continuing its community policing programs in select family communities through the use of public housing reserves.  These programs foster a cooperative relationship between residents and community police officers.  Several sites have community police substations on site to deter criminal activity and assist residents in their efforts to enhance safety through the establishment of block watches and other efforts.  In FY 2006, KCHA built a new substation as part of the Greenbridge HOPE VI initiative. 

· After-School and Summer Programs. The Authority has developed partnerships with numerous service providers and community-based organizations to offer on- and off-site programs and activities for children.  These include youth sports, homework and youth tutoring programs and summer day camps.  A list of these services is included in Appendix F.
· Public Housing Safety Initiative.  During FY 2006, the Authority was awarded a two-year grant in the amount of $600,000 from the Department of Justice to fund public safety prevention and intervention services in three public housing developments.  The grant, scheduled to run through March 2008, provides for additional community policing efforts and increased after-school and late-night programs for at-risk youth.

· Redistribute portfolio offices. This creates greater management presence at the sites and increases security where determined necessary. 

KCHA’s transition to property-based management augments these measures. The increased presence of on-site management and maintenance staff leads to closer management-tenant relationships, which, in turn, increase security and safety within each development.

F. MTW Demonstration Initiatives

· Property-Based Management 

During FY 2005, KCHA transitioned one of its five geographic areas (South Area) from a centralized, program-based model to a site-based asset management model.  Combining features of private sector property management with aspects of a program-based management model helped the Authority equal private sector efficiencies.  Under KCHA’s property-based management system, decision-making authority is decentralized to staff most closely connected to the developments.  The following management responsibilities were transferred from area-based to property-based staff in the demonstration area:

· Monitoring of budgets and financial reports

· Staffing decisions

· Purchasing

· Ongoing maintenance, including work orders 

· Unit turnover

In FY 2006, the demonstration expanded to the entire public housing inventory.  In addition to decentralizing the responsibilities listed above, the following property management tasks were transferred to property-based staff:

· Property-Based Budgeting.  Previously central office staff developed the property-based budgets.  In FY 2007, responsibility for developing budgets for individual properties, based on actual property specific data from the previous year, was transferred to the property managers.

· Capital Planning.  Property-based staff are more involved in capital priority assessments. 

As staff roles have shifted, additional training is needed at all levels.  Property and regional managers need more experience and training; maintenance personnel have to perform increased basic electrical, plumbing, carpentry and painting.  In FY 2007, KCHA negotiated a new labor agreement creating a site-based maintenance mechanic (SBMM) who performs many of these tasks but not at the journey level.  The same labor agreement increases the landscape/cleaners in the bargaining unit and assumes eventual phase-out of the laborer classification.  Existing laborers and landscaper/cleaners need training to advance to SBMM.  Both SBMM and Landscaper/Cleaners are common in the private sector and meet specific individual property needs as opposed to the regional approach.   Finally, property managers need to learn more about maintenance to become effective managers.  KCHA is designing a training plan as an inter-department initiative between Human Resources and Housing Management and should have it in place in FY 2008.

KCHA continues to develop performance measures and assessment tools as  it shifts from a program-based to a property-based system. A key aspect of the shift has been the development of project-based budgets and accounting reports.  During FY 2008, KCHA will continue to implement property-based financial management systems, develop appropriate monitoring tools and provide increased training to staff regarding private property management practices, including financial statements and analysis.  

· Rent Policy

During FY 2008, as outlined earlier in the MTW Plan, KCHA will review its rent calculation and income policies.  Central goals of rent reform include simplification of current systems, increased resident self-sufficiency and increased graduation from public housing.  A number of areas will be targeted, including, but not limited to:

· Simplification or replacement of excessively burdensome earned income disregards.  The Authority is committed to expanding employment incentives and rewarding work. 

· Income verification policies and procedures.

· Frequency of annual reviews.

· Utility allowance determination.

· Simplification of medical deductions and other income adjustments related to rent determination.

· Possible structural alterations to rent and income policies.

· Admissions Policies

In FY 2006, as it shifted to property-based management, KCHA started a Centralized Applications system to ensure consistent admissions policies and streamline operations. During FY 2008, KCHA staff will continue to review and modify processes, as necessary, to keep complex admissions-related policies and procedures from bogging down staff and applicants. Where appropriate, policies will be designed to remove eligibility barriers for hard-to-house populations and increase applicant choice and access to programs while not impacting protected classes.   

· Other Initiatives

During FY 2008, in addition to moving forward with previous initiatives, KCHA will focus on initiatives designed to increase administrative efficiencies, resident self-sufficiency and customer service. The Authority will explore all options available under the MTW Agreement signed with HUD including, but not limited to, the following:

· Exploring changes in the eligibility policy regarding single, non-disabled, non-elderly persons.

· Exploring options to revise and streamline public housing grievance procedures.

· Adopting a locally designed lease consistent with MTW initiatives, including provisions regarding utility consumption sub-metering and smoke free environments.  The Nia Apartments, scheduled for completion in CY 2008 at the Greenbridge site, will be KCHA’s first smoke-free housing. 

· Exploring and implementing revisions to inspection protocols.

· Exploring options for revisions to current income calculation and verification practices and procedures.

· Exploring and implementing changes in the definition of elderly and near elderly as they relate to Allocation Plan administration.

· Exploring and implementing necessary changes in admissions and occupancy policies associated with Public Housing subsidies in a mixed subsidy property under a combined program approach to managing the housing stock.

Section VIII.  Management Information for Leased Housing

This section discusses leased housing performance measures and objectives required under KCHA’s MTW Agreement with HUD and focuses on the Authority’s efforts to improve performance under the MTW Demonstration.  MTW initiatives related to policy changes are discussed in Section F.

A.   
Utilization Rate

KCHA currently operates at a 102% utilization rate and anticipates remaining at this level or higher throughout the year.  The Housing Authority has created a one-month reserve to offset HUD financing instability and enable higher utilization rates.

B.
Shopping Success (Lease-up) Rate: 

To evaluate established Payment Standards, KCHA measures the ability of Voucher holders to successfully “shop” for and locate affordable rental units within the region.  KCHA’s average shopping success rate for the eight months ending February 2007 was 87.7%.  Shopping success rate is carefully monitored as an index of the adequacy of payment standards in a rising rental market. 

C.
Planned Annual Inspections

Current KCHA policies ensure that HQS inspections are completed annually in 100% of the units subsidized under the Section 8 program.  During FY 2008, KCHA may see a decrease in this target as the agency shifts to implement initiatives identified through the “Lean-engineering” review completed during FY 2007.  As a result, KCHA will revise inspection targets established under this benchmark to ensure MTW standards are appropriately measured.
D.   
Ensuring Rent Reasonableness
KCHA continues to use the services of Dupree + Scott, a professional real estate consulting firm that conducts rental market research in the Puget Sound Region.  For the Section 8 Program, Dupree + Scott publishes an annual customized rent reasonableness report based on a survey of rental units in rental sub-markets across King County.  The report establishes a maximum rent for housing units based on a number of factors, including location, size, quality, type, amenities, utilities, and general condition.  To perform rent reasonable tests, KCHA also accesses web-based on all apartment buildings in the Seattle-King County area with 50 or more units, including total number of units, age of building, square footage by bedroom size, rental price of last units rented and comparable units within a stated number of miles.  A trained Section 8 inspector uses these reports as a guide to determine rent reasonableness.  KCHA staff determine rent reasonableness for all units rented under the Section 8 program, including units owned by KCHA.  

E.   
Expanding Housing Opportunities and Deconcentration

The following are descriptions of strategies the Authority uses to increase the housing choice and opportunities for low-income households through the Section 8 program:

Project Based Assistance Program 

The Project Based Assistance Program preserves and increases the range of options available to low-income households and offers more housing opportunities in low-poverty areas. KCHA converts tenant-based vouchers to Project Based Assistance, through a direct contract with an owner for a specific number of units. The owner is obligated to house Section 8-eligible tenants in this housing and abide by any other parameters established by KCHA and/or partner funders. 

The Authority will further explore use of project-based assistance in the redevelopment of Public Housing.  New policies may be developed relating, but not limited to, percentage caps on number of subsidized units in a development and the adoption of operational guidelines for mixed subsidy developments. 

Vouchers will be allocated for a range of differing population groups and purposes.  These include transitional and permanent housing opportunities for individuals and families with children who may need on-site support services. General numerical targets for units to be project-based in each category are as follows:

1. Private Housing Program (Off-site HOPE VI Replacement Housing):  KCHA will project-base 269 replacement vouchers under the Park Lake HOPE VI project in housing it controls and in projects owned by nonprofit organizations and funded by A Regional Coalition for Housing (ARCH) or other government funders. This initiative will deconcentrate the subsidized housing supply by shifting it from one of the region’s most impoverished communities to more affluent neighborhoods. 

Units currently under contract:  212

2. Public Housing Redevelopment (On-site Public Housing Replacement Housing): To replace or redevelop units on-site at former Public Housing sites, KCHA will permanently and/or temporarily project-base up to 280 units for new and returning residents at Greenbridge. In addition, KCHA anticipates project-basing approximately 270 units at Springwood as renovation proceeds during FY 2008.  Further use of this tool may be contemplated if additional redevelopment sites are identified.

Units currently under contract: 110

3. Housing for formerly homeless families:  KCHA will work with the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation’s Sound Families Initiative to create up to 230 units of supportive housing for formerly homeless families. 

Units currently under contract:  177

4. Supportive Housing: Housing and Services Program (HASP) Vouchers made available for project-basing will create or preserve service-enriched permanent housing opportunities in up to 150 units for disabled households and those needing on-site support services.

Units currently under contract: 32

5. Families with Children:  To increase opportunities for households with children in low-poverty, employment-rich areas with limited subsidized housing opportunities, KCHA may commit Project Based Assistance for up to an additional 100 units, but only after KCHA’s replacement housing goals have been met and if additional vouchers are available.

Units currently under contract: 0

6. Local Preservation:  KCHA may attach Project Based Assistance to up to 150 units in projects requiring temporary or permanent operating subsidies to serve extremely low-income households.

Units currently under contract: 73
7. King County’s Community Plan to End Homelessness: As a partner in the Committee to End Homelessness, KCHA reserves the right to identify new program categories for up to 100 units that specifically serve homeless households and further the goals of the King County Plan to End Homelessness for up to 100 units.  This number may be increased by KCHA’s Board in FY 2008, depending on the progress made by the region in identifying supportive service funding.

Units currently under contract:  10

8. Transition in Place: If resources are available, KCHA will allocate up to 40 “transition in place” vouchers to Transitional Housing Programs funded by KCHA and Sound Families as needed.

Units currently under contract: 0
9. Demonstration Programs: KCHA reserves the right to provide Project Based Assistance to up to 100 units in a limited number of pilot projects that will serve an important public purpose, but may not qualify under identified programs or policies.

Units currently under contract:  25 Under the Provider-Based Supportive Housing Program.

Housing Choice Voucher Supportive Housing Programs

To better serve households with disabilities, KCHA created the Housing Access and Services Program (HASP) in partnership with a consortium of human service and behavioral health care systems.  Under this program,  a total of 1,539 tenant based vouchers are dedicated to disabled households.  Participating human service systems assist participants in utilizing their vouchers by finding suitable housing and intervening in crisis situations when a tenant is at risk of losing housing. Due to KCHA’s commitment, 43% of all KCHA Section 8 participants are now disabled households.  Housing search and crisis intervention services are currently being extended to other designated populations under the Section 8 program.  Thanks to these efforts, in FY 2006, KCHA’s HCV program termination rate was 2.3%.

To better serve special needs families, KCHA also partners with nonprofit agencies serving survivors of domestic violence and homeless parents at risk of being separated from their children.  In FY 2007, several of these partners received supportive service funding to better support households in these programs. KCHA anticipates expanding its list of agency partners that refer program clients and provide services to targeted voucher populations.
Payment  and Occupancy Standards 

To ensure that Section 8 clients can access housing throughout King County, the Authority previously worked with HUD to establish exception rent areas.  Currently exception rents are approximately 118% of the Fair Market Rent (FMR).  In late FY 2007, KCHA used MTW authority to allow payment standards up to 120% of FMR without seeking HUD approval in order to accommodate multiple rental markets within its jurisdiction.  The Housing Authority is reviewing current rental data and may propose increasing Payment Standards either County-wide or in separate sub-markets.  KCHA will continue to review payment standards and occupancy standards on an ongoing basis to reflect rising shelter costs and rent burdens, and will create hardship review processes in addition to reasonable accommodation policies already in place.  

Landlord Outreach 

Extensive outreach to current and potential landlords include staffing a Section 8 information booth at the annual TRENDS/Rental Housing Management Conference and Trade show, periodic information mailings letting landlords know of upcoming changes to the program and continued refinements to the KCHA webpage. These methods make it easier for a landlord to gain information about the program and list available units. KCHA is working with the landlord community to expand direct deposit payments for monthly rents.  In instances where HUD monthly HAP payments have been delayed, KCHA has used its MTW reserve to assure that landlords were paid promptly on the first of the month. 

Inspection and Rent Reasonable Strategy 

Creating an effective and efficient Section 8 Housing Quality Standards inspection program for KCHA’s large jurisdiction – covering almost 2,000 square miles – is a significant challenge.

In FY 2004 and 2005, KCHA adopted changes to its inspection and rent reasonable protocols to ease the burden on participants and landlords and streamline the inspection process.  These changes include:

· Allowing KCHA Section 8 staff to inspect and perform rent reasonable studies on KCHA-owned units;

· Performing rent reasonable studies on units only when an owner has requested a rent increase;

· Allowing owners and participants to self-certify corrections of minor HQS inspection fail items identified during annual inspections.

In FY 2007, KCHA radically changed the inspection process. It decoupled the inspection from the client’s annual review date, allowing inspections to be grouped by area rather than by the date they entered the program.  This “clustering” allows an inspector to reduce driving time between units, thus allowing more inspections within a defined time period.  MTW was used to extend the annual re-inspection requirement from 12 to a maximum of 20 months to realign inspection cycles by geographic clusters. 

During FY 2008, in addition to inspection protocol changes described in previous plans, KCHA will explore policy and program changes that may: 

· Reduce the number of annual inspections through sampling in buildings with large numbers of Section 8 families or other approaches.

· Reduce the number of missed inspections.

· Allow KCHA to accept inspections by other parties (State Housing Finance Commission, King County Affordable Housing Program) whose practices and standards are similar to those of KCHA.

· Further streamline the rent reasonableness process.

In pursuing these initiatives, KCHA will continue providing safe, decent, and sanitary housing for all Section 8 participants.

F.  
New MTW Demonstration Initiatives

During FY 2006, the Authority received approval to include all HUD-Funded vouchers (except for a small portion designated for the Mainstream Program) into a single Block Grant.  As a result, the Authority can now apply a single set of policies and procedures to program administration.  Changes to be explored and/or implemented under this initiative may include the following areas:

· Eligibility criteria for tenants;

· Property and owner eligibility criteria;

· Review of rent policies, including income inclusions and exclusions, deductions, minimum rent, timing of reviews, method of rent calculation, and subsidy levels;

· Expansion of methods of income verification;

· Waiting list procedures and tenant selection procedures, criteria and preferences;

· The content of the Housing Assistance Payments Contract;

· Family Obligations;

· Portability and moving procedures and policies;

· Alternative means of setting rent payment standards and exception payment standards;

· Standards and procedures for reviewing, setting, and implementing utility allowances;

· Eligibility policy regarding single persons who are not disabled and not elderly, live-in aides, and residual family members;

· Further refinement of the Project Based policy and procedures;

· Further changes to inspection protocols;

· Targeting of vouchers to specific priority populations and supportive service providers in coordination with local 10-Year Plan to End Homelessness program priorities and funding. 

Section IX.   Resident Programs

A.  Services and Programs

In a time of reduced federal funding and ever-increasing rental and homeownership costs, KCHA must be more strategic in providing services to Public Housing and Section 8 households. By focusing on increasing economic independence and graduation rates from federally subsidized housing, KCHA can service more low-income households. While KCHA will focus a number of resident service initiatives on households that can enter and progress in the job market, it will continue to provide comprehensive services to youth, seniors, and disabled populations. 

KCHA serves a culturally, socially, and economically diverse population and is committed to partnering with a wide range of service organizations to deliver support services to residents within its housing communities. 

New Resident Services

During FY 2008, KCHA will explore a series of new or expanded initiatives. The following may require use of KCHA’s MTW waiver authority or block grant funding:

· Resident Opportunities Plan.  As KCHA looks toward the next five years and the challenges faced by the county’s lowest income households, it must focus on two critical objectives: improving economic independence for Public Housing and Section 8 households and increasing graduation rates from federally assisted housing.  During FY 2008, KCHA will conduct a comprehensive assessment of current conditions and opportunities for residents of KCHA owned housing communities and participants utilizing vouchers through the Section 8 program.  Based on this assessment, KCHA will develop a combination of strategies that consider:

· Internal and external work incentives that support resident employment and income progression;

· Program participation mandates to increase resident involvement in programs;

· Resident outreach and community building practices that promote active engagement in and feedback on resident service programs;  

· Skill development initiatives that focus on ESL, pre-vocation, apprenticeship, vocation and general education with community colleges, unions and other key stakeholders;

·    Employment related coordination efforts with employers and the Workforce Development Council for access to quality jobs;

·    Small business development and micro lending opportunities that support home-based businesses such as childcare or landscaping;

·    Pilot projects that combine unique incentives, opportunities and approaches for specific populations including, for example, families receiving temporary assistance for needy families (TANF);

·    Asset building programs that combine skill development such as credit repair and budgeting tools with programs such as individual development accounts, to help families build and maintain equity over time;

·    Exit strategies, including coordination with KCHA controlled work force housing, that enable residents to graduate from subsidized housing. 

· Expansion of Funding Sources for Resident Service Programs.  KCHA will continue exploring ways to increase funding resources by identifying and soliciting appropriate local, state and federal public resources, as well as national and local private foundations.

· Resident Services for “Other” Low Income Households.  KCHA will explore ways to make resident services currently only open to Public Housing residents because of funding guidelines, available to Section 8 participants and other low-income households participating in rent restricted programs, such Preservation and Tax Credit properties.  

· Changes in Rent Policy and Lease Terms.  KCHA’s Resident Services and Housing Management departments will jointly develop an comprehensive approach to rent policy and lease terms that supports economic independence and addresses administrative burdens for residents living on limited fixed incomes. The Resident Services department will revise or develop services and programs that support the new rent policy.

· Expansion of Student Scholarship Program.  KCHA will work with its existing youth development partners to increase the availability of scholarships, giving low-income students additional funding resources to further their higher education goals.

· Expansion of relationships with school districts. KCHA’s youth development partners have built informal relationships with individual schools to assist with increased academics, improve grades and reduce truancy and drop-out rates.  Over the next year, KCHA will work with specific school districts to develop formal relationships between schools and KCHA’s youth-related service providers, establishing district-wide information sharing and collaboration expectations to increase support for youth and their families.

· Expansion of the Section 3 Employment Program.  Construction work will increase substantially over the next several years as KCHA renovates eight of its mixed population buildings and redevelops two major public housing family developments.  As KCHA increases development activities, it will consider expanding its existing local hiring and contracting program in tandem with the Resident Opportunities Plan referenced above.

· Expanded Homelessness Prevention Services for Current Public Housing Tenants and Section 8 Participants. KCHA will expand its program to assist vulnerable clients in maintaining their housing. This program, jointly administered by housing management and resident services staff, includes procedures for identifying at-risk families, addressing the situation and providing referral and follow-up for households in need of more comprehensive services.

· Housing Assistance Services for Section 8 Applicants.  KCHA will explore expanding housing assistance, including housing search and landlord advocacy, to Section 8 program applicants who receive vouchers but have barriers preventing them from leasing from a private landlord. The goal of this service is to increase the number of applicants who successfully find housing using a Section 8 voucher. 

· Expansion of Support Services Program.   As part of the HOPE VI project, KCHA is building a new mixed population apartment building that, when completed in 2008, will serve an additional 82 senior or younger disabled households.  KCHA will seek to include this building in its support service program. KCHA will also look into expanding support services for senior and younger disabled residents living in Public Housing family developments.  Both expansions will require additional funding. 

· Expansion of the Youth Education and Development Services. After KCHA evaluates its youth program goals and outcomes, it may revise its contracts, expand its youth program budget and determine a new funding mechanism. 

· Community Services Requirement.   KCHA will continue to evaluate and revise the existing program to support residents and improve administrative efficiency.

Ongoing Resident Services

· Early Childhood Programming.   In partnership with Puget Sound Educational Services District (PSESD), KCHA provides three on-site Head Start centers within the Authority’s largest public housing communities.  Together, these sites serve 329 four and five-year-olds annually in half day and full day programs.   Last year, the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation awarded PSESD a large, multi-year grant to design an early learning initiative for the White Center neighborhood that prepares all children, regardless of economic status, for success in school. Over the next year, KCHA will work with PSESD and other White Center stakeholders to further this initiative, including developing plans for a state-of-the-art Head Start facility to be located in KCHA’s Greenbridge community. 

· Youth Education and Development Services.  KCHA partners with Neighborhood House, the Center for Human Services, Kent Youth and Family Services, the Center for Career Alternatives and the Boys and Girls Club to serve over 1200 (unduplicated) public housing youth between the ages of seven and eighteen. The following services are provided:

· Youth literacy and tutoring programs

· Homework assistance

· School tracking, attendance and grade monitoring

· Computer training programs

· Life skills classes and mentoring programs

· Recreation programs, including late night activities for teenagers

· Employment readiness and job search assistance

· Self-Sufficiency Services and Programs.  KCHA provides supportive services to Public Housing or Section 8 program residents to obtain, maintain and increase employment.  The following efforts will be evaluated and considered as part of Resident Opportunities Planning initiative: 

· Career Development Centers.  KCHA contracts with the Center for Career Alternatives and the YWCA to operate career development centers strategically located in  three public housing communities: Greenbridge,  Springwood Apartments and Green River Homes. Combined, these three sites will assist 142 people find jobs, 65 percent of whom will retain them for six months or more.  In addition to employment and retention outcomes, these agencies partner with local community colleges to prepare residents to increase their economic independence by establishing:

· English classes for residents with limited English speaking skills
· Job skill and short term training programs
· Job search, resume preparation and interview skill training
· Job retention and life skill development
· Section 8 Family Self-Sufficiency Programs. Concurrently, up to 200 Section 8 participants contract with the Housing Authority and the YWCA to establish long term individual plans that lead to economic self-sufficiency. As employment income increases, participants are eligible for an escrow account, where the difference between their initial rent and subsequent higher rents is deposited.  When FSS participants meet their program goals and are ready to end their contract, they receive their escrow account balance, which they can use for homeownership, higher education, or small business development. 

· Support Services Coordination for Elderly and Younger Disabled Households.  Nine KCHA Support Service Coordinators serve over 1300 elderly and younger disabled households living in 21 mixed-population public housing buildings. The coordinators reduce isolation by coordinating building activities and prevent evictions by helping residents assess their needs and connecting them to available community-based services. KCHA also coordinates services, including transportation, provided to elderly and disabled residents by Neighborhood House, Senior Services, HOPELINK and other partner agencies.  

Additional Resident Support Service Activities
· Reasonable Accommodations. The Authority provides a 504 Reasonable Accommodation program, which coordinates resident and applicant requests for reasonable accommodation in Public Housing units and the Section 8 program. During fiscal year 2008, KCHA expects to process a minimum of 1200 requests.

· Improving Safety in Public Housing Communities.  In late 2005, KCHA, in partnership with two police departments, several community service providers and the United States Attorney’s Office, was awarded a public housing safety initiative grant to deliver crime prevention and intervention services in three housing developments in South King County. This grant helps improve the physical environment of each development, increases community-policing efforts, improves safety measures and provides after-school and late-night activities for at-risk youth.  This program is funded through the end of 2007. KCHA will apply for continued funding to support this successful program. 

· AmeriCorps Program.  KCHA provides staffing, supervision, and coordination of a 12-member team of AmeriCorps volunteers who work in public housing, schools and community-based organizations to support residents’ needs, including youth tutoring and adult education.

· Hope VI Family Services.   The HOPE VI Family Services staff works with families displaced by the HOPE VI redevelopment project to re-occupy the newly-developed Greenbridge community, maintain current housing stability, handle emergency issues, and set long term goals. 

KCHA also utilizes local community agencies to provide HOPE VI families with additional support services, including homeownership, employment and training, financial planning, youth activities, and healthcare. Services will be available through 2009 when it is anticipated that all former Park Lake Homes residents wishing to return to the new community have been able to do so.  

As the community is re-occupied, the Greenbridge community builder will work with service agencies, management and residents to create programs, workshops, resident groups and neighbor-to-neighbor activities that support connection and community.

· Expanding Facilities to Support Access to Services.  KCHA collaborates with partner agencies to develop facilities housing primary social services at its major public housing sites. To support capital fundraising activities, KCHA established two 501(c)3 partnerships with non-profit service providers.  These partnerships, Building Better Futures and the Greenbridge Foundation, have already successfully raised close to $12 million to assist in facility development.

· Building Better Futures: In 2004, the Authority, working in partnership with Puget Sound Educational Service District and two community-based non-profit service providers, completed fundraising and construction of a new Kent Family Center. This two-story, 20,000 sq. ft., building houses Head Start, a WIC Clinic and a career development center at Springwood, KCHA’s largest public housing site in south King County. 

· Springwood Youth Center.  In 2005, the same partnership that built the Kent Family Center began raising the capital needed for the replacement of the Springwood Community Center with a new Youth Center.  This 10,800 sq. ft. center opened in August, 2006, and provides a state-of-the-art space for after-school and late-night youth activities.    

· Greenbridge Community Service campus: As part of the Greenbridge HOPE VI project, KCHA is working with over a dozen long-time service partners to create a network of facilities to support comprehensive services for the community. The first building, completed on land provided by the Authority and opened in 2005, is the new White Center Heights Elementary School, designed as a community school with facilities open to the community after school. 

The second building on the Greenbridge service campus is the Jim Wiley Community Center. The 23,000 sq. ft. facility has been extensively rehabilitated and reopened in March, 2007.  The facility includes space for the following activities: youth tutoring, mentoring and recreation, family and individual case management, adult basic education, ESL and citizenship classes, senior activities, cultural classes, EITC assistance, energy assistance; and flexible community meeting and gathering spaces.

The YWCA Learning Center at Greenbridge:  This 8,000 sq. ft. YWCA facility will include a branch library and Washington State University Cooperative Extension Program.  The Learning Center will provide job search assistance, employment case management, youth leadership programs, literacy enrichment, distance learning, 4-H programming and basic computer classes. It is scheduled to open in mid-2008.

The Greenbridge Early Learning Center.  Developed by the Puget Sound Educational Services District, this 32,000 sq. ft. building will serve as the Hub for the White Center Early Learning Initiative and house Head Start programs, parenting classes, employment services for Head Start parents, regional training programs, support and training for informal childcare providers, child care, home visits; and prenatal/infant/toddler services.  It is scheduled to open in 2010. 
Section X.   Other Information Required by HUD

KCHA Commission Resolution and Required HUD Certifications

· Board Resolution Adopting this FY 2008 MTW Annual Plan

· PHA Certification of Compliance with MTW Plan Requirements 

· Certification for a Drug-Free Workplace 

· Certification of Payments to Influence Federal Transactions 

· Disclosure of Lobbying Activities 

· FY 2006 Audit Report in Compliance with OMB Circular A-133

To access electronic copies of the Board Resolution and related Certifications, please click the icons below:
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Funding Allocation Forms 

· Calculation of Operating Subsidy 

· Capital Fund Program Estimate 

· Section 8 Estimate of Total Required Annual Contributions for Mainstream Vouchers

To access electronic copies of Funding Allocation forms, please click the icon below:
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Section XI.  Community Review of the MTW Plan and Ongoing Policy Formulation

A.   Coordination and Public Notice

The King County Housing Authority is committed to developing the MTW Annual Plan in an open environment that encourages public and resident review and input.   Under guidelines established by the Authority, the Draft MTW Annual Plan for FY 2008 was made available for public review and comment for a period of two weeks.  Public Notification of draft Plan availability was advertised as follows: 

· Posted on KCHA’s website (kcha.org); 

· Posted in all KCHA Public Housing Management offices and each development; and, 

· Published in the Northwest Asian Weekly, the Facts Newspaper and The Seattle Times.  

Copies of the draft Plan were made available, upon request, to all interested parties.

In addition, copies of the draft MTW Plan were distributed to the Resident Advisory Committees (RAC) prior to the RAC’s regularly scheduled meeting on March 29, 2007.          The RAC meeting allotted time to review draft Plan components, answer questions and invite further comment and input prior to the Public Hearing.

On April 3, 2007, KCHA held an informal meeting to provide community stakeholders an opportunity to review draft Plan components, answer questions and invite further comment and input prior to the Public Hearing. 

A Public Hearing was held on April 5, 2007 at the Authority’s Central Administrative office, during which participants were invited to present input and comment on the draft Plan. Copies of the Authority’s outreach materials, together with comments received regarding the Plan are appended as Appendix G.  

The Plan was subsequently approved in an open meeting of the Board of Commissioners on April 16, 2007. 

B.   Comments Received 

 Comments regarding KCHA’s FY 2008 MTW Plan are summarized in Appendix G.

C.   Future Program Changes

KCHA will continue work with key stakeholders to ensure public and participant input into policy formulation.  Using a range of forums, including Resident Advisory Committee meetings, resident and program participant surveys, focus groups and public hearings, as appropriate, KCHA will solicit feedback on proposed program changes.  Due to the broad ethnic diversity of its residents and voucher holders, KCHA will provide translation and interpretation services to help ensure full participation.  Due to the large geographic area KCHA encompasses, the Authority will hold meetings and public hearings in locales that facilitate resident feedback and participation. 

Appendices

APPENDICES

FY2008 MTW Plan

To access electronic copies of Appendices included in the KCHA MTW FY 2007 Annual Plan, please click the icons below:
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Report on Accountability for Public Resources

Please find attached our report on the King County Housing Authority’s accountability for public resources
and compliance with state laws and regulations and its own policies and procedures.

In addition to this work, we also audit the Housing Authority's financial statements and compliance with
federal laws and regulations. The results of that audit will be included in a separately issued audit report.

Sincerely,

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM
STATE AUDITOR
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Audit Summary

King County Housing Authority

February 7, 2007
ABOUT THE AUDIT
This report contains the results of our independent accountability audit of the King County
Housing Authority.

We performed audit procedures to determine whether the Housing Authority complied with state
laws and regulations and its own policies and procedures. We also examined Housing Authority
management’s accountability for public resources. Our work focused on specific areas that have
potential for abuse and misuse of public resources.

Areas examined during the audit were selected using financial transactions from July 1, 2005,
through June 30, 20086.

RESULTS

The Housing Authority complied with state laws and regulations and its own policies and
procedures in the areas we examined. Internal controls were adequate to safeguard public
assets.

RELATED REPORTS

Our opinion on the Housing Authority’s financial statements and compliance with federal program
requirements is provided in a separate report, which includes the Housing Authority’s financial
statements. That report includes a federal finding and questioned costs regarding inadequate
internal controls to ensure compliance with the period of availability.

CLOSING REMARKS

We thank Housing Authority officials and personnel for their assistance and cooperation during
the audit.
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Description of the Housing Authority

King County Housing Authority
February 7, 2007

ABOUT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY

The King County Housing Authority was created in 1939 in response to the Federal Housing Act
of 1937. The Housing Authority’s jurisdiction encompasses an area exceeding 2,100 square
miles throughout King County, except within the cities of Seattle and Renton that have their own
housing authorities. The Housing Authority operates out of a central office in Tukwila and seven
other offices throughout the County. A five-member Board of Commissioners, appointed by the
King County Executive to staggered, five-year terms and confirmed by the King County Council,
governs the Housing Authority. The Board establishes Housing Authority policies and programs.

The Housing Authority's purpose is to provide housing assistance to low-income households. To
accomplish this objective, the Housing Authority administers a broad range of federal and local
subsidized housing programs. The Housing Authority has approximately 294 employees and an
operating budget of nearly $106 million.

AUDIT HISTORY

We audit the Housing Authority annually. In the past five years, the Housing Authority had two
findings. In 2003, we reported findings over misappropriation of tenant revenue and
noncompliance with federal suspension and debarment requirements.

ELECTED OFFICIALS

These officials served during the audit period:

Board of Commissioners:
Chair Peter Orser
Vice Chair Nancy Holland-Young
Doreen Cato
Delores Brown
Debra Coates

APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Executive Director Stephen J. Norman

ADDRESS

Housing Authority 600 Andover Park West
Tukwila, WA 98188
(206) 574-1100

Washington State Auditor's Office
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Audit Areas Examined

King County Housing Authority

February 7, 2007

In keeping with general auditing practices, we do not examine every portion of the King County Housing
Authority's financial activities during each audit. The areas examined were those representing the highest
risk of noncompliance, misappropriation or misuse. Other areas are audited on a rotating basis over the
course of several years. The following areas of the Housing Authority were examined during this audit

period:

ACCOUNTABILITY FOR PUBLIC RESOURCES

We evaluated the Housing Authority’s accountability in the following areas:

Cash receipting

Petty cash, change and revolving
accounts

Cash receipting and revenues
Safeguarding of assets

Small and attractive assets
Payroll

Cash disbursements

Purchasing and accounts payable
Expenditures, vouchers and credit
cards

Financial statement preparation and
journal entries

Bonded property misappropriation

We audited the following areas for compliance with certain applicable state and local laws and
regulations:

Required financial schedules
Ethics/conflict of interest laws
Open Public Meetings Act
Public records request
Compliance with debt covenants
Arbitrage

Propriety of expenditures
Payments in lieu of taxes

FEDERAL PROGRAMS

We evaluated internal controls and tested compliance with federal program requirements, as
applicable, for the Housing Authority’s major federal programs, which are listed in the Federal
Summary section of the financial statement and single audit report.

Legal and supported payments
Allowable expenditures

State grants

Contracts and agreements

State prevailing wage requirements
Vacancy testing

Statutory requirements

Washington State Auditor's Office






FINANCIAL AREAS

Our opinion on the Housing Authority's financial statements is provided in a separate report. That
report includes the Housing Authority’s financial statements and other required financial
information. We examined the financial activity and balances of the Housing Authority including:

e Cash and investments e Long-term debt
¢ Revenues e OQverall presentation of the financial
e Expenditures statements

Washington State Auditor’s Office
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NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS

The components of land, structures and equipment at June 30, 2006 and the capital asset activity for the
fiscal year follow.

Beginning Disposals, Ending

Balance Additions Transfers Balance
Land $ 6299523 § - $ - $ 6,299,523
Buildings and improvements 25,322,880 (3,000) 25,319,880
Personal property 578,895 (5,131) 573,764
Total fixed assets 32,201,298 - (8,131) 32,193,167
Accumulated depreciation 8,168,061 681,049 (5,131) 8,843,979

NET FIXED ASSETS $ 24033237 § (681,049) $ (3,0000 $ 23,349,188

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes

Deferred loans were obtained from the State of Washington and the City of Bellevue to acquire Hidden
Village Apartments. The amount due the State of Washington is $292,157 and is repayable commencing
in the year 2024 for a twenty-year term. Interest will not accrue until the year 2024 and the rate thereafter
will be 5%. The amount due the City of Bellevue is $200,000 payable commencing in the year 2012 for a
thirty-year term with interest at the rate of 5% commencing as of that date.

Series 1998A Bonds

In September 1998, the Authority issued its Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A
with principal amounts totaling $32,955,000. The Authority is required to make, and has made, all
payments required under the trust indenture. The bonds mature in varying amounts through July 1, 2028
and have stated interest rates that vary from 3.85% to 5.25% per annum. The bonds were issued at a
discount of $480,155. The discount is amortized as interest expense over the life of the debt. The
unamortized balance is reported as a reduction to the outstanding bonds payable. The amortized
discount charged to interest expense for the period totaled $4,354. The bonds are secured with a deed of
trust on the Projects’ rental property, equipment and net operating income. Principal payments are due
as follows:

Washington State Auditor's Office
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Fiscal Year Principal Interest

2007 700,000 1,480,800
2008 735,000 1,448,313
2009 765,000 1,413,598
2010 805,000 1,375,125
2011 850,000 1,333,968
2012-2016 4,940,000 5,969,098
2017-2021 6,460,000 4,523,084
2022-2026 8,425,000 2,604,919
2027-2028 5,110,000 381,150
TOTAL $ 28,790,000 $ 20,530,053
Unamortized original issue discount (59,055)

Unamortized deferred defeasance (1,112,812)

BALANCE OF OUTSTANDING DEBT $ 27,618,133 $ 20,530,053
Due in one year or less $ 700,000

Due in over one year $ 26,918,133

The bond proceeds paid the cost of refunding all of the Authority’s outstanding revenue bonds that had
been previously issued to acquire the Projects. The purpose of the advanced refunding was to
consolidate the issues, reduce the overall interest rate, allow for a longer maturity and permit cross
collateralization of the Projects.

Deferred Defeasance

GASB Statement No. 23 states that in an advanced refunding of debt, the difference between the
reacquisition price of the new debt and the net carrying amount of the old debt be deferred and amortized
as a component of interest expense, a non-cash transaction, in a systematic and rational manner over the
original remaining life of the old debt or the new debt whichever is shorter. The advanced refunding
resulted in a deferred defeasance loss of $1,827,791 in September 1998. The deferred defeasance loss
of $1,112,812 at June 30, 2006 is reported on the balance sheet as a reduction from the new debt
liability. Amortization of deferred defeasance for the period was $40,752 and is included with interest
expense.

The deferred defeasance balance is amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Amortization
2007 46,132
2008 48,573
2009 44,433
2010 47,992
2011 50,658
2012-2016 310,712
2017-2021 425,227
2022-2023 139,084
3 1112302
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NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS

Substantially all the Authority's full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the
following statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement
Systems, under cost-sharing muitiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution
retirement plans. The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary
government of the State of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFR) that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The
DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing to: Department of Retirement Systems, Communications Unit,
P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA 98504-8380. The following disclosures are made pursuant to GASB
Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government Employers.

A) PLAN DESCRIPTION

PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans for
membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a combination defined
benefit/defined contribution plan. Membership in the system includes: elected officials; state employees;
employees of the Supreme, Appeals, and Superior courts (other than judges currently in a judicial
retirement system); employees of legislative committees; community and technical colleges, college and
university employees not participating in national higher education retirement programs; judges of district
and municipal courts; and employees of local governments. PERS participants who joined on or after
October 1, 1977 and by August 31, 2002 are Plan 2 members unless they exercise an option to transfer
their membership to Plan 3. PERS participants joining the system on or after September 1, 2002 have
the irrevocable option of choosing membership in either PERS Plan 2 or PERS Plan 3. The option must
be exercised within 90 days of employment. An employee is reported in Plan 2 until a choice is made.
Employees who fail to choose within 90 days default to PERS Plan 3. PERS defined benefit retirement
benefits are financed from a combination of investment earnings and employer and employee
contributions. PERS retirement benefit provisions are established in state statute and may be amended
only by the State Legislature.

Plan 1 retirement benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service. Plan 1
members are eligible for retirement at any age after 30 years of service, or at the age of 60 with five years
of service, or at the age of 55 with 25 years of service. The annual pension is 2 percent of the average
final compensation per year of service, capped at 60 percent. The average final compensation is based
on the greatest compensation during any 24 eligible consecutive compensation months. If qualified, after
reaching the age of 66 a cost-of-living allowance is granted based on years of service credit and is
capped at 3 percent annually.

Plan 2 retirement benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service. Plan 2
members may retire at the age of 65 with five years of service, or at the age of 55 with 20 years of
service, with an allowance of 2 percent of the average final compensation per year of service. The
average final compensation is based on the greatest compensation during any eligible consecutive 60-
month period. Plan 2 retirements prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement is at age
55 or older with at least 30 years of service, a 3 percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an actuarial
reduction will apply. There is no cap on years of service credit; and a cost-of-living allowance is granted
(indexed to the Seattle Consumer Price Index), capped at 3 percent annually.

Plan 3 has a dual benefit structure. Employer contributions finance a defined benefit component, and
member contributions finance a defined contribution component. The defined benefit portion provides a
benefit calcutated at 1 percent of the average final compensation per year of service. The average final
compensation is based on the greatest compensation during any eligible consecutive 60-month period.
Effective June 7, 2006, Plan 3 members are vested in the defined portion of their plan after ten years of
service; or after five years if twelve months of that service are earned after age 44, or after five service
credit years earned in PERS Plan 2 prior to June 1, 2003. Plan 3 members are immediately vested in the
defined contribution portion of their plan. Vested Plan 3 members are eligible to retire with full benefits at
age 65, or at age 55 with 10 years of service. Retirements prior to the age of 65 receive reduced
benefits. If retirement is at age 55 or older with at least 30 years of service, a 3 percent per year
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reduction applies; otherwise an actuarial reduction will apply. The benefit is also actuarially reduced to
reflect the choice of survivor option. There is no cap on years of service credit; and Plan 3 provides the
same cost-of-living allowance as Plan 2. The defined contribution portion can be distributed in
accordance with an option selected by the member, either as a lump sum or pursuant to other options
authorized by the Employee Retirement Benefits Board.

There are 1,181 participating employers in PERS. Membership in PERS consisted of the following as of
the latest actuarial valuation date for the plans of September 30, 2005:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 68,609
Terminated Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 22,567
Active Plan Members Vested 104,574

Active Plan Members Non-vested 5 ,00_4

48,764

B) FUNDING POLICY

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates, Plan 2
employer and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 employer contribution rates. Employee
contribution rates for Plan 1 are established by statute at 6 percent. The employer and employee
contribution rates for Plan 2 and the employer contribution rate for Plan 3 are developed by the Office of
the State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. All employers are required
to contribute at the level established by the Legislature. Under PERS Plan 3, employer contributions
finance the defined benefit portion of the plan, and member contributions finance the defined contribution
portion. The Employee Retirement Benefits Board sets Plan 3 employee contribution rates. Six rate
options are available ranging from 5 to 15 percent; two of the options are graduated rates dependent on
the employee’s age. The methods used to determine the contribution requirements are established under
state statute in accordance with chapters 41.40 and 41.45 RCW.

The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current-year covered payroll, as of
December 31, 2006, were as follows:

Employer* 3.69% 3.69% 3.69%""
Employee 6.00% 3.50% el

*  The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currently set at 0.18%.
** Plan 3 defined benefit portion only.
***Variable from 5% minimum to 15% maximum based on rate selected by the PERS 3 member.

Both the Authority and the employees made the required contributions. The Authority's required
contributions for the years ending December 31 were as follows:

_PERS Pla

2006 $37.119 5361419 T $46 174
2005 $26,335 $214.085 $27.780
2004 $20,895 $163.272 $19,399
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NOTE 7 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to perils commonly associated with the ownership and rental of real property.
Bodily injury to individuals; property damage by fire and forces of nature; loss of assets from theft and
employee dishonesty; and liability for public officials' and employees’ conduct are handled through a
combination of purchased commercial insurance, voluntary self-insurance, participation in a risk-sharing
pool or group, and contractual risk transfer via indemnification agreements.

The Projects are covered for property insurance through the Housing Authority Risk Retention Pool
(HAARP), a public entity risk-sharing pool. Property insurance including Rental Income coverage through
HARRP has a standard limit of $3,000,000 replacement cost basis, with higher limits availabie upon
request. Property insurance deductible is $50,000. Automobile Liability insurance is $5,000,000 total
limits provided through North Pacific Insurance Company. The Authority has secured Fidelity coverage
through HARRP for $100,000 per occurrence for all employees, and $500,000 for employees with greater
exposure.

The general liability is covered through the Housing Authority Risk Retention Group (HARRG) with
$5,000,000 per occurrence limit. Additionally, liability sub-limits are provided for fire damage and athletic
sports, at $50,000 and $250,000, respectively.

No closed claims are known to have exceeded the applicable limits of insurance secured from any of the
mentioned providers.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal Assistance Received Directly Through a Federal Agency or Indirectly
Through a State Agency or Local Government

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Federal  Other CURRENT
CFDA D YEAR
GRANTOR PROGRAM TITLE Number  Number EXPENDITURES
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, RURAL HOUSING SERVICE-DIRECT PROGRAMS
RURAL RENTAL HOUSING LOANS-RAINIER [ 10.415 Loan 448,626
RURAL RENTAL HOUSING LOANS-RAINIER I 10.415 Loan 625,677
RURAL RENTAL HOUSING LOANS-SI VIEW 10.415 Loan 185,615
TOTAL FOR 10.415 - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 1,259,919
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE-DIRECT PROGRAMS
INSTITUTE OF LAW & JUSTICE, PUBLIC HOUSING SAFETY INITIATIVE 16.595 39.71 56,253
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD)-DIRECT PROGRAMS
SECTION 8 NEW CONSTRUCTION
NORTHLAKE HOUSE 14.182 WA19-0049-002 213,434
NORTHWOOD 14,182 WA 19-8023-006 236,659
BURIEN PARK 14.182 WA19-8023-007 621914
EMERSON MANOR 14.182 S 0056 181,299
HOMESTEAD APT 14.182 S 0058 149,398
TOTALS FOR 14.182 1,402,704
SECTION 8 SPECIAL ALLOCATION
KING COUNTY - HIDDEN VILLAGE 14.195 WA 19M000184 323,391
KING COUNTY - PARKWAY 14.195 WA19M000203 445,360
KING COUNTY - SPIRITWOOD 14.195 WA19M000182 847,852
KING COUNTY - NEWPORT 14.195 WA19M000179 109,555
TOTAL SUBSIDY 1,726,158
FHA LOAN - SPIRITWOOD 14.195 Loan 2,453,459
FHA LOAN - NEWPORT APTS 14.195 Loan 354,329
FHA LOAN - PARKWAY 14.195 Loan 1,659,347
TOTAL INSURED MORTGAGES 4,467,135
TOTALS FOR 14,195 6,193,293
PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING
KING COUNTY - OPERATING SUBSIDY 14.850 WA00200305J 7,081,108
KING COUNTY - SUPPORT SERVICE COORDINATOR 14.850 WA00200305] 259,079
TOTAL KING COUNTY 7,340,187
OLYMPIA - OPERATING SUBSIDY 14.850 WAO00202505) 78,999
TOTAL FOR 14.850 7,419,186
HOQUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS 14.871 S 023v 56,754,631
TOTALS FOR 14.871 56,754,631
SECTION 8 MODERATE REHABILITATION
TITUSVILLE 14,856 § 0023K 73,485
TOTALS FOR 14.856 73,485
PUBLIC HOUSING CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM
CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM  FFY 2002 14.872 WA 19P00250102 314,024
CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM  FFY 2003 14.872 WA19P00250103 1,633,120
CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM  FFY 2004 14.872 WA 19P00250104 3,522,774
CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM  FFY 2005 14.872 WA19P00250105 4,229253
TOTALS FOR 14.872 9,699,172
PUBLIC HOUSING REVITALIZATION OF SEVERLY DISTRESSED PUBLIC HOUSING
HOPE VI 14.866 WAI9URDO002I101 7,975,949
TOTALS FOR 14.866 7,975,949
MOVING TO WORK INITIATIVE MTWTGWAQ002 149,995
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal Assistance Received Directly Through a Federal Agency or Indirectly

Through a State Agency or Local Government
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Federal Other CURRENT
CFDA D YEAR
GRANTOR PROGRAM TITLE Number Number EXPENDITURES
MULTIFAMILY HOUSING SERVICE COORDINATOR
SENIOR HOUSING 14.191 WA 19HS00003 55,409
SENIOR HOQUSING 14.191 WA19HS02005 85,630
TOTALS FOR 14.191 141,039
RESIDENT OPPORTUNITY AND SELF SUFFICIENCY
PARK LAKE CAREER DEVELOPMENT CENTER FFY 2002 14.870 WAO2RSF002P0084 39,605
HOMEOQWNER PROGRAM FFY 2002 14.870 WAO02RHS002P0022 196,839
NEIGHBORHOOD NETWORKS - AUBURN 14.870 WAO02RNNO002P0063 22,098
NEIGHBORHOOD NETWORKS - KENT 14.870 WAO02RNNOS0A003 34,092
TOTALS FOR 14.870 292,634
TOTAL DIRECT-U.S DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 90,102,088
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD)-INDIRECT PROGRAMS
PASS THROUGH CITY OF BELLEVUE
HOQUSING REPAIR-BELLEVUE 2004 14.218 C-40 15,292
HOUSING REPAIR-BELLEVUE 2005 14.218 CDBG 187 286,339
301,631
PASS THROUGH KING COUNTY
HOUSING REPAIR - KING CO 2003 14218 C03461 66,387
CDBG FLOAT LOAN FOR GREENBRIDGE PROJECT 14.218 1,750,000
1,816,387
TOTALS FOR 14.218 2,118,019
PASS THROUGH KING COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
HOME LOAN FOR GREENBRIDGE SEOLA CROSSING PROJECT 14.219 D34893D/E LOAN 2,000,000
CDBG FOR WILEY CENTER RENOVATION AT GREENBRIDGE 14.219 D34096D 44,575
CDBG CITY OF BELLEVUE 14219 C45 51,887
CDBG CITY OF AUBURN 14.219 83,051
TOTALS FOR 14.219 2,179,513
HUD SECTION 108 LOAN FOR GREENBRIDGE PROJECT 14.248 5,281,580
TOTALS FOR 14,248 5,281,580
TOTAL INDIRECT-U.S.DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 9,579,111
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 99,681,199
U.S DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
PASS THROUGH WASHINGTON DEPT OF COMMUNITY TRADE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
2003 81.042 F03-446-413 BPA 59,321
2006 81.042 F04-434-413 DOE 38,720
2005 81.042 F05-434-413 DOE 413,888
TOTALS FOR 81.042 -U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 511,929
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN AND HEALTH SERVICES
PASS THROUGH WASHINGTON DEPT OF COMMUNITY TRADE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
LOW INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE  FFY 2005 93.568 F05-431-413 HHS 563,768
TOTALS FOR 93.568 -U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN AND HEALTH SERVICES 563,768
CTED | FOR GREENBRIDGE WILEY CENTER 06-94100-052 92,931
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN AND HEALTH SERVICES 656,700
CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE
PASS THROUGH EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT
AMERICORP PROJECT FFY 2005 94,006 ESD 05-027-G 63,997
TOTALS FOR 94,006-CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE 63,997
TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 102,229,995
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AND LOCAL AWARDS

Assistance Received Through a State Agency, Local Government or Private Organization
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

CURRENT
ID YEAR
GRANTOR PROGRAM TITLE Number EXPENDITURES
STATE OF WASHINGTON
OFFICE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS EMM 03 $03-941-413 $ 285,895
WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS EMM 05 S05-498-413 550,617
WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PUGET SOUND ENERGY FUND PSE 03 003-439-413 187,930
WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PUGET SOUND ENERGY FUND PSE 05 005-422-413 616,990
TOTALS FOR OFFICE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 1,641,432
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
TITLE XIX 19,137
OPPORTUNITY COUNCIL
WASHINGTON CONSUMERS ENERGY FUND FFY 05 TANNER_KCH 12,704
ENERGY SERVICE CONTRACT FUNDING 45,000
TOTALS FOR OPPORTUNITY COUNCIL 57,704
TOTALS FOR STATE OF WASHINGTON 1,718,273
OTHER
ADS CAREGIVER GRANT FFY 04 DA2004-7218 14,566
CITY OF AUBURN
VALLEY PARK TAX CREDIT PROPERTY 49,900
BUILDING BETTER FUTURES
KENT FAMILY CENTER 407,903
BILL & MELINDA GATES FOUNDATION
ENUMCLAW 4-PLEX RENOVATION 80,000
HOUSING ACCESS SERVICE PROGRAM
VOUCHER HOLDER ASSISTANCE 56,603
OTHER
VARIOUS LOCAL CONTRIBUTIONS PRIMARILY FOR THE GREENBRIDGE PROJECT 83,580
TOTALS FOR OTHER 692,552
TOTAL STATE AND LOCAL ASSISTANCE

$ 2,410,825
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NOTE TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND
EXPEDITURES OF STATE AND LOCAL AWARDS

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Schedule of Financiat Assistance is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the King County
Housing Authority’s financial statements. (See Note 1 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.)

NOTE 2 - PROGRAM COSTS

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal portion of the program costs.
Actual program costs, including The Authority’s portion, may be more than shown.
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| H U.S. Department of Housin OMB Approval No. 2577-0157
Actual Comprehensive Grant P g (Exp. 08/3012005)

and Urban Development

Cost Certificate Office of Public and Indian Housing

Comprehensive Grant Program (CGP)

PHA/IHA Name

King County-Housing Authority

Comprehensive Grant Number

WA19P002501-01

FFY of Grant Approva!
2001

The PHA/IHA hereby certifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1. That the total amount of Modernization Cost (herein called the “Actual Modemization Cost®) of the Comprehensive Grant, is as shown below:

A, Original Funds Apbroved

$7,047,550.00

B. Revised Funds Approved

$ 7,047,550.00

C. Funds Advanced

$7,047,550.00

D. Funds Expended (Actual Modernization Cost)

$7,047,550.00

E. Amount to be Recaptured (A-D)

$ ~ 0.00

F. Excess of Funds Advanced (C-D)

$ 0.00

2. That all modemization work in connectlon with the Comprehensive Grant has been completed;

3. That the entire Actual Modernization Cost or liabllities therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully paid;

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics', laborers', contractors’, or material-men's liens against such modernization work on file in any
public office where the same should be flled in order to be valid against such modernization work; and

5. That the time In which such liens could be filed has expired.

| hereby certify that all the informatiqn stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warming: HUD will prosecute false clai statemnents. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civii penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

/N

Jojez/w/oo

For HUD Use Only

The Cosl Certificate is approved for audit.

Approved tor Audit {Director, Public Housl;z Division)

W1,

The audited costs agree withr'the costs shown above.

Veritied (Director, Public Housing Division)

Date

Approved (Field Office Manager )

Date

form HUD-52838 (2/92)
ref Handbook 7485.3
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i i U.S. Department of Housing OMB Approval No. 2577-0157
Actual Comprehen3|ve Grant and Urban Development (Exp. 09/30/2005)

Cost Certificate ' Office of Publlc and Indian Housing
Comprehensive Grant Program (CGP)

PHA/IHA Name Comprehansive Grant Number
, _ _ WA19P002-502-01
King County- Housing Authority FFY of Grant Approval
10/2001

The PHA/IHA hereby ceriifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1. That the total amount of Modemization Cast (herein called the “Actual Modernization Cost") of the Comprehensive Grant, Is as shown below:

A. Original Funds Approved $45,500.00
B. Revised Funds Approved $40,341.75
C. Funds Advanced $40,341.75
D. Funds Expended (Actual Modemization Cost) $40,341.75
E. Amount to be Recaptured (A-D) $ 5,158.25
F. Excess of Funds Advanced (C-D) $ 0.00

2. That all modernization work In connection with the Comprehensive Grant has been completed;
3. That the entire Actual Modemization Cost or liabilities therefor Incurred by the PHA have been fully paid;

4. That there are no undischarged machanics', laborers', contractors', or material-men’s llens against such modernization work on file in any
public office where the same should be filed in order to be valid against such modernization work; and

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired.

I hereby certify that all the miormahon tated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Waming: HUD will prosecute false cialms d staternents. Conviction may resultIn criminel and/or civil penatties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C, 3729, 3802)

Signature Date
// L\ W/ALVL

For HUD Use Only

The Cost Certificate is approved for audit.
Approved for Audit (Director, Public Housing Division) Date

i ; Z— /{/zz/%{

The audited cest§ agree with the costs shown above.
Verlfied (Dlrector, Public Housing Division) Date

Approved (Fleid Office Manager ) Date

form HUD-52839 (2/02)
ret Handbook 7485.3
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H U.S. Department of Housing OMB Approval No. 2577-0157
Actual Comprehensive Grant and Urbian Development (Exp. 08/30/2005)

Cost Certificate Office of Public and Indian Housing
- Comprehensive Grant Program (CGP)

PHA/IHA Name Comprehensive Grant Number

King County Housing Authority "WA19P002501-00
FFY of Grant Approva!

2000

The PHA/IHA hereby certifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1. That the total amount of Modernization Cost {harein called the “Actual Modernization Cost") of the Comprehensiva Grant, is as shown below:

A. Original Funds Approved $ 6,891,865.00
B. Revised Funds Approved $ 6,891,865.00
C. Funds Advanced | ¥ 6,891,865.00
D. Funds Expended (Actual Modemization Cost) $ 6,891,865.00
E. Amount to be Recaptured (A-D) $ 0.00
F. Excess of Funds Advanced (C-D) s 0.00

2. That all modemization work in connection with the Comprehensive Grant has been completad;
3. That the entire Actual Modernization Cost or liabilities therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully pald;

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics', laborers’, contractors’, or material-men's liens against such modernization work on file in any
pubtic office where the same should be filed in order to be valid against such modernization work; and

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired.

| hereby certity that all the information stafed herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is trye and accurate.
Waming: HUD will prosacute false claims tfmenls. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

o / [ L‘\ m/;/w/au

For HUD Use Only
The Cost Certificate is approved for audil.
Approved for Audit (Director, Public Housing Division) ’ Date

///44 % 2 17,{7

The audited costs agree with tix6 costs shown above.
Verified (Director, Public Housing Division) Date

Approved (Field Office Manager ) Date

form HUD-52839 (2/92)
ref Handbook 7485.3
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Actual comprehensive Grant U.S. Department of Housing OMB Approval No. 2577-0157

. and Urban Development (Exp. 08/30/2005)
Cost Certificate Office of Public and Indian Housing
Comprehensive Grant Program (CGP)
PHAMHA Name Comprehensive Grant Number
King County Housing Authority WA19P002708-99
FFY of Grant Appraval
1999

The PHANHA hereby certifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1. That the total amount of Modemization Cost (hereln called the “Actual Modemnization Cost”) of the Comprehensive Grant, is as shown below:

A. Original Funds Approved $ 7,288,445.00
B. Revised Funds Approved %7 ,288,445.00
C. Funds Advanced $ 7,288,445.00
D. Funds Expended (Actual Modemization Cost) $ 7,288,445.00
E. Amount to be Recaptured (A-D) $ 0.00
F. Excess of Funds Advanced (C-D) $ 0.00

2. That all modemization work in connection with the Comprehensive Grant has bean completed;
3. That the entire Actual Modemization Cost or llabilities therefor Incurred by the PHA have been fully paid;

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics', laborers’, contractors’, or material-men's liens against such modemization work on file in any
public office where the same should be filed in order to be valid against such modemization work; and

§. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired.

| hereby certlfy that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided In the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Waming: HUD will prosecute false ,g‘gs and staternents. Conviction may result in criminal and/or Vil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3728, 3802)

=T o/ o

Stephen J. Norman, Executive Director { 7

For HUD Use Only
The Cost Certificate is approved for audit.

Appraved tor Audit {Director, Public Housing Division) Date
I lroey atzﬂ )/
l

The audited coffs agree with the costs shown{gbove. v
Verified (Director, Public Housing Division) . | Date
Approved (Field Office Manager ) Date

form HUD-52838 (2/92)
—ref-Handboek-7485.3
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CowaE g 8. Dapir  Hi OMB Approval No. 2577-0044 (exp. 04/30/72004)
Actual Modernization - 3'.1,‘:.‘,‘."'“9...'“'.3;...‘.’:? " OB Aorovml No. 25770187 enp, 12:3199)
Cost Certificate Office of Public and indian Houalng

Comprehensive improvemant Assistance Program (CIAP)
Comprehonsive. Grant Program (CGP)

Publlc reporting krurden far his coliaction of infoomation I estmatad to average 2 hovrs per responise, Inaluding the time for reviawing instruclions, sderching

existing date:sources; gathering and msintaining the dets nesded: and campleting and. reviewing the ootection of information. Send comments regarding this
mmm or: 3Ny oN !I‘:IPOGIOTWO eolieﬂon'--‘dff\nwfohpa’ﬁbm*hdu%h‘gﬁ-i:lﬁumwﬁgj’!ﬁe.ffi,dwn?;m.bur_go,n.» o the Reporti- M4 - Officar,
Paperwork Red 4(257.7-0044 and 0157), OMosof Infermation Technolopy; U.S. Depsrtment of Housing and Urban Development, Washington, D.C.

20410-3600; Thnigemfmny 1Ot coNQUEt OF SPOMKE, Nd § Parson i not regulred 16 fespond to, a collection of information uniess that collection displays
a valid. OMB control humber:

Do.not sand this form to the above sddrese, _ o

This oollection of information requirak that sach Houaing Autharity (HA) submit informetion (o anable HUD fo inltists the fiscal cleseout process, The
information Wil ba used by HUD. to determins whether the modernization grant is ready.to be sudited and closed out, Tha Infermation is ecsential for audit
variflaation ind flaca) cioss out. ‘Responses to the callection are required by regulation. The Information reguested does notlend itssif to confidentiality.
HA Narme: ' ’ Modemizallen Preject Numbaer;

Kihg County Housing Authority WA19P002707-98
The HA hersby oertifies 1o the Department of Housing and Urban Davelopment es follows:
1. That the total amount of Modemnization Cost (herein celled the *Actus! Modérnization Cost") of the Modemization Grant, Is as shown bolow:

A. Original Funde Approved $ 6,203,350.00
B. Funds Disbursed $ 6,203,350.00
C. Funds Expended (Actual Modstnization Cost) $ 6,203,350.00
D. Amount to be Recaptured (A-C) $ o
E. Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) $ ~O—

2. That all mogernization work in connaction with the ModemIzation Grant has been completed:
3, That the entire Actual Modernization Cost or liablities therefor incurred by the HA have baen fully paid;

4. That there are no undhch:f?od mechanicy’, laborers', contractors’, or meterial-men's liens sgainst such madernization
work on file in any public office whare the same should be filed in order to be valld against such modemization work: and

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired,

1 hereby certity that all tha Information stated hervin, as well 3¢ any information provided In the sccompeniment herswith, Is trus and acourste,
Warning: HUD will prosacute falea Slaims and statamenis. Conviction may rasult in oriminal and/or civil panalties. (18 U.8.C, 1001, 1040, 1012; 31 U.8,C. 3720, 3802)

Signature of Exacutive Director & Dats:

x @ﬂ @ [L: 3/ /s,/as

For HUD Use Only
The Cost Cortificate Is approved for eudit:

Approved for Audit (Director, Offica of Public Housing /,ONAP Administraler) Dste:
, - o / V/

The audittd costs sgree With the Costs showh sbove:

Verified:  (Designated HUD Official) Date:
X
Approved: (Dirsctor, Ofice of Public Houslng / ONAP Administrator) Date;
X
form HUD-E3001 (10/06)

rof Handbooks 7485,1 &.3

Washington State Auditor's Office
67





] i U.S. Department of Housin OMB Approvai No, 2577-0044 (sxp. 04/30/2004)
ACtual Mo.dernizat'on and Urbpan Development ¢ OMB Approval No, 2577-0157 (exp. 12/31/89)
Cost Certificate Office of Public and Indlan Housing

Comprehensive improvement Assistancs Program (CIAP)’
Comprehensive Grant Program (CGP)

Public reporting burden for this coliection of information is estimated to sverage 2 hours per résponse, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching
existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this
burden estimats or any other aspect of this coilection of information, including auggeations for reducing this burden, to the Reparts Management Officer,
Papserwork Reduction Project (2577-0044 and 0157), Offics of information Technology, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Washington, D.C.
20410-3600. This agency may not conduct or sponsor, and 8 person is not required to respond to, 8 collection of information uniess thet collectlon displays
a valid OM8 control numbaer,

Do not send this form to the above addron.

This collaction of information requires that sach Housing Authority {HA) submit informaiion to enmbie HUD to initiate the fiscal closeout process. The
informetion wili be used by HUD to determine whether the modernization grant is ready (o be audited and closed out. The information is essentlal for sudit
verification and flscal ciose out Responses to the collection are required by regulation. The Information requested does not tend itseif to confidentiality.
HA Name: Modemization Project Numbsr:

KRing County Housing Authority WA19002706-97
The HA hereby certifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:
1. That the total amount of Modemnization Cost (herein cailed the “Actual Modemization Cost”) of the Modemization Grant, Is as shown below:

A. Original Funds Approved $ 5,434,618.00
. ds Di
8. Funds Disbursed _ $ 5,434,618.00
-C. Funds Expended (Actual Modemizstion Cost $
pendad ( m o8t 5,434,618.00
D. .Amount to be Recaptured (A=C) $ -
E. Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) $
~0-

2. That all modemization work In connection with the Modemlzation Grant has been completed;
3. That the entire Actual Modernization Cost or liabiiitiss therefor incurred by the HA have been fully paid;

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics', laborers’, contractors', or material~men's llens against such moderntzation
work on file in any public office where the same shouid be filed in order to be valld against such modemization work; and

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has explred.

| heraby certify thst sil the informstion stated herein, as well as any Information provided in the accompaniment herawith, Is (rue snd accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute faise ciaims and statements. Conviction may result In criminal snd/or civil peneities. (18 U.8.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.8.C. 3728, 3802)

Signature of Executive Director & Dats:

x //K “YWee/ps

For RUD Use Only /'
The Cost Certifigate is approved for audit:

Approved for sAit (Director, Office of Public Housing / ONAP Adminiatrator) Date:
7 ,07 % 5, 3 2 /5

X

The audited costs agree with the costs shown above:
Verified:  (Designated HUD Official) Date:
X
Approved: (Director, Office of Public Housing / ONAP Adfnlnlstrntor) Date:
X

form HUD-53001 (10/96)
ref Handbooks 7485.1 &.3
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Washington State Auditor
Brian Sonntag

April 2, 2007

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

Report on Financial Statements and Federal Single Audit

Please find attached our report on the King County Housing Authority’s financial statements and
compliance with federal laws and regulations.

We are issuing this report in order to provide information on the Housing Authority’s financial condition.

In addition to this work, we look at other areas of our audit client’s operations for compliance with state
laws and regulations. The results of that audit will be included in a separately issued accountability
report.

Sincerely,

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM
STATE AUDITOR

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021 » Olympia, Washington 98504-0021 * (360) 902-0370 * (866) 902-3900 = TDD Relay (800) 833-6388
FAX (360) 753-0646 * http://www.sao.wa.gov
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Federal Summary

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006

The results of our audit of the King County Housing Authority are summarized below in accordance with
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133.

An unqualified opinion was issued on the Housing Authority’s financial statements.

We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the
Housing Authority.

We noted significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over major federal
programs that we consider to be reportable conditions.

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Housing Authority’s compliance with requirements
applicable to its major federal programs.

We reported a finding, which is required to be disclosed under OMB Circular A-133.

We noted in our Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements that the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards was fairly presented.

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by
OMB Circular A-133, was $3,066,900.

The Housing Authority qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133.

The following were major programs during the period under audit:

CFDA No. Program Title

14.218 Community Development Block Grants —- Entitlement and (HUD Administered)
14.219 Community Development Block Grants — Small Cities Cluster

14.248 Community Development Block Grants/Section 108 Loan Guarantees

14.866 Demolition and Revitalization of Severely Distressed Public Housing

14.872 Public Housing Capital Fund
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Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and
Questioned Costs

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006

The King County Housing Authority does not have internal controls in
place and working to ensure compliance with the period of availability.

Background

The Housing Authority received $5,281,580 in U.S. Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Community Development Block Grant Section 108 loans (CFDA 14.248) for the Greenbridge
project. This amount is a small part of the funding received for the project, which consists of the
revitalization of the Park Lake Homes Public Housing Development in an unincorporated King
County neighborhood. Total grant money spent from all grant sources for this project was
approximately $17 million during fiscal year 2006. A part of that project is the relocation of the
White Center Food Bank.

Description of Condition

The loan contract with HUD includes a stipulation that the loan proceeds could not be used for
permitting or construction expenses related to the White Center Food Bank prior to January 1,
2005. We determined that the second reimbursement request for this loan, dated August 19,
2005, included $30,195.88 in costs related to the White Center Food Bank that occurred prior to
January 1, 2005.

Cause of Condition

The Housing Authority did not have sufficient internal controls to ensure compliance with the
period of availability compliance requirement stipulated in the loan contract. Housing Authority
personnel responsible for monitoring reimbursement requests had a process to identify dates of
expenditures, but they were not aware of the provision in the contract that precluded the
reimbursement of White Center Food Bank costs incurred prior to January 1, 2005. The Financial
Manager also stated that Housing Authority personnel were not aware of the contract stipulation
until after the start of the audit.

Effect of Condition

The Housing Authority received $30,195.88 of loan money for which it was not entitled. We are
questioning these costs as not being allowable under the terms of the agreement.

Recommendation

We recommend the Housing Authority establish adequate internal controls to ensure compliance
with federal grant requirements. In addition, we recommend the Housing Authority ensure that
employees who administer the grant have read and understand all requirements stated in the
contract.
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Housing Authority Response

The Housing Authonty contacted King County Housing and Community Development
immediately upon discovering the ineligible food bank permitting expenses and proposed fo
reverse the expenses. The County accepted this remedy. The reimbursement request
effectuating these changes will be sent to the County before the end of February 2008.

The Housing Authonty has since hired a full-time grant coordinator to oversee all grants. The
grant coordinator will leam about funding requirements, inform staff of fund requirements and
assist the Finance Manager in completing reimbursement requests. Along with other checks and
balances, the Housing Authority believes the above actions and new procedures will prevent
future billing errors.

Auditor Response

We appreciate the actions taken by the Housing Authority to correct the condition identified. We
will follow up on the condition during our next regularly scheduled audit.

Applicable Laws and Regulations

Title 24, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 85.23 - Period of availability of funds, states:

(a) General. Where a funding period is specified, a grantee may charge to the
award only costs resulting from obligations of the funding period unless carryover
of unobligated balances is permitted, in which case the carryover balances may
be charged for costs resulting from obligations of the subsequent funding period.

The Greenbridge Forgivable Loan and Subrecipient Agreement dated July 28, 2005, between the
King County Housing Authority and King County, Article | 1.4 Expenditures and Loan proceeds,
states:

The loan proceeds may not be used for permitting and construction expenses for
the White Center Food Bank that occurred prior to January 1, 2005.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on internal
Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters in Accordance
with Government Audliting Standards

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely
presented component units of the King County Housing Authority, King County, Washington, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the Housing Authority's basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 7, 2007. Our report was modified to
include a reference to other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The financial statements of the
discretely presented component units were not audited in accordance with Govemment Auditing
Standards.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters
in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition
in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material
in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period
by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving
internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Housing Authority’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the Housing Authority's compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, the objective of
our audit of the financial statements was not to provide an opinion on overall compliance with these
provisions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
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The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported herein under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended for the information and use of management, the Board of Commissioners, federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its
distribution is not limited. It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help
citizens assess government operations.

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM

STATE AUDITOR

February 7, 2007
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance
with Requirements Applicable to each Major
Program and Internal Control over Compliance
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

COMPLIANCE

We have audited the compliance of the King County Housing Authority, King County, Washington, with
the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2006. The Housing Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the Federal
Summary. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its
major federal programs is the responsibility of the Housing Authority's management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Housing Authority’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the Housing Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Housing
Authority's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Housing Authority complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2006. However, the
results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with those requirements,
which is required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding 1.
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

The management of the Housing Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Housing Authority’s internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133.

We noted certain matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider
to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, in our
judgment, could adversely affect the Housing Authority’s ability to administer a major federal program in
accordance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. Reportable
conditions are described in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and Questioned Costs
as Finding 1.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with
applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants caused by error or fraud that would be
material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our
consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
reportable conditions that are considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe none of the
reportable conditions described above is a material weakness.

This report is intended for the information of management, the Board of Commissioners, federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is
not limited. It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens
assess government operations.

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM

STATE AUDITOR

February 7, 2007
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial
Statements

King County Housing Authority
July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006

Board of Commissioners
King County Housing Authority
Tukwila, Washington

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate
discretely presented component units of the King County Housing Authority, King County, Washington, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the Housing Authority’s basic
financial statements as listed on page 10. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Housing Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the tax credit partnerships identified in
Note 11, which represent 100 percent of the assets, net assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely
presented component units of the Housing Authority. Those financial statements were audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for the aggregate discretely presented component units, is based solely on the reports of the
other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. The financial statements of the discretely presented component units were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports
of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type
activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of the King County Housing Authority,
as of June 30, 2006, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof, for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report on our consideration
of the Housing Authority’'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal contro! over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 11 through 17 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
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management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Housing Authority's basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. The accompanying HUD forms are supplemental information required by HUD. These
schedules are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statements for the Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A are also
presented for purposes of additional analysis. These statements are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such supplemental information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The Schedule of Expenditures of State and Local Awards is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information presented for purposes of additional analysis. Such
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM

STATE AUDITOR

February 7, 2007
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

This first section of the annual financial report presents a discussion and analysis of King County Housing
Authority’s (KCHA) financial performance during the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2006. It should be read
in conjunction with the Authority's financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

KCHA administers a broad range of federally and locally financed housing programs serving an area of
over 2,134 square miles, covering all of King County outside of the cities of Seattie and Renton. The King
County Housing Authority owns or manages 8,427 units of housing and provides rental subsidies to 8,500
additional households. The majority of KCHA’s program participants have incomes below 20% of area
median income. KCHA's inventory includes 3,024 units of public housing in King County and in the city of
Olympia, which lies outside of King County. In addition, KCHA manages two public housing sites via
contract in the City of Sedro Woolley.

The financial statements included in this report are in conformance with the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board’s (GASB) financial model as set forth in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements—Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, GASB
Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements—Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and
Local Governments: Omnibus, and GASB Statement No. 38, Cerfain Financial Statement Note
Disclosures.

The financial performance discussed in the following analysis does not include tax credit partnerships.
The tax credit properties (18 sites/2,150 component units) are owned by separate limited
partnerships/corporations with the Authority acting as general partner/managing member. With the
exception of Harrison House and Valley Park East and West, all tax credit properties are fee managed by
outside private property management firms. Because of this different corporate structure, their operations
are not carried directly on the books of the Authority. Neither these units, nor their financial data, are
included in the analysis and financial reports that follow.

FISCAL YEAR 2006 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
* Total assets of the Authority exceeded total liabilities at June 30, 2006 by $198.1 million.

e Total change in net assets (operating and non-operating net income) for the 2006 Fiscal Year
was $21.0 million.

* Operating expenses were $103.0 million and include $51.4 million in housing assistance
payments made to landlords, or 50% of operating expenses.

EUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The operations of the Authority consist of proprietary funds, which are designed to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with external finance-related requirements. The measurement focus for
proprietary fund accounting is similar to that used in the private sector, which emphasizes the
determination of net income and capital maintenance.

Many of the funds maintained by the Authority are required by the federal Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD). Others are segregated to enhance accountability and control.
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AUTHORITY-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Authority-wide financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all business type
activities are consolidated into columnar format, presenting totals by category for the entire Authority.

These statements include a Statement of Net Assets, which is similar to a balance sheet. The statement
of net assets reports all financial and capital resources for the Authority. The statement is presented in
the format where assets equal liabilities plus “net assets”, formerly known as equity. Assets and liabilities
are presented in order of liquidity, and are classified as “current” (convertible into cash within one year),
and “non-current”,

The focus of the statement of net assets is designed to represent the net available liquid (non-capital)
assets, net of liabilities, for the entire Authority. Net assets are reported in three broad categories:

Net Assets, Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt: This component of net assets consists
of all capital assets, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Assets: This component of net assets consists of restricted assets, when constraints
are placed on the asset by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws,
regulations, etc net of any offsetting, associated liabilities.

Unrestricted Net Assets: This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not meet the
definition of “Net Assets Invested in Capital Assets, Net of related Debt”, or “Restricted Net Assets”.

The Authority-wide financial statements also include a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Net Assets (similar to an income statement). This statement includes operating revenues, such as
rental income, operating expenses such as administrative, utilities, and maintenance, and depreciation,
and non-operating revenue and expenses, such as grant revenue, investment income and interest
expense. The focus of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets is the “Change
in Net Assets” which is similar to Net Income or Loss.

Finally, a Statement of Cash Flows is included, which discloses net cash provided by, or used for
operating activities, non-capital financing activities and from capital and related financing activities.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY

Condensed Statement of Net Assets:

Table A-1 presents the Authority’s Condensed Statement of Net Assets for fiscal years 2006 and 2005.
The purpose of the statement is to provide a snapshot of the financial condition of the Authority at a
certain point in time. Presented are the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the Authority at the end of the
fiscal year. Supplementary information is provided in the accompanying notes that further explain and
support the data presented in table A-1.

Current and other assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 are $218.1 million, and are comprised of
several categories. Included in total current and other assets are $48.7 million in cash and cash
equivalents, and $18.3 million in net accounts receivables. Net accounts receivables include balances
applicable to HUD-related projects. The majority of the increase from the $7.7 million in net accounts
receivables that were reported in fiscal year 2005 was primarily due to an increase in the current portion
of notes and financing leases, of which $10.9 million was related to non component-unit transactions
involving the Harrison House and Green River tax credit properties.
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Capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 are $228.0 million. Included in this category are
land and improvements, buildings and improvements, personal property, construction-in-progress on the
Greenbridge project, and other assets that qualify within the capital asset financial threshold of $5,000
and the depreciable lives guidelines, which vary depending on the type of the asset. The $29.6 million
net increase in capital assets from fiscal year 2005 includes; $2.0 million related to acquisition of the 90-
unit Meadows at Lea Hill, $16.1 million related to the Greenbridge project, $2.7 million related to
Springwood, and $3.4 million related to the ESCO (energy management design and solutions through
increased efficiencies and decreased power and energy costs) initiative. More detailed information about
KCHA's capital assets is presented in the notes to the financial statements.

Current and other liabilities, excluding long-term debt, were $27.8 million for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2006, an increase of $10.4 million from 2005. This increase is primarily due to the reclassification
from long-term to current of a $10.9 million line of credit related to the Harrison House and Valley Park
housing developments. This debt was repaid in January 2007.

Total net assets increased by $23.1 million during fiscal year 2006, of which $2.1 million was related to an
accounting adjustment to the fiscal year 2005 ending balance. Net assets represent the Authority's
equity, a portion of which is restricted for certain uses. The $11.4 million increase of invested capital
assets, net of related debt and the $15.3 million increase in unrestricted net assets were both significantly
factored by capitalization related to the Greenbridge project, which also impacted investments in work-in-
progress activities.

Table A-1, Condensed Statement of Net Assets M

Condensed Statement

of Net Assets
Assets: FY 2006 FY 2005
Current and other assets $218,145,755 $205,984,298
Capital assets 227,960,465 198,366,758
Total Assets 446,106,220 404,351,056
Liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current 220,220,985 211,962,736
Current and other liabilities 27,829,225 17,404,720
Total Liabilities 248,050,210 229,367,456
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 101,050,560 89,697,742
Restricted 18,065,818 21,151,316
Unrestricted 78,939,632 64,134,542
Total Net Assets $198,056,010 $174,983,600

(1) Component units are not included.
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets:

The purpose of the “Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets” is to
present the revenues earned by the Authority (both operating and non-operating) and the expenses
incurred (operating and non-operating), and any other revenues, expenses, gains and losses received or
spent by the Authority. Table A-2 represents the Authority’s Condensed Statement of Revenues
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets for fiscal years 2006 and 2005;

Table A-2, Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expense, and Changes in Net Assets m

Condensed Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

FY 2006 FY 20058

Operating Revenues $33,450,755 $32,693,245
Nonoperating revenues 89,594,618 87,539,442

Total Revenues 123,045,373 120,232,687
Operating expenses 102,950,928 105,559,798
Nonoperating expenses 11,494,372 13,693,991

Total Expenses 114,445,300 119,253,789
Excess or deficiency before contributions 8,600,073 978,898
Capital grant contributions 14,913,604 14,536,932
Special item (2,541,205)
Change in Net Assets 20,972,472 15,515,830
Beginning Net Assets 174,983,600 159,467,770
Accounting Adjustment (2) 2,099,939 0
Ending Net Assets $198,056,011 $174,983,600

(1) Component units are not included.

(2) Adjustment for accounting error, opening balance.

Revenues are classified as operating, non-operating or capital grants. Table A-3 shows the sources of
revenues for fiscal years 2006 and 2005 as a percentage of all revenues. As can be seen, the overall
relative contribution for each revenue type remained constant from FY 2005 to FY 2006.

Table A-3, Sources of Revenue

Revenues by Category as a Percentage
of Total Revenue
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A $2.1 million prior year adjustment, related to the Young's Lake property, is included in the fiscal year
2006 Change in Net Assets. More detailed information about this adjustment is presented in the notes to
the financial statements.

Operating expenses are amounts paid for providing housing services to the Authority’s tenants and
administering the various programs. Total operating expenses for fiscal year 2006 were $103.0 million
(please refer to Table A-2), which is a decrease of $2.6 million in comparison to fiscal year 2005. Costs
included in operating expenses are: administrative, tenant services, property maintenance, utilities, HUD
housing assistance payments and depreciation. With the exception of housing assistance payments,
which decreased by $5.6 million, all other categories within operating expenses increased for Fiscal Year
2006. Operating expenses are supported through both operating revenues of $33.4 million and non-
operating revenues of $89.6 million. Table A-4 illustrates how the $103.0 million in operating expenses
are broken down by category:

Table A4, Operating Expenses

Expenses by Category as a Percentage
of Total Expenses
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

During fiscal year 2006, KCHA invested more than $45.9 million in net capitalized property improvements
and purchases, with the HOPE VI Greenbridge project accounting for 61% of this capitalized total. When
completed, the HOPE VI project will provide 900-1100 units of quality rental and homeownership housing
for a diverse mix of existing public housing residents and newcomers. Greenbridge constitutes the
majority of the Construction in Progress increase between fiscal years of $22.0 million. Funding for
KCHA's public housing capital improvement projects is provided through HUD's Capital Fund Program.
This program funded $7.9 million in public housing improvements in Fiscal Year 2006. Improvements for
the project-based Section 8 Housing program (3 sites/174 units) totaled $1.6 million for fiscal year 2006
and benefited primarily the Burien Park and Northwood Apartment complexes. In addition, the Authority
acquired a new apartment building, Meadows at Lea Hill, for $1.9 million.

Table A-5, Capital Assets

Capital Assets

FY 2006 FY 2005
Land $ 69,487,939 66,071,639
Buildings and Improvements 203,620,477 195,124,140
Furniture, Equipment & Machinery 6,543,527 7,057,577
Construction in Progress 69,560,834 47,519,854

349,212,777 315,773,210
Total accumuiated depreciation (121,252,312) (117,406,452)
Net Capital Assets $227,960,465 $198,366,758

The Authority has issued various forms of debt for the purpose of acquiring and rehabilitating projects
located throughout King County. At fiscal year-end, the Authority has over $220 million in net long-term
bonds and notes outstanding (as shown in table A-6). More detailed information about KCHA's debt is
presented in the notes to the financial statements. Included in the other noncurrent liabilities category
are: payments in lieu of taxes, Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) escrow accounts, and deferred revenues.

KCHA has entered into an Energy Services Contract (ESCO) to implement energy conservation
measures in its public housing inventory. Water usage has been reduced 30% since the ESCO initiative
was implemented. Under a financing agreement with the Siemens Company, $3.8 million is being used
to install energy and water conservation measures. The investment will be repaid from utility cost savings
over the next 12 years.

Table A-6, Long-term Debt

Long-Term Debt & Other Noncurrent Liabilities

FY 2006 FY 2005
Long-term, net of current portion 3 220,220,985 211,962,736
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,380,210 1,737,740
Total long-term debt & other noncurrent labilities $224,601,195 $213,700,476
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING THE AUTHORITY'S FUTURE

KCHA faces an uncertain future with regards to federal funding and the mounting capital needs of an
aging public housing inventory. Federal budget cuts enacted and proposed by Congress continue to be
the greatest economic challenge facing all housing authorities across the nation. For the King County
Housing Authority, the majority of its operations are dependant on funding from HUD (the Department of
Housing and Urban Development), including Public Housing, Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers and
most of the operating and capital grants. if the reductions in funding public housing continue, baseline
levels at which HUD funds housing authorities will not be sufficient to cover operating costs or maintain
infrastructure of the Authority’s housing assets.

As evidenced by its financial plan for fiscal year 2007, King County Housing Authority’s primary objective
remains to strengthen its existing programs while being as proactive as possible in improving the way that
it does business and helps people.

The Site Based Management (SBM) project is now fully operational and in conformity with current HUD
requirements. KCHA expects to realize material efficiencies in personnel costs, fleet usage and
purchasing/inventory through this restructuring. The SBM plan will directly impact most KCHA
departments.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the Housing Authority's finances and to demonstrate KCHA's accountability for
its resources. Any questions about this report, or requests for additional information, should be directed
to the Director of Finance of the King County Housing Authority.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
As of June 30, 2006

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net

Investments

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Land, buildings and equipment, net
Noncurrent receivables
Other noncurrent assets

Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES and NET ASSETS:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of long term debt
Other current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt, net of current
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total Long-Term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted net assets
Unrestricted net assets
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES and NET ASSETS

AUTHORITY

$ 47,145,078
2,156,420
18,311,607
1,613,377
632,000

69,858,482

1,597,625
17,073,359
227,960,465
126,717,547
2,898,742

376,247,738
5 446,106,220

14,569,565
8,879,450

23,449,015

220,220,985
4,380,210

224,601,195
248,050,210

101,050,560
18,065,818
78,939,632

198,056,010
_S 446,106,220

COMPONENT
UNITS

$

1,818,807
149,823
303,900

2,272,530

2,890,553
8,295,018
152,888,903

1,578,664

165,653,138
167,925,668

6,696,707
5,528,033

12,224,740

120,235,165

120,235,165

132,459,905

25,957,031
11,185,571
(1,676,839)

$

35,465,763
167,925,668

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

COMPONENT
AUTHORITY UNITS
OPERATING REVENUES
Tenant revenue $ 29,732,198 $ 15,593,340
Other revenue 3,718,557 583,720
Total Operating Revenues 33,450,755 16,177,060
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 19,576,244 3,594,522
Tenant services 3,546,110 -
Maintenance 14,568,853 2,063,539
Utilities 5,409,663 1,784,328
Housing assistance payments 51,433,680 -
Depreciation 6,675,549 5,480,224
Other expenses 1,740,829 1,317,417
Total Operating Expenses 102,950,928 14,240,030
Operating Income (Loss) (69,500,173) 1,937,030
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
HUD subsidies and grant revenue 75,662,820 -
Other government grants 4,123,889 -
Investment income 9,807,908 328,624
Interest expense (11,466,228) (6,052,064)
Other revenue (expense) (28,144) (76,761)
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 78,100,245 (5,800,201)
INCOME (LOSS) before contributions and special items 8,600,072 (3,863,171)
Capital grant contributions 14,913,604
Capital contributions 6,444,677
Special item (2,541,205)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 20,972,471 $ 2,581,506
Total Net Assets -- beginning 174,983,600 32,884,257
Prior period adjustment 2,099,939
Restated Total Net Assets -- beginning 177,083,539 32,884,257
Total Net Assets -- ending $ 198,056,010 $ 35,465,763

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Interest paid on capital debt
Other receipts (payments)

(11,399,515)
(614,325)

COMPONENT
AUTHORITY UNITS
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from tenants $ 30,259,179 $ 15,564,456
Payments to employees (16,096,992) (2,109,405)
Payments to suppliers of goods and services (28,784,119) (6,845,766)
Payments to landlords (50,057,326) -
Payments received from (made to) other housing authorities (382,497) -
Other receipts (payments) 2,017,859 583,720
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (63,043,897) 7,193,005
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from HUD 75,982,188 -
Receipts from other governments 4,772,418 -
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 80,754,606 -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital grant contributions 14,913,604
Capital contributions - 6,444,677
Purchase of capital assets (43,961,529) a) (3,634,299)
Net proceeds capital asset disposal 62,869 b) 46,481
Proceeds from issuance of capital debt 22,607,371 a) -
Principal payments on capital debt (4,640,517) d) (4,255,885)

(5,573,289)

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (23,032,042) (6,972,315)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net sale (purchase) of investments 267,096 (3,704,646)
Investment in notes and financing leases (1,588,502) c) -
Payments received on notes and financing leases 3,703,532
Investment income -- notes and financing leases 6,722,792 -
Investment income -- other 2,376,115 328,688
Other receipts (payments) 29,262 -
Net cash provided by investing activities 11,510,295 (3,375,958)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,188,963 (3,155,268)
Cash and cash equivalents -- beginning of the year 44,710,161 7,864,628
Cash and cash equivalents -- end of the year $ 50,899,123 $ 4,709,360
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) (69,500,173) 1,937,030
Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net cash:
Depreciation expense 6,675,549 5,480,224
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net 459,150 (55,272)
Inventories and other 206,402 -
Accounts and other payables (884,824) (168,977)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (63,043,897) $ 7,193,005

Non-cash transactions that would have been reported in the capital and investing sections if the transactions had involved a

cash exchange.

a) Excludes $1,985,802 Meadows at Lea Hill capital assets acquired by bond and line of credit.
b) Excludes $11,675,717 noncash proceeds from the lease of capital assets to the Seola Crossing LLC.
¢) Excludes $9,675,717 notes and leases acquired from Seola Crossing LLC in exchange for the Seola Crossing housing

d) Excludes $2,000,000 debt assumed by the Seola Crossing LLC in exchange for the Seola housing project.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

The following notes are an integral part of the financial statements of the Housing Authority of the County
of King.

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are described below.

a) THE AUTHORITY

The Housing Authority of the County of King (the “Authority”) was created in 1939 as a municipal
corporation under the provisions of the State Housing Authorities Law (RCW 35.82) and the Housing
Cooperation Law (RCW 35.83) in response to the Federal Housing Act of 1937. The Act created the
United States Housing Authority, empowering it to make loans and annual contributions to local public
housing agencies to assist in the development, acquisition and administration of low rent projects. The
programs authorized under the Act, as amended, are now administered by the Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD). The Authority is not a component unit of King County.

The Authority operates in all of King County, except within the cities of Seattle and Renton, and in the city
of Olympia. The Authority also serves as the management agent for the Housing Authority of the City of
Sedro-Woolley in Skagit County. Of the State’s 39 counties, King County ranks eleventh in geographical
size and first in population. The County is the financial, economic and industrial center of the entire
Pacific Northwest region. The Authority’s jurisdiction encompasses an area of over 2,100 square miles
and a population estimated at 1.7 million representing aimost 30% of the state’s total population. The
Authority has its central office in Tukwila. A five-member Board of Commissioners appointed for five-year
terms by the Metropolitan-King County Council governs the Authority. The Authority's commissioners
serve without pay.

The Authority has been granted a broad range of powers to provide housing assistance to low-income
households. The nationally recognized definition of a low-income family is a household earning less than
80 percent of the area’'s median income, adjusted for family size. The Authority administers federally and
locally financed housing programs that serve a variety of housing needs including the following:

FEDERALLY ASSISTED HOUSING PROGRAMS

Low Rent Public Housing — The Authority owns, operates and maintains 49 projects consisting of 3,024
units of public housing of which 1,820 units are for the low-income elderly and disabled. The properties
were acquired through bonds and notes guaranteed by HUD and through grants from HUD. Revenues
consist of rents and other fees collected from tenants and an operating subsidy received from HUD.
Typically residents pay 30% of their adjusted income in rents. Two thirds of public housing residents earn
less than 20% of the area median income, with almost 80% having some form of entitlement payment as
their main source of income. The Authority's subsidy is received under an Annual Contributions Contract
to offset the cost of operating the units. HUD also provides funds to maintain and improve the public
housing projects under the Capital Fund Program. Historically, all additions to land, structures and
equipment of public housing are accomplished through these capital grant funds.
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Tenant Based Housing Choice Vouchers -- The Authority provides rental assistance payments to
approximately 6,850 households who live in private rental housing. Funded by HUD pursuant to Section
8 of the U.S. Housing Act, this program allows participating families and individuals to choose their own
housing with the use of a housing voucher. Generally the participant pays no more than 30% of income
towards rent and the Authority pays the remainder. The Authority targets this program to the elderly,
disabled households and families that are homeless or at the risk of homelessness. Program participants
average 15% of area median income.

Project Based Section 8 Housing. The Authority owns seven developments with 446 units subsidized
under the Section 8 program. Under this program, subsidies attach to qualifying housing units rather than
to qualifying individuals or families. The Authority built three of these projects under the Section 8 New
Construction program. The Authority purchased the other four projects under the Preservation Program
to prevent loss of affordability upon their sale by private owners.

UNASSISTED LOCALLY FINANCED HOUSING PROGRAMS

Tax-Exempt Bond Financed-The Authority has acquired 16 apartment complexes totaling 2,321 units
through the issuance of tax-exempt bonds. These properties receive no operating subsidy from the
Federal government or any other State or local source. The Authority acquired the properties in order to
place selected housing developments within the public domain so that rents could be maintained as low
as possible over time. Typically these units have a broad mix of residents with the majority having
income below 80% of area median.

Homeownership-The Authority owns three mobile home parks located in South King County. Under this
program, the residents own their manufactured homes and pay rent to the Authority for the land on which
the home sits. ’

Tax Credit-In 1994, the Authority began partnering with limited partnerships and limited liability
corporations (hereafter referred to as “partnerships”) to acquire and develop additional affordable housing
(see Note 9). The Authority is general partner/managing member (hereafter referred to as “general
partner”) in fifteen partnerships representing eighteen housing complexes comprising 2,150 units.

Non-Profit Agreements-During the 1980's, the Authority acquired an inventory of sixteen different housing
developments comprising 303 units of housing. Fourteen of these projects remain comprising 149 units
leased to non-profit service providers for the benefit of the economically disadvantaged, developmentally
disabled, transitional, homeless and other groups who have traditionally experienced barriers in finding
housing.

OTHER PROGRAMS

Housing Repair and Weathernization. -- The Authority receives federal and state money to provide housing
rehabilitation loans and weatherization grants to low-income homeowners and renters. The Authority has
been administering these types of programs since 1975. In 2006, the Authority assisted over 1,008
families in repairing or weatherizing their homes.

Human Service Programs -- The Authority serves a wide variety of people with special needs such as the
elderly, the physically and developmentally disabled, the homeless and the mentally ill. The Authority
works in partnership with nearly 20 different agencies that provide human services and job training
programs focused on residents in the Authority's developments. For example, the Authority has
established Head Start classrooms at two of its sites, and has Boys and Girls Club programs at two other
sites. Counseling, educational, recreational and nutrition services are provided by community-based
organizations like the YWCA. These contracted services are partially funded using federal grants, which
the Authority receives in a competitive process for periods of one to three years.

Hope VI Redevelopment Project — The Authority was awarded a $35 million HOPE VI grant in November
2001 to begin revitalization of the Park Lake Homes public housing development in the unincorporated
King County neighborhood of White Center. The project, named Greenbridge to symbolize the vision and
character of the new community, will provide quality housing and homeownership opportunities for a
diverse mixture of residents and newcomers. It will replace 569 units of severely distressed public
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housing with a new 800-1100 unit mixed-income community. The new community will feature 300 units of
housing affordable to the same population that now lives at Park Lake Homes, 200-300 units of workforce
rental housing and 300-500 for-sale homes. This quality new housing will include a range of housing
types to suit seniors, adults with disabilities, large families, low- to moderate-income renters and first-time
homebuyers. In fiscal year 2006, the first phase of the first housing development, Seola Crossing I, was
leased to a limited liability corporation (LLC). The second phase, Seola Crossing 2, will transfer to the
LLC during fiscal year 2007.

b} BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Accounting records are maintained according to the proprietary fund model that is similar to private
business enterprises. The Authority applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. As
allowed by GASB reporting standards, the Authority has elected not to apply FASB Statements and
Interpretations, APB opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee of Accounting
Procedures issued after November 30, 1989.

¢} ACCOUNTS ORGANIZED BY FUNDS

The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues and expenditures. Each fund is, with
limited exceptions, an independent fund and is restricted by contract or regulation from assisting or being
assisted financially by any other fund. A list of developments is provided in Appendix A. The Authority
administers the Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley. Its financial statements are audited
separately and are not combined with the Authority’s statements.

d) USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

e) COMPONENT UNITS

The Authority serves as general partner in several partnerships (see Note 9). These partnerships
constitute component units of the Authority as defined by GASB Statement 14 because they are separate
legal entities and subject to the Authority’s will and financial accountability. As general partner, the
Authority has issued bonds and other debt instruments to finance the purchase and renovation of rental
housing on behalf of the partnerships. The Authority also oversees the day-to-day operation of these
properties.

For Federal tax purposes, all of the partnerships have a calendar year-end, which is different from the
Authority’s year-end. GASB 14 states that if it is impractical for a component unit to have the same fiscal
year as the primary government, a component unit’s financial statements with an ending date occurring
during the primary government’s fiscal year should be incorporated into the financial statements of the
reporting entity. Accordingly, the partnership financial data for the year ended December 31, 2005 is
incorporated into the Authority’s statements. The data for all partnerships is combined and discretely
presented in a separate column on the face of the Authority’s financial statements. Each partnership is
audited separately. Copies of these audited statements can be obtained by contacting the Authority.
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) REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
Authority are tenant revenues. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The basis for recognition of revenues and expenses is the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned. Expenses are recorded when incurred. Revenue from operating subsidies and
grants is classified as non-operating revenue. Revenue from capital grants is classified as capital grant
contributions.

g) CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash consists of Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurable deposits with original
maturities of less than three months. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash. Investments include deposits with original maturities
exceeding three months, and securities and other assets held by trustees. Most assets held by trustees
are restricted for specific uses, including capital additions and improvements, debt service, and other
special reserve requirements by bond and other resolutions and other agreements. Restricted accounts
at June 30, 2006 include the following:

RESTRICTED
Cash & Cash
Equivalents Investments Total
Capital improvements $ 325,663 $ 6,754,252 $ 7,079,914
Debt service 8,993,624 8,993,624
Tenant security deposits 1,401,659 1,401,659
Other 2,026,723 1,325,483 3,352,206

$ 3754045 § 17,073,359 $ 20,827,404

h) RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist primarily of rents due from tenants, cost reimbursements due from grantors, and
loans and accrued interest due from the tax credit properties. Annually, tenant receivables are analyzed
and the allowance for doubtful accounts adjusted. Other receivable allowances are established for
uncertain collectibles. No allowances existed at June 30 other than the allowance for tenant accounts
receivable.

i) INVENTORIES

Inventory consists of supplies purchased primarily for use in maintenance of the rental units. The
perpetual method is used to account for inventory. As such, purchases are recorded into the inventory
account and, as items are used, the inventory account is reduced and the expense account is charged.
Periodically throughout the year, physical counts are taken of all supplies on hand and the inventory
records are adjusted. The weighted average method is used to value the inventory.
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) CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost in the land, structures, and equipment accounts and at
appraised fair market value at date of receipt if contributed. The Authority defines capital assets as
assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life of at least 3 years.
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method with depreciation commencing in the
acquisition year and ceasing in the disposal year. Capital project costs clearly associated with the
acquisition, development, and construction of a real estate project, including indirect costs and interest,
are capitalized as a cost of that project. As such, all costs directly associated with the Greenbridge
redevelopment project have been capitalized, including $138,000 in interest for fiscal year 2006. See
Note 4 for the capital asset components and balances at June 30, 2006 and fiscal year activity.

Depreciable lives for the capital asset categories follow:

Land no depreciation
Buildings and land improvements 27-45 years
Personal property 3-10 years
Construction-in-progress no depreciation

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred. Management reviews land, structures,
and equipment for possible impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. If there is an indication of impairment, management prepares an
estimate of future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If
these cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized to write
down the asset to its estimated fair value. Preparation of estimated expected future cash flows is
inherently subjective and is based on management's best estimate of assumptions concerning expected
future conditions.

k) TAXLIABILITY

The Authority is by law exempt from all federal, state, and local taxes and assessments. Several
developments make a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) based on contracts with local jurisdictions.

) COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the Authority’s policy to pay 100% of accumulated annual leave when an employee terminates
employment from the Authority. As such, the value of annual leave earned but not used at year-end is
accrued. Sick leave does not vest and is only paid to those separating from the Authority as retirees as
defined by the state pension system. Because the amount of such payments is difficult to estimate, an
accrual is made only when the actual payment amount is known.

m) INTERFUND ACCOUNTS

The Authority maintains a master paying and receiving account (King-Public Housing Fund). All cash
receipts and disbursements flow through this master account, except for disbursements to landlords
under the Section 8 Voucher program, which flows through a separate checking account (Section 8
Fund). Interfund payables and receivables (due to/from relationships) are created and used to account
for ownership of the funds.

n) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The fair value of interest rate swap agreements (See Note 6) is determined by dealer quote. These

values represent the estimated amount the Authority would receive or pay to terminate the agreements
taking into consideration current interest rates.
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0) COMMITMENTS

The Authority has entered into various long-term contracts for the development of the Greenbridge
project. As of June 30, 2006, the Authority was obligated under these contracts to purchase $32 million
of goods and services.

NOTE 2 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Authority is restricted in its cash deposits and investments to those allowed by RCW 35.82.070(6). In
general, deposits must be made with qualified financial institutions whose deposits are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

Insurance and Collateralization

Deposits that are in excess of the $100,000 insured amount must be continuously and fully (100%)
secured. Collateral, comprised of identifiable U.S. Government securities as prescribed by HUD, are
pledged or set aside to secure these deposits. The Public Deposit Protection Act in effect in the State of
Washington set up a multiple financial institution collateral pool to insure public deposits. This protection
is in the form of securities pledged as collateral to the Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC) by
all qualified depositories. In 1994, the Authority received a waiver from HUD that enabled it to make
deposits in excess of $100,000 in a qualified public depository because HUD determined that there were
“adequate safeguards against the loss of Public Housing Authority funds.” At June 30, 2006, a $500,000
of certificate of deposit exceeded the FDIC insured limit and was not collateralized. The deposit will be
converted in December 2006 when the certificate matures.

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Authority’s
investment policy limits the maximum maturity of an investment to not greater than three years.
Exceptions may be made for collateralization of repurchase agreements using investments not exceeding
30 years and for the investment of reserve funds, which can be invested up to 30 years if matched to an
anticipated future cash flow.

Credit Risk

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Washington State law, and the Authority’s
investment policy all limit the instruments in which the Authority may invest. Not all Authority funds have
the same restrictions. Following are some of the instruments in which any Authority funds, including
Federal funds, may be invested:

1) Direct obligations of the Federal government backed by the full faith and credit of the United States
a) U.S. Treasury Bills.
b) U.S. Treasury Notes and Bonds.
2) Obligations of Federal government agencies, such as:
a) Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) mortgage-backed securities.
b) GNMA participation securities.
¢) Maritime Administration Bonds.
d) Small Business Administration Bonds.
3) Securities of Government Sponsored Agencies, such as:
a) Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) notes and bonds.
b) Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) notes and bonds.
¢) Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) notes and bonds.
d) Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) notes and bonds.
e) Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA) notes and bonds.
4) Demand and savings accounts.
5) Money Market Deposit accounts.
8) Certain mutual funds.
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In addition to the above, non-federal funds and federal funds subject to the Authority’s Moving To Work
Agreement with HUD may be invested in the following which are allowed by the State of Washington:

1) Banker's acceptances purchased on the secondary market.

2) Commercial paper.

3) Bonds of the State of Washington or any local government of the State of Washington that have one
of the three highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency.

4) General obligation bonds of a state other than the State of Washington and general obligation bonds
of a local government of a state other than the State of Washington that have one of the three highest
credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency.

5) Utility revenues bonds or warrants of any city of town in the State of Washington.

6) Bonds or warrants of a local improvement district that is within the protection of the local improvement
guaranty fund law.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority diversifies its investments by security type and institution. The investment policy states:
“With the exception of U.S. Treasury securities, investment agreements for trustee held funds, and
authorized pools, no more than 15% of the Authority's total investment portfolio will be invested in a single
security type or with a single financial institution.

Other Information:
The Authority has established arrangements with the Bank of America for safekeeping of investments.

Valuation and Classification

Cash equivalents include an investment in a Local Government Investment Pool (the Pool). The Pool is
not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), but adheres to SEC Rule 2(a)(7) of
the Investment Company Act of 1940 that requires portfolio diversification, divestiture considerations and
action if the market value of the portfolio deviates more than .5 percent from the amortized costs.
Government pools that adhere to the SEC rule can report their investments at amortized costs if the
remaining maturities of the debt securities are 90 days or less. As of June 30, 2006, the pool had an
average days-to-maturity of 33 days and therefore is reported at cost. Government securities are
reported at fair value.

Certain cash deposits and investments are classified as restricted assets if their use for general operating
purposes is legally or contractually prohibited. Restricted cash and investments held by the Authority
comprise primarily tenant security deposits, debt service reserves, and reserves held for future capital
improvements on properties owned by the Authority. Cash deposits and investments at June 30, 2006
are categorized as follows.
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Unrestricted Restricted Total
Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand $ 8,336 § - $ 8,336
Depository accounts 1,269,948 1,401,659 2,671,607
Municipal Investors Account 1,921,897 - 1,921,897
Washington State Investment Pool 39,957,451 2,352,386 42,309,837
Westdeutsche Landesbank Collateralized

Repurchase Agreement, 5.27% 3,987,446 3,987,446

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 47,145,078 § 3,754,045 § 50,899,123

Investments:

Certificates of deposit, 3.10% to 5.00%, 11/9/2006 to

5/1/2017, 2.3 years weighted average maturity. $ 16,659 $ 1,728,136 $ 1,744,794
U.S. Treasury money market 495,137 7,209,039 7,704,176
Non-federal money market - 2,258,344 2,258,344
Repurchase agreement 105,421 105,421
Private Debt Obligations:
Westdeutshe Landesbank Gironzentrale, 5.42%, 7/1/2028 2,269,307 2,269,307
Bank of America 6.1% 7/1/2028 1,018,968 1,018,968
GNMA passthrough certificate, 6.25%, 9/15/2012 2,589,565 2,589,565
Federal Farm Credit Bank Note, 2.375%, 10/02/06 996,160 996,160

TOTAL INVESTMENTS . $ 1,613,377 $ 17,073,359 8 18,686,736

TOTAL $ 48,758,455 § 20,827,404 $ 69,585,859

NOTE 3 —-NOTE AND FINANCING LEASE RECEIVABLES

The notes and financing leases held by the Authority are primarily the result of the Authority's
transactions with the tax credit partnerships. The notes were issued for fees earned by the Authority from
developing the rental properties and for funds advanced to the partnerships to purchase and rehabilitate
the properties. The notes earn interest at varying rates up 8.5% per annum. The financing leases were
acquired when the Authority executed “in-substance” purchases of rental properties then transferred
substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership to the partnerships. See Note 9 - Tax Credit
Partnerships, for further discussion of the Authority’s financial relationship with the partnerships.

A summary of the notes and direct financing leases receivable at June 30, 2006 follows.

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Payments Balance Portion
Notes
Tax credit properties:
Developer fee $ 12,591,011 § 25680 $ (893,588) $ 11,723,103 3 675,080
Other 62,436,534 3,820,827 (1,991,996) 64,265,365 11,325,101
Other properties: 2,916,849 667,195 (52,661) 3,531,383 1,854,874
Total Notes 77,944,394 4,513,702 (2,938,245) 79,519,851 13,855,055
Financing leases, net of
uneamned mnterest
Tax credit properties 53,874,724 6,750,517 (765,287) 59,859,954 786,788
Financing Leases, net 53,874,724 6,750,517 (765,287) 59,859,954 786,788
NOTES & FINANCING
LEASES RECEIVABLE $131,819,117 $11,264,219  $(3,703,532) $139,379,805 § 14,641,843
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The maturity schedule for notes receivable follows.

FISCAL YEAR Principal Interest ** Total
2007 $ 13,855,055 $ 2,118,863 $ 15,973,918
2008 500,971 2,094,318 2,595,289
2009 539,842 2,063,026 2,602,868
2010 923,138 2,029,009 2,952,147
2011 2,089,164 1,992,577 4,081,741
2012-2016 13,492,557 9,171,671 22,664,228
2017-2021 5,795,300 7,793,737 13,589,037
2022-2026 5,048,973 6,436,304 11,485,277
2027-2031 712,869 5,632,994 6,345,862
2032-2036 822,476 5,528,907 6,351,382
2037-2041 1,103,984 5,285,813 6,389,797
2042-2046 30,261,269 2,589,700 32,850,969
2047-2051 2,660,819 786,137 3,446,956
2052-2056 599,900 1,213,003 1,812,903
2057-2061 1,275,000 77,662 1,352,662
TOTAL 79,681,317 54,813,719 134,495,036
Unamortized original issue discount (161,466) (161,466)
NOTE RECEIVABLE BALANCE $ 79,519,851 $ 54,813,719 $ 134,333,570

** On amortizing notes.

The maturity schedule for financing leases receivable follows:

FISCAL YEAR LEASE PAYMENTS
2007 $ 3,382,880
2008 10,149,666
2009 3,387,272
2010 6,861,898
2011 3,192,744
2012-2016 15,905,461
2017-2021 15,964,847
2022-2026 15,781,346
2027-2031 13,803,356
2032-2036 2,647,301
2037-2041 1,619,680
2042-2046 6,659,727
2047-2051 162,708
2052-2056 178,220
Total lease payments 99,697,105
Unearned interest (39,570,479)
Unamortized original issue discount (266,672)
FINANCING LEASE RECEIVABLE $ 59,859,954
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NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS

The components and fiscal year activity of land, structures and equipment follow.

Beginning Disposals / Transfers Ending
Balances Additions Adjustments In (Out) Balances
NONDEPRECIABLE:
Land * $ 44,842,680 $ 416,514 $ - $ - $ 45259194
Construction-in-progress:
Greenbridge Project 18,934,116 27,824,887 (11,675,717) . 35,083,286
Other 28,585,738 16,105,217 (53,147)  (10,160,260) 34,477,548
Total Nondepreciable 92,362,534 44,346,618 (11,728,864)  (10,160,260) 114,320,028
DEPRECIABLE:
Land imp rovements * 21,228,959 - - 2,999,786 24,228,745
Buildings 195,124,140 1,571,213 - 6,925,124 203,620,477
Equipment 7,057,577 29,500 (778,900) 235,350 6,543,527
Total Depreciable 223,410,676 1,600,713 (778,900) 10,160,260 234,392,749
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS: 315,773,210 45,947,331 (12,507,764) - 349,212,777
Accumulated depreciation ** (115,306,512) (6,675,550) 729,750 - (121,252,312)
NET CAPITAL ASSETS $ 200,466,698 $ 39,271,781 $ (11,778,014) § - $ 227,960,465

* Beginning balance restated to reflect a $21,228,959 reclassification from non-depreciable to depreciable land improvements.
** Beginning balance restated to reflect a $2,099,940 prior period adjustment. Sec note 7.

The $45.9 million gross addition to capital assets for the fiscal year comprises of $27.8 million of
additional project costs for the Greenbridge HOPE VI project, $1.9 million for the Meadows at Lea Hill
Apartments acquisition, $3.4 million of ESCO program costs, $2.7 million for Springwood facility capital
improvements, $1.7 million capital improvements for two Section 8 New Construction senior buildings,
$7.9 million of Capital Grant improvements in the public housing portfolio, and $0.5 million for various
other projects.

NOTE 5 - LONG TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS
The Authority has issued various forms of debt for the purpose of acquiring and rehabilitating projects

located throughout King County. The debt is secured by revenue pledges and deeds of trust on property
and equipment. Compliance with all indentures has been met.
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The components of outstanding debt at June 30, 2006 and the fiscal year activity are stated below.

Tax credit properties:

Other:

TOTAL:

Revenue bonds
Demand bonds
Mortgage notes
Financing lease
Lines of credit
Notes

Revenue bonds
Demand bonds
Mortgage notes
Financing lease
Lines of credit
Notes

Revenue bonds
Demand bonds
Mortgage notes
Financing lease
Lines of credit
Notes

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Payments Balance
$ 59291862 $ 6700000 $ (1,140,000) $ 64,851,862
23,725,000 - - 23,725,000
1,259,919 - (16,3086) 1,243,613
11,776,631 1,275,000 (874,686) 12,176,945
5,510,285 2,000,000 (2,007,106) 5,503,180
101,563,697 9,975,000 (4,038,097) 107,500,600
37,919,514 - (1,896,632) 36,022,883
64,790,000 - - 64,790,000
4,921,802 1,541,117 (454,668) 6,008,252
3,912,675 80,696 (65,879) 3,927,492
1,799,705 6,377,364 (289,391) 7,887,677
1,930,500 6,618,995 104,150 8,653,646
115,274,196 14,618,173 (2,602,420) 127,289,950
97,211,376 6,700,000 (3,036,632) 100,874,745
88,515,000 - - 88,515,000
6,181,721 1,541,117 (470,973) 7,251,865
3,912,675 80,696 (65,879) 3,927,492
13,576,336 7,652,364 (1,164,078) 20,064,622
7,440,785 8,618,995 (1,902,956) 14,156,825
$ 216,837,893 $ 24593173 $ (6,640517) $ 234,790,549
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Details of each issuance of long-term obligations follow.

Fiscal Year = Amount Interest Fiscal Year Amount Due Within
Issued Issued Rates Maturity  Outstanding One Year
Revenue Bonds:
Tax Credit:
Somerset 2000 $ 3,605,000 5.00% 2010 $ 3,605,000 $ -
Cascadian 1995 8,385,000 4.00-6.50% 2025 6,859,150 190,000
Fairwood 1996 5,260,000 3.80-5.60% 2026 4,323,664 115,000
Woodridge Park 1995 4,860,000 4.50-5.80% 2026 3,890,720 115,000
Rural Housing 1998 2,230,000 4.50-5.75% 2028 1,907,009 45,000
Laurelwood 1998 2,500,000 4.40-6.00% 2028 2,149,464 50,000
Windsor Heights 1999 10,650,000 4.00-5.40% 2029 9,275,548 215,000
Heritage Park 1999 4,950,000 4.15-5.60% 2030 4,390,015 95,000
Somerset (Kv) 2000 2,535,000 4.80-6.80% 2031 2,329,355 40,000
Alpine Ridge 2000 2,875,000 4.25-6.40% 2031 2,645,423 45,000
Colonial Gardens 1999 4,950,000 3.75-6.20% 2031 4,580,000 85,000
Southwood Square 2002 5,000,000 3.25-6.20% 2032 4,631,514 85,000
Somerset 2002 3,895,000 2.25-6.00% 2033 3,715,000 65,000
Eastwood Square 2002 4,000,000 5.35-5.45% 2041 3,850,000 40,000
Seola Crossing 1 2006 1,650,000 6.38% 2047 1,650,000 -
Seola Crossing 2 2006 5,050,000 6.38% 2047 5,050,000 -
Total tax credit $ 72,395,000 $ 64851862 $ 1,185,000
Other:
Condos 1892 § 325,000 5.25-7.35% 2010 % 110,000 $ 25,000
Northlake House 1980 1,170,000 8.00% 2012 401,145 73,647
Spiritwood / Newport 1993 5,705,000 3.50-6.50% 2013 2,650,000 340,000
Central Office Building 2001 2,000,000 4.35-5.32% 2016 1,464,159 120,019
Burien Park / Northwood 2004 5,200,000 2.50-5.75% 2019 3,779,446 334,201
1998 Pool 1999 32,955,000 4.35-5.14% 2029 27,618,133 700,000
Total other $ 47,355,000 $ 36022883 $ 1592867
Total revenue bonds $ 119,750,000 $100,874,745 $ 2,777,867
Demand Bonds:
Tax Credit:
Overlake 2001 $ 23,725,000 1.10-2.61% 2043 § 23,725,000 $ -
Total tax credit $ 23,725,000 $ 23725000 $ -
Other:
2005 Pool 2005 $ 46,290,000 2.56% 2035 $ 46,290,000 $ -
Landmark 2003 18,500,000 1.00-2.56% 2043 18,500,000
Total other $ 64,790,000 $ 64,790,000 $ -
Total demand bonds $ 88,515,000 $ 88,515,000 $ -
Mortgage Notes:
Tax Credit:
Rural Housing 1998 § 1,350,949 7.25% 2033 $ 1243613 $ 17,528
Total tax credit $ 1,350,949 $ 1243613 § 17,528
Other:
Newport 1993 § 179,556 3.00% 2009 % 33479 $ 13,094
Spiritwood 1993 918,829 3.00% 2009 185,587 65,727
Parkway 1995 446,523 8.50% 2010 163,300 40,930
Meadows 2006 1,570,989 4.61% 2010 1,541,117 57,014
Newport - 2 1993 707,400 6.50% 2013 320,849 43,487
Spiritwood - 2 1993 5,000,200 6.50% 2013 2,267,872 307,384
Parkway - 2 1995 1,568,000 9.25% 2035 1,496,047 10,814
Total other $ 10,391,497 $ 6008252 $ 538,451
Total mortgage notes $ 11,742,446 $ 7251865 $ 555,979
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Details of each issuance of long-term obligations — continued.

Fiscal Fiscal
Year Amount Interest Year Amount Due Within
Issued Issued Rates Maturity OQutstanding One Year
Financing Lease:
Other:
ESCO 2005 3,900,000 3.90% 2018 3,927,492 271,195
Total financing leases $ 3,900,000 $3927492 $ 271,195
Lines of Credit:
Tax Credit:
Green River Homes 2004 6,062,862 3.79% 2007 5,559,698 5,559,698
Harrison House 2004 5,928,193 3.81% 2007 5,342,247 5,342,247
Seola Crossing 2006 1,275,000 5.41% 2008 1,275,000 -
Total tax credit $13,266,054 $12,176,945 $10,901,945
Other:
Greenbridge 2006 5,751,463 5.41% 2008 5,751,463 -
Meadows 2006 621,945 4.35% 2008 621,945 -
Enumclaw 2005 1,514,269 4.35% 2008 1,514,269 -
Total other $ 7,887,677 $7887677 $ -
Total lines of credit $21,153,732 $20,064,622 $10,901,945
Notes Payable:
Tax Credit:
Somerset - Bellevue 2000 700,000 1.00% 2030 700,000 -
Somerset 2001 400,000 1.00% 2032 384,684 3,156
Eastwood Square 2002 600,000 6.95% 2041 582,496 4,260
Overlake - 2, 3 2002 1,456,000 3.42% 2042 1,456,000 -
Overlake - 4 2001 1,500,000 1.00% 2050 1,500,000 -
Overlake - 5 2001 500,000 1.00% 2050 500,000 -
Southwood Square 2002 380,000 1.00% 2053 380,000 -
Total tax credit $ 5,536,000 $5503,180 $ 7,416
Other:
Greenbridge - Float Loan 2005 1,750,000 0.00% 2008 1,750,000 -
Greenbridge Sec. 108 - 1 2006 4,867,195 0.00% 2011 4,867,195 -
Greenbridge Sec. 108 - 2 2006 414,385 0.00% 2011 414,385 -
Housing Choice Vouchers 2004 625,000 4.75% 2014 522,066 55,162
Hidden Village - Bellevue 1993 200,000 5.00% 2042 200,000 -
Spiritwood - Bellevue 1993 400,000 5.00% 2042 400,000 -
Hidden Village - State 1993 292,157 5.00% 2044 292,157 -
Spiritwood - State 1993 207,843 5.00% 2044 207,843 -
Total other $ 8,756,580 $ 8,653,646 $ 55,162
Total notes payable $14,292,580 $14,156,825 $ 62,579
TOTAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS _ $259,353,757 $234,790,549  $14,569,565
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The schedule of debt service payments follows:

Scheduled Debt Revenue Demand Mortgage  Financing Lines of
Service Bonds Bonds Notes Lease Credit Notes Total
2007 $ 8,633,353 $§ 2,277,847 $ 1,030,559 $ 419,554 $11,789,511 §$ 194,594 $ 24,345,417
2008 8,647,821 2,277,847 1,030,559 419,554 9,635,734 1,944,620 23,956,134
2009 8,658,393 2,277,847 1,005,985 419,554 - 194,646 12,556,425
2010 11,992,477 2,277,847 2,216,177 419,554 - 194,673 17,100,726
2011 8,253,839 2,277,847 766,594 419,554 - 5,476,279 17,194,113
2012 - 2016 40,129,274 11,389,233 1,889,651 2,097,768 - 1,047,274 56,553,199
2017-2021 35,598,687 11,389,233 1,279,712 699,256 - 1,114,291 50,081,179
2022 - 2026 33,434,578 11,389,233 1,279,712 - - 1,172,925 47,276,448
2027 -2031 20,307,438 11,389,233 1,212,607 - - 1,187,375 34,096,652
2032 - 2036 4,716,300 56,494,209 729,466 - - 1,182,785 63,122,760
2037 - 2041 3,808,478 5,464,113 - - - 926,797 10,199,387
2042 - 2046 2,556,872 44,410,645 - - - 1,730,363 48,697,880
2047 - 2051 510,778 - - - - 573,806 1,084,584
2052 - 2053 - - - - - 155,294 155,294
187,248,288 163,315,129 12,441,022 4,894,792 21,425,245 17,095,722 406,420,198

Unamortized:

Original issue discount (487,194) - - - - - (487,194)
Deferred defeasance (1,112,812) - - - - - (1,112,812)
Total $185,648,282 $163,315,129 $12,441,022 $4,894,792 $21,425245 § 17,095,722 $404,820,193

The schedule of principal payments follows:

Debt Service - Revenue Demand Mortgage Financing Lines of
Principal Bonds Bonds Notes Lease Credit Notes Total
2007 $ 2777867 $ - $ 555979 § 271,195 $10,901,945 $ 62,579 $ 14,569,565
2008 2,944,709 - 590,538 281,963 9,162,677 1,815,527 14,795,413
2009 3,103,321 - 602,727 293,158 - 68,619 4,067,826
2010 6,760,177 - 1,853,443 304,798 - 71,866 8,990,284
2011 3,271,530 - 493,773 316,900 - 5,356,852 9,439,055
2012-2016 18,194,339 - 833,148 1,783,528 - 368,382 21,179,397
2017 - 2021 18,532,806 - 374,452 675,952 - 425,925 20,009,134
2022 - 2026 22,970,000 - 562,130 - - 515,946 24,048,076
2027 - 2031 16,035,000 - 770,661 - - 562,866 17,368,528
2032 -2036 2,770,000 46,290,000 615,014 - - 571,814 50,246,828
2037 - 2041 2,565,000 - - - - 514,628 3,079,628
2042 - 2046 2,055,000 42,225,000 - - - 1,628,224 45,908,224
2047 - 2051 495,000 - - - - 2,039,732 2,534,732
2052 - 2053 - - - - - 153,867 153,867
102,474,750 88,515,000 7,251,865 3,927,492 20,064,622 14,156,825 236,390,555

Unamortized:

Original issue discount (487,194) - - - - - (487,194)
Deferred defeasance (1,112,812) - - - - - (1,112,812)
Total $100,874,745 $88,515,000 $7,251,865 $3,927,492 $20,064,622 $ 14,156,825 $234,790,549
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The schedule of interest payments follows:

Debt Service - Revenue Demand  Mortgage Financing Lines of
Interest Bonds Bonds Notes Lease Credit Notes Total

2007 $ 5855485 $ 2277847 $ 474580 § 148359 $ 887,566 $ 132,015 $ 9,775,852
2008 5,703,112 2,277,847 440,021 137,591 473,057 129,094 9,160,721
2009 5,555,072 2,277,847 403,258 126,396 - 126,027 8,488,600
2010 5,232,299 2,277,847 362,734 114,756 - 122,807 8,110,443
2011 4,982,309 2,277,847 272,821 102,654 - 119,427 7,755,058
2012 -2016 21,934,934 11,389,233 1,056,504 314,240 - 678,892 35,373,802
2017-2021 17,065,881 11,389,233 905,259 23,304 - 688,366 30,072,044
2022 - 2026 10,464,578 11,389,233 717,582 - - 656,979 23,228,372
2027-2031 4,272,438 11,389,233 441,946 - - 624,509 16,728,125
2032 - 2036 1,946,300 10,204,209 114,452 - - 610,971 12,875,932
2037 - 2041 1,243,478 5,464,113 - - - 412,169 7,119,759
2042 - 2046 501,872 2,185,645 - - - 102,140 2,789,657
2047 - 2051 15,778 - - - - 34,074 49,852
2052 - 2053 - - - - - 1,427 1,427
Total $ 84,773,537 $74,800,129 $5,189,158 § 967,300 $ 1,360,623 §$4,438,897 $171,529,643

NOTE 6-DEMAND BONDS

The Authority had $88.5 million in outstanding variable rate demand bonds on two separate projects and
one 8-project bond pool. The Landmark Apartments (Landmark) project had $18.5 million, the Village at
Overlake Station (Overlake) had $23.7 million, and the 2005 bond pool (comprised of the Carriage
House, Cottonwood, Newporter, Timberwood, Cove East, Woodside East, Aspen Ridge and Bellepark
East projects) had $46.3 million outstanding, respectively, at June 30, 2006. The bonds for each have
the following common characteristics:

Credit enhancements have been obtained for each of the bond issuances. For Overlake and
Landmark, the credit enhancement is in the form of a Letter of Credit (LOC) and is equal to the
outstanding bond balance plus one interest payment, priced at .20% and .40% of the facility,
respectively. For the 2005 Pool, the credit enhancement is in the form of a direct pay credit
enhancement agreement issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation priced at .30%
of the facility.

The credit enhancements are intended to not only provide security to bondholders, but also to
pay periodic interest payments for which the Authority regularly reimburses the credit
enhancement providers.

The Banc of America Securities LLC acts as remarketing agent, reselling at market rates any
bonds sold by bondholders. It has committed to repurchasing bonds for its own portfolio if the
bonds cannot be resold on the open market.

Interest rates are recalculated weekly, based on the rate at which bonds can be remarketed.

The bonds are subject to an annual remarketing fee of .05% of the outstanding amount of the
bonds or $5,000 whichever is greater.

Washington State Auditor’s Office
35





» Underlying source of repayment for the bonds is the revenues produced by the respective
properties.

+ In conjunction with the sale of these bonds, the Authority entered into interest rate swap
agreements as a cash flow hedge to reduce the volatility related to variable rate interest debt.

» Bonds are convertible to fixed rate at the Authority's option.

The Landmark bonds mature in 2042. At June 30, 2006 the variable interest rate on the bonds was
4.00%. The Letter of Credit is renewable automatically in one-year increments until 2009 and supports
the variable rate bonds only. In 2009 the Authority will either convert all existing bonds to fixed or
refinance the project. The swap instrument is at 3.88% on a notional amount of $18.5 million for which
the Authority received .67% of the 30 day LIBOR rate. At June 30, 2006 the fair market value of the swap
was $115,000 less than the notional amount.

The Overlake bonds mature in 2040. At June 30, 2006 the variable rates on the bonds was 4.05%. The
Letter of Credit will expire in 2010 and supports the variable rate bonds only. In 2010 the Authority will
either convert all existing variable rate bonds to fixed bonds or refinance the project. The swap
instrument is at 4.11% on a notional amount of $23.4 million for which the Authority receives 70 % of the
30 day LIBOR rate. At June 30, 2006 the fair market value of the swap was $450,000 less than the
notional amount. All bond proceeds were lent to the Overlake TOD-KCHA partnership of which the
Authority is General Partner.

The 2005 bond pool bonds mature in 2035. At June 30, 2006 the variable rate on the bonds was 4.00%.
The credit enhancement agreement is for a fixed term of 15 years and, upon maturity of the credit facility,
the Authority will either refinance the bond issue or obtain another credit enhancement. The Authority
has entered into three swap contracts with respect to the bonds. The swap instruments are at 3.87% on a
notional amount of $25 million, 3.459% on a notional amount of $11 million and 3.609% on a notional
amount of $10 million. The Authority will receive a swap payment equal to the BMA for the respective
period. At June 30, 2006 the fair market value of the swaps was $1.5 million more than the notional
amount.

NOTE 7- PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The Authority converted its accounting records to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in
fiscal year 2000. In conjunction with this conversion, all capital assets were depreciated. In fiscal year
2006, it was discovered that the depreciation expense for the Youngslake housing development was
inadvertently overstated by $2,099,939 when the GAAP accounting adjustments were made. According,
net assets and accumulated depreciation have been increased by this amount to correct the error.

NOTE 8 — SPECIAL ITEM

The special item of $2,541,205 reported in the statement of revenues represents previously capitalized
relocation and community supportive services costs incurred in connection with the Greenbridge Hope VI
housing development project. These costs are being expensed in fiscal year 2006 as a special item
because their recovery through the sale or lease of the related housing developments is considered
unlikely. The relocation and community supportive services costs incurred in this fiscal year were
expensed as tenant services.
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NOTE 9 - LEASE OF SEOLA CROSSING |

On June 21, 2006, the Seola Crossing LLC took possession of the newly developed section of the
Greenbridge Hope VI housing development project referred to as Seola Crossing I. The lease and
associated transactions are detailed below:

Financing Note Federal
Lease Receivable  Home Loan
Receivable Note Payable
Receivable (payable) balance on possession date ~ $ 11,675,717 § - $ (2,000,000)
Lease payment made through issuance of note (2,925,000) 2,925,000
Assumption of Home Loan note payable by LLC (2,000,000) (2,000,000)
Balance at June 30, 2006 $ 6,750,717  $2,925,000 $ (4,000,000)

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS

Substantially all the Authority’s full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the
following statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement
Systems, under cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution
retirement plans. The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary
government of the State of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFR) that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The
DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing to: Department of Retirement Systems, Communications Unit,
P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA 98504-8380. The following disclosures are made pursuant to GASB
Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government Employers.

Public Employees’ retirement System (PERS) Plans 1, 2, and 3
PLAN DESCRIPTION

PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans for
membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a combination defined
benefit/defined contribution plan. Membership in the system includes: elected officials; state employees;
employees of the Supreme, Appeals, and Superior courts (other than judges currently in a judicial
retirement system); employees of legisiative committees; community and technical colleges, college and
university employees (not in national higher education retirement programs); judges of district and
municipal courts; and employees of local governments. PERS participants who joined the system by
September 30, 1977, are Plan 1 members. Those who joined on or after October 1, 1977 and by either,
February 28, 2002 for state and higher education employees, or August 31, 2002 for local government
employees, are Plan 2 members unless they exercise an option to transfer their membership to Plan 3.
PERS participants joining the system on or after March 1, 2002 for state and higher education
employees, or September 1, 2002 for local government employees have the irrevocable option of
choosing membership in either PERS Plan 2 or PERS Plan 3. The option must be exercised within 90
days of employment. An employee is reported in Plan 2 until a choice is made. Employees who fail to
choose within 90 days default to PERS Plan 3. PERS defined benefit retirement benefits are financed
from a combination of investment earnings and employer and employee contributions. PERS retirement
benefit provisions are established in state statute and may be amended only by the State Legislature.

Plan 1 retirement benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service. Plan 1
members are eligible for retirement at any age after 30 years of service, or at the age of 60 with five years
of service, or at the age of 55 with 25 years of service. The annual pension is 2 percent of the average
final compensation per year of service, capped at 60 percent. The average final compensation is based
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on the greatest compensation during any 24 eligible consecutive compensation months. If qualified, after
reaching the age of 66 a cost-of-living allowance is granted based on years of service credit and is
capped at 3 percent annually.

Plan 2 retirement benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service. Plan 2
members may retire at the age of 65 with five years of service, or at the age of 55 with 20 years of
service, with an allowance of 2 percent of the average final compensation per year of service. The
average final compensation is based on the greatest compensation during any eligible consecutive 60-
month period. Plan 2 retirements prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement is at age
55 or older with at least 30 years of service, a 3 percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an actuarial
reduction will apply. There is no cap on years of service credit; and a cost-of-living allowance is granted
(indexed to the Seattle Consumer Price Index), capped at 3 percent annually.

Plan 3 has a dual benefit structure. Employer contributions finance a defined benefit component, and
member contributions finance a defined contribution component. The defined benefit portion provides a
benefit calculated at 1 percent of the average final compensation per year of service. The average final
compensation is based on the greatest compensation during any eligible consecutive 60-month period.
Plan 3 members become eligible for retirement if they have: at least ten years of service; or five years
including twelve months that were earned after age 54, or five service credit years earned in PERS Plan 2
prior to June 1, 2003. Plan 3 retirements prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement is
at age 55 or older with at least 30 years of service, a 3 percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an
actuarial reduction will apply. There is no cap on years of service credit; and Plan 3 provides the same
cost-of-living aliowance as Plan 2. The defined contribution portion can be distributed in accordance with
an option selected by the member, either as a lump sum or pursuant to other options authorized by the
Employee Retirement Benefits Board.

There are 1,181 participating employers in PERS. Membership in PERS consisted of the following as of
the latest actuarial valuation date for the plans of September 30, 2005:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 68,609
Terminated Pian Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 22,567
Active Plan Members Vested 104,574
Active Plan Members Non-vested _ 51,004

FUNDING POLICY

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates, Plan 2
employer and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 employer contribution rates. Employee
contribution rates for Plan 1 are established by statute at 6 percent for state agencies and local
government unit employees, and 7.5 percent for state government elected officers. The employer and
employee contribution rates for Plan 2 and the employer contribution rate for Plan 3 are developed by the
Office of the State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. All employers are
required to contribute at the level established by the Legislature. PERS Plan 3 defined contribution is a
non-contributing plan for employers. Employees who participate in the defined contribution portion of
PERS Plan 3 do not contribute to the defined benefit portion of PERS Plan 3. The Employee Retirement
Benefits Board sets Plan 3 employee contribution rates. Six rate options are available ranging from 5 to
15 percent; two of the options are graduated rates dependent on the employee’s age. The methods used
to determine the contribution requirements are established under state statute in accordance with
chapters 41.40 and 41.45 RCW.
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The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current-year covered payroll,

December 31, 2005, were as follows:

Employer*

3'69%"

Employee

TRk

* The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currently set at 0.18%. '

** Plan 3 defined benefit portion only.

*** Variable from 5.0% minimum to 15.0% maximum based on rate selected by the PERS 3 member.

Both the Authority and the employees made the required contributions.

contributions for the years ending December 31 were as follows:

as of

The Authority’s required

PERSPlan1 "ERS Plan Plan3
2006 $37,119 $361,419 $46 174
2005 $26,335 $214,085 $27,780
2004 $20,895 $163,272 $19,398

NOTE 11 -TAX CREDIT PROPERTIES

The tax credit program is the result of Federal legislation, which allows investors certain tax incentives for
investing in low-income housing. Investors also are allowed to deduct any losses passed through to them
from the partnerships. Under terms of the tax code, the buildings must continue to serve the targeted
population for 15 years. The Authority has the option to purchase them at the expiration of this
compliance period.

The Authority currently is a general partner in the following tax credit partnerships: Cascadian (Bellevue),
Woodridge (Riverton), Fairwood (Renton), Laurelwood (Federal Way), the Rural Preservation projects
(Enumclaw and North Bend), Windsor Heights (Sea Tac), Heritage Park (Bothell), Colonial Gardens
(Shoreline), Alpine Ridge (Bothell), Somerset Gardens (Bellevue), Overlake Station (Redmond),
Southwood Square (Kent), Arbor Heights (White Center), Harrison House (Kent) and Green River (aka
Valley Park ) (Auburn).

Typically, at the time of closing, the Authority will earn a developer's fee for its role in bringing the project
to fruition. Developer fees are paid primarily from available cash flows and development proceeds. Under
the various partnership agreements, any outstanding developer fees are generally required to be paid
within 10 to 15 years of the project’s placed-in-service date and may accrue interest on unpaid balances.
Certain tax credit projects also pay a management fee and sometimes a construction management fee to
the general partner. These fees are reflected in operating income and totaled $24,774 in fiscal year
2006.

The Cascadian, Woodridge Park and Fairwood Limited Partnerships were financed as a direct sale of
property to the partnerships. The Authority borrowed the funds to purchase the projects, lent the funds to
the partnerships that then purchased the buildings. The Authority carries the related debt on its books,
offset by notes receivable from the partnerships. The partnerships make all payments on the bonds and
other acquisition debt although the Authority remains contingently liable for them. Both the debt interest
expense and an offsetting amount of interest income are reflected on the Authority’s books and totaled
$985,970 for the fiscal year.

The financing for the remaining tax credit partnerships was structured as direct financing leases from the
Authority to the partnerships. Upon issuance of the bonds, the Authority purchases the projects. It
retains ownership of the buildings, and leases them to the partnerships under terms of a long term
financing lease, which is treated as a sale for tax purposes. Payments from the partnerships are
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sufficient to pay the outstanding bonds, but the Authority remains contingently liable for their payment.
Both the debt interest expense and an offsetting amount of interest income are reflected on the
Authority’s books and total $4,804,878 for the fiscal year.

Although the bonds are the primary source of funds for the purchase of the developments, other funding
is usually required. Lines of credit, both taxable and non-taxable, are secured by the Authority to pay
some of the acquisition costs and most of the rehabilitation costs. These lines are retired primarily using
proceeds from the sale of Low Income Housing Tax Credits to the limited partners usually within two to
three years of the partnership’s inception. They are also accounted for as direct financing leases. The
Authority also may receive grant funds or other loans to assist in purchasing the properties and in
preserving affordability within the projects. Because of limitations posed by the Internal Revenue Service,
all such funds are lent to the partnerships. These advances are accounted for as part of the financing
lease if the proceeds are used for purchasing the property and are accounted for as notes receivable
from the partnerships if the proceeds are used for rehabilitating the property. A summary of the
Authority’s long-term debt, including debt pertaining to the tax credit partnerships, is reflected in Note 5.
A summary of notes receivable and investments in direct financing leases with the partnerships is
reflected in Note 3.

Summarized partnership information for the year ended December 31, 2005 is as follows:

Cones
Alpine Colonial (Arbor
Property Name Ridge Cascadian Gardens Heights) Fairwood
Year Acquired 1999 1994 1999 2003 1995
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 450,870 $ 1,871,781 § 761,659 $ 343,731 § 891,925
Receivables and other 75,581 169,056 109,534 21,483 111,056
Capital assets, net 3,591,343 8,310,392 6,236,864 10,584,534 5,594,291
Total Assets 4,117,794 10,351,229 7,108,057 10,949,748 6,597,272
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 254,923 567,788 409,389 198,033 556,954
Long-term liabilities 2,984,617 7,702,397 4,996,156 5,605,034 4,561,670
NET ASSETS 878,254 2,081,044 1,702,512 5,146,681 1,478,648

Total Liabilities & Net Assets  $4,117,794 $ 10,351,229 $7,108,057 § 10,949,748 § 6,597,272

REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:

OPERATING REVENUES $ 439511 $ 1,773,133 § 722214 § 695,628 $ 1,224,755
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 87,434 309,837 113,543 213,761 251,974
Operating and maintenance 142,875 564,689 242,101 215,658 495,012
Depreciation 102,214 243,173 200,418 383,610 177,316
Total Operating Expense 332,523 1,117,699 556,062 813,029 924,302
Total Operating Income 106,988 655,434 166,152 (117,401) 300,453
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 10,392 68,677 26,458 609 34241
Interest expense (167,505) (548,967) (273,727) (254,339) (308,026)

Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - - - - .
Other revenue (expense) - . - - .
Total nonoperating

revenues (expenses) (157,113) (480,290) (247,269) (253,730) (273,785)
Total Net Income (Loss) (50,125) 175,144 (81,117) (371,131) 26,668
Contributions (distributions) . - - 6,434,527 -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (50,125) 175,144 (81,117) 6,063,396 26,668
Beginning Net Assets 928,379 1,905,900 1,783,629 (916,715) 1,451,980
Total Ending Net Assets $ 878254 § 2,081,044 $1,702512 § 5,146,681 $ 1,478,648
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Continued — Summarized partnership information for the year ended December 31, 2005:

Green Harrison Kona
River House Heritage (Somerset) Laurelwood
Property Name Homes Apts. Park Village Gardens
Year Acquired 2004 2004 1999 1999 1997
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 160,557 $ 133,778 $ 662,609 $ 1,075318 § 599,156
Receivables and other 107,827 191,014 142,192 207,044 48,233
Capital assets, net 9,543,055 9,222,715 6,523,629 16,334,785 4,368,622
Total Assets 9,811,439 9,547,507 7,328,430 17,617,147 5,016,011
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 287,315 333,810 342,325 5,744,492 510,540
Long-term liabilities 10,319,445 10,550,396 5,124,520 7,371,549 2,946,627
NET ASSETS (795,321) (1,336,699) 1,861,585 4,501,106 1,558,844

Total Liabilities & Net Assets $ 9811439 § 9,547,507 $ 7,328,430 $17,617,147 $5,016,011

REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:
OPERATING REVENUES $ 333779 § 446,423 § 744,575 § 1,432,004 $ 699,185

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administrative 150,469 196,624 161,571 281,419 161,867
Operating and maintenance 122,535 122,792 204,694 412,765 312,945
Depreciation 453,800 689,492 199,023 430,599 199,896
Total Operating Expense 726,804 1,008,908 565,288 1,124,783 674,708
Total Operating Income (393,025) (562,485) 179,287 307,221 24,477
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income - - 15,192 24,835 -
Interest expense (290,629) (445,234) (245,447) (704,517) (160,682)
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - - - - -
Other revenue (exp ense) 42,914 - - - -
Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses) (247,715) (445,234) (230,255) (679,682) (160,682)
Total Net Income (Loss) (640,740) (1,007,719) (50,968) (372,461) (136,205)
Contributions (distributions) 15,100 100 - - -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (625,640) (1,007,619) (50,968) (372,461) (136,205)
Beginning Net Assets (169,681) (329,080) 1,912,553 4,873,567 1,695,049
Total Ending Net Assets $ (795,321) § (1,336,699) $ 1,861,585 § 4,501,106 §1,558,844
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Continued - Summarized partnership information for the year ended December 31, 2005:

Owerlake South- Seatac
TOD Rural wood (Windsor  Woodridge GRAND
Property Name Housing Housing Square Heights) Park TOTAL
Year Acquired 2000 1997 2001 1998 1995
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1,722277 § 686,356 $ 786,616 $ 1,933,793 $ 923,952 § 13,004,378
Receivables and other 371,238 100,910 129,426 115,727 132,066 2,032,387
Capital assets, net 37,760,587 5,059,220 8,393,667 16,540,891  4,824308 152,888,903
Total Assets 39,854,102 5,846,486 9,309,709 18,590,411 5,880,326 167,925,668
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 573,616 237,042 419,820 961,216 827,477 12,224,740
Long-term liabilities 30,490,059 4,115,645 6,335,587 12,330,027 4,801,436 120,235,165
NET ASSETS 8,790,427 1,493,799 2,554,302 5,299,168 251,413 35,465,763
Total Liabilities & Net Assets $ 39,854,102 $5846,486 $ 9,309,709 $18590,411 $5,880,326 $ 167,925,668
REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:
OPERATING REVENUES $ 2631914 § 725255 § 898,543 § 2,077,262 $1,332,879 § 16,177,060
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 512,703 240,519 163,108 439,642 310,051 3,594,522
Operating and maintenance 567,332 235,587 244,539 773,546 508,214 5,165,284
Depreciation 1,109,892 219,460 251,514 590,158 229,659 5,480,224
Total Operating Expense 2,189,927 695,566 659,161 1,803,346 1,047,924 14,240,030
Total Operating Income 441,987 29,689 239,382 273,916 284,955 1,937,030
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 20,194 10,980 22915 60,163 33,968 328,624
Interest expense (1,289,836)  (154,417) (350,519) (547,163)  (311,056) (6,052,064)
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - - - - (119,675) (119,675)
Other revenue (expense) - - - - - 42914
Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses) (1,269,642)  (143,437) (327,604) (487,000)  (396,763) (5,800,201)
Total Net Income (Loss) (827,655)  (113,748) (88,222) (213,084)  (111,808) (3,863,171)
Contributions (distributions) 100 - (5,150) - - 6,444,677
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (827,555)  (113,748) (93,372) (213,084)  (111,808) 2,581,506
Beginning Net Assets 9,617,982 1,607,547 2,647,674 5,512,252 363,221 32,884,257
Total Ending Net Assets $ 8,790,427 $1,493,799 $§ 2554302 § 5299,168 $ 251,413 § 35,465,763
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NOTE 12 ~- SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Following are details of selected financial statement line items.

Other Revenue:

Portability administrative fee from other authorities $ 1,001,394

Development fees, tax credit properties 24,774

Insurance proceeds 426,526

Weatherization services 420,349

Conduit, management, and other property fees 464,934

Other 1,380,580 $ 3,718,557
Current Receivables:

Grantor: HUD 1,434,834

Grantor: Other 291,143

Notes and financing leases 14,641,843

Interest: Notes and financing lease 1,307,420

Interest: Investments 109,935

Tenants 488,484

Other 37,948 $ 18,311,608
Other Current Assets:

Prepaid insurance and other 288,690

Inventories, net 280,574

Mobile homes held for sale 62,736 $ 632,000
Noncurrent Receivables:

Notes and financing leases 124,737,962

Noncurrent interest 1,979,585 $126,717,547
Other Noncurrent Assets:

Unamortized bond issuance costs 2,233,457

Investment in tax credit properties 586,605

Other 78,680 $ 2,898,742
Other Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 2,057,346

Accrued wages, benefits and payroll taxes 815,005

Accrued compensated absences 1,417,569

Accrued interest, tax credit properties 1,046,530

Accrued interest, other properties 840,375

Interest due Hud, bond defeasance 314,436

Tenant security deposits 1,401,659

Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) escrow 427,072

Prepaid rent and other revenue 148,875

Due HUD and other housing authorities 8,579

Interlocal agreement payable to city 373,542

Other 28,461 $ 8,879,450
Other Noncurrent Liabilities:

Contract retention 2,396,566

Payment in lieu of taxes 932,855

Deferred revenue 658,498

Noncurrent interest 389,908

Other 2,383 $ 4380210
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NOTE 13 - CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The Authority has issued debt instruments for the purpose of providing capital financing for specific non-
governmental corporations that are not part of the Authority’s financial reporting entity. In general, the
Authority issues such conduit debt, but the Authority is not responsible for the payment of the original
debt. That debt is secured solely by payments received by the Authority from the various non-
governmental corporations, and by the Deeds of Trust to the underlying properties. Owners of the debt
have no recourse to any other revenues of the Authority.

Non-governmental Project Description Date of June 30
Corporation Issue Balance
Original
Issue
Amount
Baptist Rest Home Refinancing of an existing 82 unit building known as Fred Lind (May 1, 1997 | $3,940,000
Association Manor, located in Seattle, WA
Auburn North Purchase of land and construction of a 296-unit complex for December 1,] $11,445,000
Associates Limited elderly or disabled, low-income persons in Auburn Washington, {1997
Partnership known as Aubum Court Apartments.
Manufactured Housing |Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 93-unit mobile home parkin |December 2,| $2,400,000
Community the city of Redmond, Washington, known as Avon Villa Mobile {1997
Preservationists Home Park.
Seaview Apartments Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 72-unit multifamily December 1,| $2,335,000
Limited Partnership development in Des Moines, Washington. 1998
St. Andrews Housing  |Acquisition of a 59-unit apartment complex located on Mercer |October 20, | $3,006,513
Group Island, Washington, known as Ellsworth House. 1999
Vashon Island Construction of a 40-unit assisted living and 30-bed skilled September $6,775,000
Community Care nursing facility on Vashon Island to be known as Vashon 1, 2001
Community Care Center.
Evergreen Court Acquisition and rehabilitation of 111-unit Washington Court September $6,613,240
Associates Ltd assisted living in Bellevue to be rehabilitated into a 82-unit 7, 2001
complex known as Evergreen Court
Angle Lake Apartments [Construction of an 80-unit independent living, senior housing  [November $5,000,000
facility located in SeaTac. 14, 2002
Radcliffe Place, LLC Construction of a 135 unit senior housing facility located in Kent|December 10,097,800
know as Radcliffe Place Senior Apartments 22, 2004
Wild Garden Housing  [Refinancing of three affordable housing projects owned by August 1, $7,320,000
LLC-DASH DASH that comprise a total of 136 apartment units in Bellevue [2005
known as Glendale, Wildwood Court and Garden Grove.
Summerfield Acquisition of an existing 52 unit affordable apartment complex {September $3,580,000
in the City of Bellevue known as Summerfield Apartments 1, 2005
Eernisse Apartments  |Construction of a 26 unit affordable rental townhouse project on{December $3,800,000
Vashon Island known as Eernisse Apartments. 20, 2005
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NOTE 14 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to perils commonly associated with the ownership and rental of real property.
Perils including bodily injury to individuals; property damage by fire and forces of nature; loss of assets
from theft and employee dishonesty; and liability for public officials’ and employees’ conduct are handled
through a combination of purchased commercial insurance, voluntary self-insurance, participation in a
risk-sharing pool or group, and contractual risk transfer via indemnification agreements.

For Public Housing, the Authority secures third-party liability insurance primarily through the Housing
Authority Risk Retention Pool (HAARP), a public entity risk-sharing pool. The General Liability limit,
including Washington Stop-Gap or Employer's Liability, is $2,000,000 per occurrence on an occurrence
basis with a $1,000 deductible. The Errors & Omissions limit is $2,000,000 per occurrence claims-made
basis with a 10% deductible of the final claim amount. Included in the Errors & Omissions coverage is
Employment Practices Liability wherein the Authority retains the first $50,000 of all claims, with a
graduated quota share of losses ranging from 20% to 10% on claims $100,000 to $250,000. Additional
separate coverage for Employment Practices Liability is secured through Chubb Insurance Group with a
limit of $5,000,000 annual aggregate for all claims, with a $75,000 deductible. Contractor's Pollution
Liability limit is $1,000,000 claims-made basis with a $10,000 per claim self-insured retention provided
through CRC. Automobile Liability insurance is $5,000,000 total limits provided through North Pacific
Insurance Company. Property insurance including Rental Income coverage through HARRP has a
standard limit of $3,000,000 replacement cost basis, with higher limits available upon request. Property
deductible is $50,000 per loss. The Authority has secured Fidelity coverage through HARRP for $100,000
per occurrence for all employees, and $500,000 for employees with greater exposure.

Bond Financed Projects are covered for property insurance through HARRP. The general liability is
covered through the Housing Authority Risk Retention Group (HARRG) with $5,000,000 per occurrence
limit. Additionally, liability sub-limits are provided for fire damage liability and athletic sports liability, at
$50,000 and $250,000, respectively.

Tax Credit Partnership properties are covered for general liability with total limits of $7,000,000
occurrence basis provided by Great American Insurance ($1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000
general aggregate) on the primary level, and $5,000,000 aggregate limit on the umbrella level, with a
$10,000 self-insured retention. Property insurance for building values on replacement cost basis are
provided with a $25,000 deductible. Contents and Business Income including Extra Expense are covered
according to reported values.

No closed claims are known to have exceeded the applicable limits of insurance secured from any of the
mentioned providers.

NOTE 15-OTHER RELATED PARTIES

In September 2002 the Authority joined with Puget Sound Educational Services District (PSESD), Kent
Youth and Family Services (KYFS) and the Center for Career Alternatives (CCA) in the formation of
Building Better Futures (BBF), a 501(c)(3)-2 not-for-profit charitable organization. The purpose of BBF is
to facilitate fund raising for the construction of two new community facilities at Springwood Apartments, a
public housing complex owned by the Authority in Kent, WA. The total cost of the campaign is estimated
to be $6.8 million. The newly constructed buildings will provide services, which benefit the four supported
organizations, including Head Start classrooms, after school programs, job preparation and training and
health care. The Authority has applied the provisions of GASB 39 “Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units” and determined that while the funds raised by BBF benefit the
Authority, they are not significant to it and thus BBF does not meet the criteria for inclusion as a
component unit.
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NOTE 16-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

BOND ISSUANCE. On December 12, 2006, the Authority issued the $3,000,000 Revenue Bonds, 2006
to obtain funding for the construction of the Nia Apartments, a housing development of the Greenbridge
Project. The bond tranches bear interest at 4.45% to 4.75% with the latest maturity date of January 1,
2037.

SEOLA CROSSING | COMMITMENT. On December 31, 2006, the Authority satisfied its commitment to
complete the construction of the Seola Crossing | housing development, a division of the Greenbridge
Project. The certified cost of the project is $18,395,000 including $6,719,283 of costs incurred from June
30 through December 31, 2006 with consideration provided by an increase in the associated financing
lease.

LINE OF CREDIT PAYOFF. On January 2, 2007, lines of credit totaling $10.9 million and incurred on
behalf of the Harrision House and Valley Park housing developments were paid off.

WILEY CENTER LEASE. In December 2006, the Authority disposed of the Wiley Community Center by
entering into a 50-year lease for the facility with the Greenbridge Foundation. The Authority then entered
into a series of transactions with a New Markets Tax Credit investor who ultimately provided $1.9 million
in equity to the project. This equity, plus a loan from the investor's investment fund (capitalized by a loan
from the Authority) provided the necessary funding to rehabilitate the Wiley Center including a variety of
mechanical and structural upgrades and pay related financing costs. The value of the entire transaction
was approximately $11.5 million.

SPRINGWOOD DEMOLITION. In January 2007 the Authority received permission from HUD to dispose
of Springwood Apartments, a 333-unit public housing apartment complex in Kent, WA. It is the
Authority’s intention to redevelop this site under HUD's mixed financing model to include both public
housing and project-based Section 8 tax credit units.
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POOLED HOUSING REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 1998A
A PROPRIETARY FUND OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
At June 30, 2006

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Tenant security deposits
Accounts receivable
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Restricted cash and investments
Replacement reserves
Bond reserves

Total restricted cash and investments
Land, buildings and equipment, net
Other assets

Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES and NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Tenants' security deposits

Accrued interest payable

Current portion of long-term debt

Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

Notes payable

Bonds payable, net

Total Long-Term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted net assets
Unrestricted net assets
TOTAL NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES and NET ASSETS

$ 10,860,330
329,589
178,900

85,248

11,454,067

780,211
3,350,325
4,130,536

23,349,188

891,549

28,371,273
S 39825340

$ 134,699
329,589
751,116

700,000
1,915,404

492,157
26,918,133
27,410,290

29,325,694

(4,761,102)
4,130,536
11,130,212
10,499,646
S 39825340

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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POOLED HOUSING REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 1998A

A PROPRIETARY FUND OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

OPERATING REVENUES
Rent $ 5,748,942
Other 291,536
Total Operating Revenues 6,040,478
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 437,873
Payroll 744,541
Utilities 898,680
Operating and maintenance 1,539,050
Insurance 111,661
Depreciation 681,049
Amortization 39,669
Collection losses 51,644
Property management 181,224
Total Operating Expenses 4,685,391
Net Operating Income 1,355,087
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
HUD contributions 445,360
Investment income 645,709
Interest expense (1,560,175)
Net Nonoperating Expense (469,106)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 885,981
Total Net Assets -- beginning 9,613,665
Total Net Assets -- ending
$ 10,499,646

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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POOLED HOUSING REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 1998A

A PROPRIETARY FUND OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from tenants
Receipts from homeowners
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Other receipts (payments)

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating subsidies from HUD
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bond principal payments
Bond interest payments
Net fixed asset transfers (additions)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net deposits to reserves
Net (purchase) sale of investments
Investment income
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents -- beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents -- end of the year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation
Amortization

Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in receivables and other current assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 5,890,959

66,323
(3,168,669)
(730,285)

2,058,328

445,360

445,360

(674,998)
(1,520,255)
3,000

(2,192,253)

(185,207)

643,630

458,423

769,858

10,420,061

STLIS99T0

$ 1,355,087
681,049
39,669

(7,773)
(9,704)

5 2.058328_
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

The following notes are an integral part of the financial statements of the Housing Authority of the County
of King, Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A.

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) GENERAL

The Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A (the Fund) were issued in September
1998, by the Housing Authority of the County of King (the Authority) to refinance five muitifamily housing
projects comprised of 573 units and three mobile home parks comprised of 321 spaces. The projects are
Walnut Park Apartments (140 units), Auburn Square Apartments (160 units), Woodland North Apartments
(105 units), Parkwood Apartments (90 units), Hidden Village Apartments (78 units), Vantage Glen Mobile
Home Park (164 spaces), Rainier View Mobile Home Park (31 spaces) and Tall Cedars Mobile Home
Park (126 spaces). The eight projects (the Projects) are owned by the Authority and are located
throughout King County, Washington. These financial statements represent only the accounts of the
Fund and are not intended to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of
the Authority taken as a whole.

b) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Accounting records are maintained according to the proprietary fund model that is similar to private
business enterprises. The Authority applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, uniess those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. As
allowed by GASB reporting standards, the Authority has elected not to apply FASB Statements and
Interpretations, APB opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee of Accounting
Procedures issued after November 30, 1989.

c) USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

d) ECONOMIC CONCENTRATIONS

The Projects are located in King County, Washington. Changes in the economic or other conditions in
that geographical area or the demand for housing could affect future operations.

e) REVENUES AND EXPENSES

The basis for recognition of revenues and expenses is the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned. Expenses are recorded when incurred. Revenue from operating subsidies and
grants is classified as non-operating revenue.
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) CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

Cash consists of Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurable deposits with original
maturities of less than three months. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash. Investments include deposits with original maturities
exceeding three months, securities and other assets that are held primarily for the purpose of obtaining
income or profit. All bond reserves and restricted other reserves are reported as investments.

g) CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost in the land, structures, and equipment accounts and at
appraised fair market value at date of receipt if contributed. The capitalization threshold is $5,000.
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method with depreciation commencing in the
acquisition year and ceasing in the disposal year. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method and useful lives of twelve to forty-eight years for structures and three to ten years for equipment.

Management reviews land, structures, and equipment for possible impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. [f there is an indication
of impairment, management prepares an estimate of future cash flows expected to result from the use of
the asset and its eventual disposition. If these cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset,
an impairment loss is recognized to write down the asset to its estimated fair value. Preparation of
estimated expected future cash flows is inherently subjective and is based on management's best
estimate of assumptions concerning expected future conditions.

h) TAX LIABILITY

The Authority is by law exempt from all federal, state, and local taxes and assessments. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes is reflected in the accompanying income statements.

i) COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the Authority’s policy to pay 100% of accumulated annual leave when an employee terminates
employment from the Authority. As such, the value of annual leave earned but not used at year-end is
accrued. Sick leave does not vest and is only paid to those separating from the Authority as retirees as
defined by the state pension system. Because the amount of such payments is difficult to estimate, an
accrual is made only when the actual payment amount is known.

NOTE 2 - INVENTORIES

The materials inventories consist of expendable supplies purchased primarily for use in maintenance of
the rental units. These inventories are valued using a moving weighted average cost. Inventory items are
expended using the perpetual method that is adjusted annually based on a physical count.

The mobile home inventory represents homes held for sale to eligible senior citizens under the Home
Ownership Program. The seniors purchase the homes and lease the underlying land from the Authority.
The buyers are obligated to sell the mobile home back to the Authority for the original purchase price net
of adjustments for improvements or deterioration.

NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
The Authority is restricted in its cash deposits and investments to those allowed by RCW 35.82.070(6). In

general, deposits must be made with qualified financial institutions whose deposits are insured by the
Federal Depaosit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).
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Insurance and Collateralization

Deposits that are in excess of the $100,000 insured amount must be continuously and fully (100%)
secured. Collateral, comprised of identifiable U.S. Government securities as prescribed by HUD, are
pledged or set aside to secure these deposits. The Public Deposit Protection Act in effect in the State of
Washington set up a multiple financial institution collateral pool to insure public deposits. This protection
is in the form of securities pledged as collateral to the Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC) by
all qualified depositories. In 1994, the Authority received a waiver from HUD that enabled it to make
deposits in excess of $100,000 in a qualified public depository because HUD determined that there were
“adequate safeguards against the loss of Public Housing Authority funds.” At June 30, 2006, a $500,000
of certificate of deposit exceeded the FDIC insured limit and was not collateralized. The deposit will be
converted in December 2006 when the certificate matures.

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Authority's
investment policy limits the maximum maturity of an investment to not greater than three years.
Exceptions may be made for collateralization of repurchase agreements using investments not exceeding
30 years and for the investment of reserve funds, which can be invested up to 30 years if matched to an
anticipated future cash flow.

Credit Risk

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Washington State law, and the Authority's
investment policy all limit the instruments in which the Authority may invest. Not all Authority funds have
the same restrictions. Following are some of the instruments in which any Authority funds, including
Federal funds, may be invested:

1) Direct obligations of the Federal government backed by the full faith and credit of the United States
a) U.S. Treasury Bills.
b) U.S. Treasury Notes and Bonds.
2) Obligations of Federal government agencies, such as:
a) Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) mortgage-backed securities.
b) GNMA participation securities.
¢) Maritime Administration Bonds.
d) Small Business Administration Bonds.
3) Securities of Government Sponsored Agencies, such as:
a) Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) notes and bonds.
b) Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) notes and bonds.
c) Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) notes and bonds.
d) Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) notes and bonds.
e) Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA) notes and bonds.
4) Demand and savings accounts.
5) Money Market Deposit accounts.
6) Certain mutual funds.

In addition to the above, non-federal funds may be invested in the following which are allowed by the
State of Washington:

1) Banker's acceptances purchased on the secondary market.

2) Commercial paper.

3) Bonds of the State of Washington or any local government of the State of Washington that have one
of the three highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency.

4) General obligation bonds of a state other than the State of Washington and general obligation bonds
of a local government of a state other than the State of Washington that have one of the three highest
credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency.

5) Utility revenues bonds or warrants of any city of town in the State of Washington.

6) Bonds or warrants of a local improvement district that is within the protection of the local improvement
guaranty fund law.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority diversifies its investments by security type and institution. The investment policy states:
“With the exception of U.S. Treasury securities, investment agreements for trustee held funds, and
authorized pools, no more than 15% of the Authority's total investment portfolio will be invested in a single
security type or with a single financial institution.

Other Information:
The Authority has established arrangements with the Bank of America for safekeeping of investments.

Valuation and Classification

Cash equivalents inciude an investment in a Local Government investment Pool (the Pool). The Pool is
not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), but adheres to SEC Rule 2(a)(7) of
the Investment Company Act of 1940 that requires portfolio diversification, divestiture considerations and
action if the market value of the portfolio deviates more than .5 percent from the amortized costs.
Government pools that adhere to the SEC rule can report their investments at amortized costs if the
remaining maturities of the debt securities are 90 days or less. As of June 30, 2006, the pool had an
average days-to-maturity of 33 days and therefore is reported at cost. Government securities are
reported at fair value. Market value of the unrestricted debt security instruments did not deviate
significantly from cost and no adjustment to fair market value was made. All required reserves are fully
funded.

Certain cash deposits and investments are classified as restricted assets if their use for general operating
purposes is legally or contractually prohibited. Restricted cash and investments held by the Authority
comprise primarily tenant security deposits, debt service reserves, and reserves held for future capital
improvements on properties owned by the Authority.

Cash deposits and investments at June 30, 2006 are categorized as follows.

Unrestricted Restricted Total
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Depository accounts $ 348,181 $ 329,589 $ 677,770
Investment contract - West LB 3,503,235 - 3,503,235
Cash on hand 950 - 950
Washington State Local Government
Investment Pool 7,007,964 - 7,007,964
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,860,330 329,589 11,189,919
INVESTMENTS:
Repurchase agreements - 3,288,274 3,288,274
Certificate of Deposits - 300,000 300,000
U.S. Treasury - Money Market 542,262 542,262
Total Investments 4,130,536 4,130,536

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $ 10,860,330 § 4460,125 § 15,320,455
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Appendix A: Family Development Demographics

Income Group (As % of Area Median|
Income)

Primary Income Source

BALLINGER HOMES

30
GREEN LEAF 1 1
4 1
IEast AVONDALE MANOR 20 5 0o o
BELLEVUE 8 8 0 0 0
CEDARWOOD 25 4 o 1
COLLEGE PLACE 51 4 2 4
EASTSIDE TERRACE 50 7 0 0
FOREST GROVE 25 3 0o 0
JUANITA COURT 30, 5 0o 0
JUANITA TRACE 29 2 2 0
JUANITA TRACE If 9 0 [
KIRKWOOD TERRACE 28 2 2 0
WELLSWOOD 30 4 10
305! 36 7.2
Southwest [CAMPUS COURT 13 1 0 1
SEOLA CROSSING a7 9 1t 0
PARK LAKE HOMES SITE Il 163 14 7 2
SHOREHAM APTS 18] 1 10
VICTORIAN WOODS 18 3 10
RIVERTON TERRACE (Fam) 30) 4 1 1
21 232 32 11 .4 138 2
ISoutheast [CASCADE APTS 106 86 16 4 0 48 23
GLENVIEW HEIGHTS 10 10 0 0 o 6 2
SPRINGWOOD 319 270 2% 1 2 162 91
[VALLI KEE 114 102 8 4 0 48 20
VISTA HEIGHTS 30 28 1 10 22
YOUNG'S LAKE 26 23 2 10 2 3
519 53 212 311
South BURNDALE HOMES 48 6.3 $15,104) 43 4 ) 23 4
EVERGREEN COURT 30 5.7 $16,501 27 2 10 13 3
FIRWOOD CIRCLE 50 5.1 $15,995 4 8 10 2 8
GREEN RIVER HOMES 59 75 $17,251 52 7 0 o 22 9
KING'S COURT 25 7.6) $16,020 17 5 a0 16 2
PICKERING COURT 30) 5.5| $14,079 28 2 0 0 13 5

Income Group (As % of Area Median Primary Income Source

Income)
North BALLINGER HOMES 110 6.9 $17,559) 85% 13% 3% 0% 56% 16%)
GREEN LEAF 27| 9.8| 18,466| 93% 0% 4% 4% 56% 11%)
137, 7.0 $18.00. % _10% 3% 1%
East [AVONDALE MANOR 20| 5.4 $21,600] 75% 25% 0% 0% 55% 25%
BELLEVUE 8 al 4.9 $18,345) 100% 0% 0% 0% 50% 13%)
CEDARWOOD 25 74 §12,777 80% 16% 0% 4% 48% 0%
ICOLLEGE PLACE 51 7.3 $14,426 86% 8% 4% 2% 43% 10%)
EASTSIDE TERRACE 50 8.4 $14,007| 88% 14% 0% 0% 44% 16%|
FOREST GROVE 25| 5.3 $17,081 88% 12% 0% 0% 44% 8%
LIUANITA COURT 30) 5.0 $16,299 83% 17% 0% 0% 43% 37%
JUANITA TRACE 29 8.4 $21,546] 83% 7% % 0% 53% 0%
JUANITA TRACE Il 9 5.2 $17,782| 100% 0% 0% 0% 78% 0%
KIRKWOOD TERRACE 28| 6.7 $14,814] 86% 7% % 0% 46% 0%
WELLSWOOD 30) 5.9) $10,740) 83% 13% 3% 0% 23% 20%
3 12 2% 1% ik 12%]
Wsomh“s' CAMPUS COURT 13 8.9 $16,847| 85% 8% 0% 8% 62% 8%
ISEOLA CROSSING a7] 2.5 $18,727 27% 9% 1% 0% 24% 3%
PARK LAKE HOMES SITE II 163} 8.9) $14,833] 87% 9% 4% 1% 42% 9%
SHOREHAM APTS 18 8.7) $13,832 89% 6% 6% 0% 61% 17%)
[VICTORIAN WOODS 18| 7.5 $19,204] 78% 17% 6% 0% 61% 28%
RIVERTON TERRACE (Fam) 30 6.4 18,474 86% 14% 4% 4% 61% 4%
Zal E—T—1
FSQu(hggst CASCADE APTS 106 4.0 $14,445 81% 15% 4% 0% 45% 22%
GLENVIEW HEIGHTS 10 7.3 $17,019| 100% 0% 0% 0% 60% 20%|
SPRINGWOOD 319) 3.6 $14,275i 85% 8% % 1% 51% 29%
VALLI KEE 114 5.7] $16,861 89% % 4% 0% 42% 18%
VISTA HEIGHTS 30 6.2 $22,802| 93% 3% 3% 0% 73% 10%|
LYOUNG'S LAKE 26| 5.1 27 608 85% 7% 4% 0% 93% 4%|
% 9% 3% 0% 51% 23%
{South BURNDALE HOMES 48| 6.3 $15,104] 88% 8% 2% 0% 47% 8%
EVERGREEN COURT 30, 5.7 $16,501 90% % 3% 0% 43% 10%,
FIRWOOD CIRCLE 50) 5.1 $15,995; 82% 16% 2% 0% 52% 16%
GREEN RIVER HOMES 59) 7.5 $17,251 90% 12% 0% 0% 38% 16%
KING'S COURT 23] 7.5 $16,020) 57% 17% 10% 0% 53% 7%|
PICKERING COURT 30| 5.5| 14,079 97% 7% 0% 0% 45% 17%






Appendix A: Family Development Demographics

Household Type

Race / Ethnic Group

Unit Size (# of Bedrooms)

1 12 2 2
8 0 1 0 2 2
46 1 13 2t 62 .45 14 6 1
East 2 0 18 12 2 0 1 4 1 4 10 6
0 0 8| 6 1 0 0 0 1 8
5 5 15 18 4 0 1 1 1 22 3
10 10 31 29 14 0 7 0 1 37 14
7 1 32 % 5 1 8 2 8 8 32 10
3 4 18 16 3 0 2 3 1 18 7
4 4 22 19 4 0 5 1 1 25 5
8 3 18 16 8 0 3 1 1 25 4
2 0 7 4 1 0 1 1 2 4 5
5 5 18 15 7 0 0 3 3 2 6
11 5 14 21 2 1 1 3 3 25 5
2L 47 201 182 21 2 28 18 23 8 214 1L g 0
ISouthwest 2 4 7 2 3 0 2 0 6 13
6 8 234 9 12 0 10 1 5 9 15 13
36 46 81 37 55 4 3 3 33 a4 38 67 16
1 0 17 4 3 1 0 4 3 18
0 2 16 5 7 0 3 0 3 18
10 7 13 4 10 1 5 0 10 18 5 5 2
55 (72 157, §1 .90 6§ 51 8 63 53 69 134 29 2 |
Southeast 17 18 7 65 19 1 4 4 13 8 52 46
1 3 1 6| 5 3 0 1 0 1 3 4
16 32 n 160 60 4 15 1 69 19 154 46
28 18 68 62 2 1 9 1 19 18 2 50 20
4 3 23 17 6 0 1 0 6 30
0 3 23] 23 1 0 1 0 1 4 22
e ——
68 15 111 § 31 16 1
South 8 9 31 M 2 1 3 1 [} 3 16 20 6 3
8 7 15 19 5 0 2 1 3 2 8
8 6 36 32 7 1 5 1 4 4 16 20 8 2
19 13 27 42 5 0 6 2 4 8 30 17 4
2 5 18 17 3 0 3 1 1 18 9
7 5 18) 25 1 0 1 2 1 4 17 9

Unit Size (¥ of Bedrooms)

9% 36% 36% 13% 5%

26% 15% 0% 7% 0% _ 81%  19% 0% 0%
12%. 17%

East 10% 0% 0% 5% 0% 20% 50% 30% 0%
0% 0%  100% 5%  13% 0%  13% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0%
20% 20% 60% 72% 16% 4% 4% 0% 88% 12% 0% 0%
20% 20% 61% 57%  21% 0%  14% 0% 2% 0% 73% 27% 0% 0%
14% 22% 64% 52% 10% 2% 16% 4% 18% 6%  64% 20% 0% 0%
12% 16% 72% 64%  12% 0% 8% 2% 4% 0% 72% 28% 0% 0%
13% 13% 73% 63% 13% 0% 17% 3% 3% 0% 83% 17% 0% 0%
27% 10% 60% 53%  27% 0%  10% % 3% 0% 83% 13% 0% 0%
2% 0% 78% 44% 1% 0% 1% 1% 2% 0%  44%  56% 0% 0%
18% 18% 64% 54%  25% 0% 0% 1M% 1% 0% 79% 21% 0% 0%
37% 17% 47% 70% 7% 3% 0% 10% 0% 0%  83% 17% 0% 0%
19% 18%.

Southwest 15% 31% 54% 15%  23% 0% 15% 0%  46% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0%
6% 8% 23% 9% 12% 0%  10% 1% 5% 9%  15%  13% 0% 0%
22% 29% 50% 23%  34% 2% 19% 2% 20% 0% 2%  42% 10% 0%
6% 0% 94% 2% 17% 6% 0% 2% 3% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0%
0% 1% 89% 8%  39% 0% 17% 0% 1% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0%
36% 25% 46% 14%  36% 4% 18% 0% 36% 0% 64%  18% 18% 7%
16%. . 20% uﬂ 18% _27% 2% 18% 2% . 19%

Southeast 16% 17% 67% 61% 18% 1% 4% 4% 12% 8% 49%  43% 0% 0%

F 30% 10% 60% 50%  30% 0% 10% 0%  10% 0% 60% 40% 0% 0%
5% 10% 85% 50% 19% 1% 5% 3% 22% 0% 38% 49% 15% 0%
25% 16% 60% 54% 19% 1% 8% 1% 1% 16%  23%  44% 18% 0%
13% 10% 77% 57%  20% 0% 3% 0%  20% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0%
0% 11% 85% 85% 4% 0% 4% 0% 4% 0% 5%  B1% 0% 0%
1% 2% 7

South 16% 18% 63% 84% 4% 2% 6% 2% 0% 6% 33% 41% 12% 6%
21% 23% 50% 63% 17% 0% 7% 3% 10% 0% 73%  27% 0% 0%
16% 12% 72% 84%  14% 2% 10% 2% 8% 8%  32%  40% 16% 4%
33% 22% 47% 72% 9% 0% 0% 3% 7% U% 5%  29% 7% 0%
% 17% 60% 57%  10% 0% 10% 3% 3% 0%  53% 30% 0% 0%
24% 17% 62% 86% 3% 0% 3% 7% 3% 14%  59%  31% 0% 0%
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Appendix D
Public Housing Waiting List Demographics

Household Type Race / Ethnicity Number of Bedrooms

based $10,146

Sound Families

48% 34% 15%

$10,146
0% 33% 0%
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Appendix F

Updated 04/06/07

Program Name & Description Services Provided | Access _ Eligibility
(including location, if r ‘ (Development ~ (Public housing or
appropriate) office/PHA main | Section 8 participants
v . officelother or both or other)
o provider name) ‘

Academy of Language: All KCHA sites Academy of Public Housing Section

Translation & interpretation services Languages or PHA | 8, and Preservation

to support programs and meet Staff Residents

language needs of residents.

Auburn Food Bank: Food Bank
Services located at Burndale
Homes, also serving Firwood Circle,
Green River Homes.

Burndale Homes,
Firwood Circle and
Green River Homes

Auburn Food Bank
or PHA Staff

Public Housing,
Section 8 Participants,
and Other Area
Residents

Bellevue Boys and Girls Club:
Computer Activity Centers and
Youth Service Programs; Summer
Enrichment Program

Eastside Terrace,
Hidden Village, and
Spiritwood Manor

Bellevue Boys and
Girls Club or PHA
Staff

Public Housing and
Preservation Residents

Boys and Girls Club of King
County: After School Tutoring
Program, Late Night and Weekend
Youth Recreation Programs, and
Summer Enrichment Program.

Greenbridge and
Park Lake Homes

Boys and Girls
Clubs of King
County or PHA
Staff

Public Housing,
Section 8 and other
area residents

Boys and Girls Clubs of King
County: After School Tutoring
Program, Computer Center, Youth
Recreation, and Summer
Enrichment Program.

Firwood Circle

Boys and Girls
Clubs of King
County or PHA
Staff

Public Housing,
Section 8, and other
area residents

Center for Career Alternatives: Springwood Center for Career Public Housing
ESL, Employment Readiness Apartments, Alternatives or PHA | Residents and Kent
Training and Job Placement Cascade Homes, staff Area Section 8
Assistance. Valli Kee Participants
Center for Human Services: After | Ballinger Homes Center for Human Public Housing
School Tutoring Program, Summer Services or PHA Residents

Enrichment Program, and Family
Programs.

Staff

Center for Multicultural Health: Ballinger Homes Center for Public Housing
ESL and Citizenship Classes. Multicultural Health | Residents

or PHA staff
Christ Free Community Clinic: Gustaves Manor Christ Free Public Housing and
Basic health care services and Community Clinic Other Low-income
health care referrals or PHA staff Area Residents
City of Auburn Police Burndale Homes, City of Auburn Public Housing
Department: Community Policing | Firwood Circle and | Police Department: | Residents
Services (?) Green River Homes | Community

Policing Services or
PHA Staff
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Updated 04/06/07

Program Name & Description
(including location, if
appropriate)

Services provided

Access
- (Development
“office / PHA main
~office / other
provider name)

Eligibility

| (Public housing or

Section 8 participants
or both or other)

City of Bellevue Police
Department: Community policing
and outreach

Spiritwood Manor,
College Place,
Eastside Terrace
and Hidden Village

City of Bellevue
Police Department
or PHA Staff

Public Housing and
Preservation Residents

City of Shoreline Departments of
Parks and Recreation: Provide Art
Series, Art Studio, Arts and Crafts
Workshop and Teen Recreation
Trips.

Ballinger Homes

City of Shoreline
Departments of
Parks and
Recreation, PHA
Staff, or Center for
Human Services
Staff

Public Housing
Residents

Consolidated Food Management:
Meal Program

Harrison House

Consolidated Food
Management or
PHA Staff

Public Housing
Residents

Des Moines Area Food Bank:

Riverton Terrace

Des Moines Area

Public Housing

Provides food assistance to Food Bank Staff or | Residents
residents. PHA Staff

Faith In Action Program: Eastridge House Interfaith Volunteer | Public Housing
Volunteer chore services for Program or PHA Residents
residents. staff

Girl Scouts of America: Provide Springwood, Valli Girl Scouts of Public Housing
creative living, helping people, trail | Kee & Cascade America or PHA Residents
activities (outdoors) homework staff

assistance, emergency literacy and
clean up and closing activity.

Hairdresser at Harrison House:

Harrison House Apt.

Hairdresser, Alvina

Harrison House Apt.

Affordable hair cuts, manicures, etc. | LLC Voegel LLC, and Public
Housing Residents

Highline Community College: Greenbridge and Highline Public Housing

Adult Education and E.S.L. Services | Park Lake Homes Community College | Residents and Section

within Career Development Center or PHA Staff 8 Participants, and

and a Computer Education Center.

Other Area Residents

Highline Food Bank: Food

Boulevard Manor

Highline Food Bank

Public Housing

assistance Staff or PHA Staff Residents and Other
Area Residents.
Highline West Seattle Mental Sunnydale Highline West Public Housing

Health: On site Supportive and
Case Management Services.

Seattle Mental
Health or PHA staff

Residents or Other
Area Residents

Hopelink:

Transportation services to food
banks, essential shopping and other
destinations.

Eastridge House,
The Northwood,
Northlake House,
Forest Glen, and
Casa Juanita

King County
Housing Authority
Support Services
Coordination
Program,
Transportation
Program, or other
PHA Staff

Public Housing and
Section 8 New
Construction Residents
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Updated 04/06/07

Program Name & Description Services Provided Access Eligibility
(including location, if (Development (Public housing or
appropriate) office/PHA main | Section 8 participants
‘office/other or both or other)
__provider name) % '

Kent Food Bank: Provide food Springwood Kent Food Bank or | Public Housing

assistance to residents. PHA Staff Residents and Section
8 Participants, and
Other Area Residents

Kent Youth and Family Services: | Springwood Kent Youth and Public Housing

Computer center, youth after Apartments, Valli Family Service or Residents and Other

school, recreation services, and Kee and Cascade PHA staff Area Residents
summer lunch program Homes

King County Housing Authority Senior and mixed King County Public Housing
AmeriCorps Program Adult population Housing Authority Residents
Education Services: ESL classes, | developments AmeriCorps

civic engagement program, and Program or other

other educational activities for PHA Staff

residents.

King County Housing Authority Section 8 voucher King County Section 8
Family Self Sufficiency Program: | holders located Housing Authority

Case Management and Service throughout King staff & YWCA

Coordination to FSS Program County contracted staff

Participants.

King County Housing Authority
Support Services Coordination
Program: Community building,
outreach, information and referral,
and advocacy services.

Mixed Population
Developments.
Sites include 1,337
units

King County
Housing Authority
Support Services
Coordination
Program or other

Public Housing and
Section 8 New
Construction Residents

PHA staff
King County Housing Authority Mixed Population King County Public Housing and
Family Services Program: Developments and | Housing Authority Section 8 New

Housing stability, relocation,
emergency financial assistance,

Park Lake Homes.
Sites include 2,070

Support Services
Coordination

Construction Residents

support service referrals, landlord units Program,
advocacy. Transportation
Program, or other
PHA Staff
King County Library: Mobile Mixed Population King County Library | Public Housing
Library Services Developments. or PHA Staff Residents

Sites include 1,337
units
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Updated 04/06/07

Program Name & Description Services Access Eligibility
(including location, if appropriate) | Provided (Development (Public housing or
o : office/PHA main Section 8
office/other participants or both
, S : .| provider name) or other)
King County Sheriff's Department: | Ballinger Homes, | King County Sheriff's | Public Housing
Community Policing Services Cascade Department or PHA | Residents
Apartments and | Staff
Park Lake
Homes
Lighthouse: Late night activities for | Springwood, PHA Staff, Kent Public Housing
at risk teens Cascade Homes | Youth and Family Residents and
and Valli Kee Services Staff, Kent | Section 8
Homes Police and King Participants, and
County Sheriff Other Area Residents
Department
Literacy Source: ESL Services Northridge ESL Services Public Housing
House / Residents
Northridge I
Neighborhood House: Tutoring Burndale Homes, | Neighborhood Public Housing
Services and Summer Enrichment Firwood Circle, House or PHA Staff | Residents
Program. Green River
Homes,
Greenbridge,
and Park Lake
Homes
Neighborhood House: The Voice More than 2,300 | Neighborhood Public Housing and
Newspaper Provided to Public copies House or PHA Staff | Preservation Program
Housing and Preservation Program | distributed each Residents
Residents. month
Neighborhood House: Elderly and | Greenbridge and | Neighborhood Public Housing and
Disabled Support and Case Park Lake House or PHA Staff | Section 8 Residents,
Management Services. Homes and Other Area
Residents
New Futures: Provides after-school | Arbor Heights New Futures or PHA | Tax Credit Properties
programs and family advocacy Apartments and | Staff and Other Area
services to residents. Windsor Heights Residents
Puget Sound Educational Service | Greenbridge, Puget Sound Public Housing
District: Head Start/Early Childhood | Park Lake Educational Service | Residents
Education Services. Homes, and Kent | District or PHA Staff

Family Center

Springwood
Renton Technical College: ESL Springwood, RTC Staff and PHA | Public Housing
Program Cascade, and Staff Residents

Valli Kee
Salvation Army: Emergency Juanita Trace Salvation Army or Public Housing
Assistance Activity Programming, and Juanita PHA Staff Residents and Other
Homework and Youth Recreation Court Area Residents

Activities.
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Program Name & Description Services Access Eligibility
(including location, if ’ Provided (Development (Public housing or
appropriate) ' f | office/lPHAmain | Section 8
/| officelother participants or both
i | provider name) or other)

Seattle King County Department | Kent Family WIC or PHA Staff Public Housing and
of Public Health: WIC Clinic — Pre | Center Section 8 Residents,
and Post Natal Care, women and Springwood and Other Area
children services. Residents
Senior Services: Boulevard King County Public Housing and
Transportation services to Food Manor, Housing Authority Section 8 New
Banks, essential shopping and Briarwood, Support Services Construction
other destinations. Brittany Park, Coordination Residents

Burien Park, Program,

Coronado Transportation

Springs, Program, or other

Gustaves Manor, | PHA Staff

Harrison House,

Lake House,

Munro Manor,

Northridge | & I,

Paramount

House, Park

Lake, Plaza

Seventeen,

Wayland Arms,

and Yardley

Arms
Senior Services: Mixed Population | King County Public Housing and
Nutrition and Wellness Programs. Developments. Housing Authority Section 8 New

Sites include Support Services Construction

1,267 units Program, Senior Residents

Services, or other
PHA staff

South King County Multi-Service | Southridge South King County Public Housing
Center: ESL and Citizenship House Multi-Service Center | Residents
Services or PHA staff
Valley Cities Counseling and Kings Court and | Federal Way Youth | Public Housing

Consultation: Family support
programming.

Evergreen Court

and Family Services
or PHA staff

Residents and Other
Area Residents

Visiting Nurse Services of the

Mixed Population

Visiting Nurse

Public Housing and

Pacific Northwest: Health and Developments. Services of the Section 8 New
Weliness Clinic Sites include Pacific Northwest or | Construction

1,267 units PHA staff Residents
Washington State University Cascade Homes, Public Housing and
Cooperative Extension Food Park Lake Section 8 Residents,
Sense: Provides Community Homes | and Il, and Other Area
Garden and nutrition curriculum for | Springwood, Valli Residents
youth and parents. Kee, and

Windsor Heights
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Program Name & Description Services Access T Eligibility
(including location, if ‘ Provided | (Development (Public housing or
appropriate) » ' | office/PHA main Section 8
| officelother participants or both
provider name) or other)
White Center Food Bank: Food Park Lake White Center Food Public Housing and
Assistance Homes and Bank or PHA staff Section 8 Residents,
Yardley Arms and Other Area
Residents
Youth Eastside Services: Spiritwood Youth Eastside Section 8 Participants
Counseling Services and Youth Manor Services or PHA
Activities Programming. staff
YWCA of Seattle / King County / | Greenbridge, YWCA of Seattle / Public Housing and
Snohomish County: Coordination | Park Lake, King County / Section 8 Residents,
of Employment, Education/Training | Green River, Snohomish County | and Other Area
Services at Greenbridge Career Burndale, or PHA staff Residents
Development Center and Auburn Coronado
Technology Center Springs
YWCA of Seattle / King County / | Section 8 YWCA of Seattle / Section 8 Participants
Snohomish County: Family Self | voucher holders | King County /
Sufficiency Services located Snohomish County
throughout King | or PHA staff
County
YWCA of Seattle / King County / | 500 Allocation YWCA of Seattle / Section 8 Participants

Snohomish County: Program
Coordination and Housing Search
Assistance for Housing Access and
Services Program for disabled
Section 8 participants

and Mainstream
Program
Vouchers

King County /
Snohomish County
or PHA staff
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E}?&’II;ECI;%ROSSSAISS?;'BUNG, Vice Chair KING C OUNTY

poweEx cAro HOUSING AUTHORITY

Executive Director:

STEPHEN J. NORMAN

March 19, 2007

Dear RAC Member:

As you may be aware, the King County Housing Authority is a participant in the Department
of Housing and Urban Development’'s (HUD’s) Moving to Work (MTW) demonstration
program. As an MTW participant, the Housing Authority is provided with a bit of flexibility to
develop programs and practices designed to:

Expand program, location and housing choice for residents;

Increase client self-sufficiency;

Increase program efficiency and streamline and simply operations; and,
Preserve and increase affordable housing opportunities.

included on the Agenda for this month’s RAC meeting, is a review of the KCHA’s FY 2008
Moving to Work (MTW) Annual Plan. The Plan serves as the framework for KCHA activity
during the next fiscal year (FY 2008) that begins July 1, 2007 and ends June 30, 2008.

Enclosed, for review prior to the RAC meeting, you will find a copy of the current Draft MTW
Plan for FY 2008. Please note, this is a ROUGH DRAFT only. A final Plan will be
developed based upon comments received during the RAC meeting and upon those of staff
who are still reviewing the draft.

You will be provided with an opportunity to comment on the Draft Plan during the RAC
meeting. In addition, you may submit written comments regarding the Plan and are invited
to attend the Public Hearing that is currently scheduled for April 2007. An updated Draft
Plan will be available, upon request, prior to the public hearing.

| look forward to discussing the Authority's MTW Annual Plan for FY 2008with each of you.
Should you have any questions regarding the materials provided, please contact me at 206-
574-1100.

Sincerely,

Judi Jones
MTW Program Director

600 ANDOVER PARK WEST + SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98188-2583
PHONE (206) 574-1100 » FAX (206) 574-1104
EQUAL HOUSING OPPORTUNITY





Board of Commissioners

NANGY HOLLAND.YOUNG, Vice Chair KING COUNTY

DELORES BROWN

HOUSING AUTHORITY

Executive Director:

STEPHEN J. NORMAN

PUBLIC NOTICE

The King County Housing Authority (KCHA) announces the availability of
its draft Making Transition Work (MTW) Annual Plan for fiscal year 2008,
which begins on July 1, 2007. The MTW program is a HUD
demonstration program that allows high-performing housing authorities
to make program and policy changes to (1) increase the housing choices
of low-income families, (2) help residents achieve self-sufficiency, and (3)
increase the cost-effectiveness of federal housing programs. As an MTW
participant, KCHA is required to develop an MTW Annual Plan. The
MTW Annual Plan outlines and identifies policies that the housing
authority plans to change during the coming fiscal year. The Draft Plan
will be available for review beginning March 19, 2007, during normal
business hours at KCHA’s Administrative Offices (600 Andover Park
West, Tukwila, Washington). KCHA will hold a Public Hearing to review
and receive comment regarding: (1) the draft MTW Annual Plan for FY
2008; and, (2) proposed changes to policies governing Tenant Selection
Preferences and Annual Income and Assets proposed for implementation
in FY 2007. The Public Hearing will be held on April 5th, 2007, at 7:00
P.M. at KCHA’s Central Administrative Office at 600 Andover Park West;
Tukwila, Washington. The draft plan can be e-mailed to interested
members of the public upon request by calling Judi Jones, MTW
Program Director at (206) 574-1100. Written comments regarding the
MTW Plan and policy proposals can be submitted by mail prior to April
5th, 2007 to the following address: KCHA MTW Plan, Attn: Judi Jones,
600 Andover Park West, Tukwila, Washington 98188.

600 ANDOVER PARK WEST ¢ SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98188-2583
PHONE (206) 574-1100 ¢+ FAX (206) 574-1104
EQUAL HOUSING OPPORTUNITY
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OGAYSIIS DADWEYNE

Wakaaladda Guriyeynta ee Dagaanka King (KCHA) waxay ku dhawaaqaysaa diyaar
ahaanshaha Samaynta Shaqada kala-guurka (MTW) ee qabyada ah ee Qorshe-sanadeedka
sanad-miisaaniyeedka 2008, kaas oo bilaabmaysa July 1,2007. Barnaamijka MTW waa
barnaamijka soo ban-dhigidda HUD oo wakaaladaha guriyeynta ee waxqabadka sareeya
leh u saamaxaya in ay sameeyaan barnaamij iyo isbeddel siyaasadeed si ay: (1) u
kordhiyaan xulashada guriyeynta ee qoysaska uu dakhligoodu hooseeyo, (2)
dagganayaasha ugaga caawiyaan gaadhitaanka heerka isku-filaanshaha, iyo (3) si ay u
kordhiyaan ka midha-dhalinta barnaamijyada guriyaynta ee federaalka. Maadaama ay
KCHA tahay ka-qayb-galaha MTW, waxaa laga rabaa in ay soo saarto Qorshe-
sanadeedka MTW. Qorshe-sanadeedka MTW wuxuu tilmaamayaa, aqoonsanayaana
siyaasadaha ay wakaaladda guriyeyntu ay qorshaynayso in ay beddesho sanad-
miisaaniyeedka soo-socda. Waxaa Qorshaha Qabyada ah si naqtiin loogu sameeyo laga
heli karaa Xafiisyada Maamulka ee KCHA, marka laga bilaabo March 19, 2007, waxaana
la heli karaa saacadaha shagada ee caadiga ah (600 Andover Park West;, Tukwila,
Washington). KCHA waxay qaban doontaa Dhageysi Dadweyne 00 naqtiin lagu
samaynayo laguna guddoomayo faallooyin ku-saabsan: (1) Qorshe-sanadeedka qabyada
ah ee MTW ee sanad— miisaaniyeedka 2008; iyo, (2) fikradaha la doonayo in lagu
beddelo siyaasadaha hoggaaminaya xulashada kiraystayaasha iyo Dakhliga Sanadka iyo
raasumaalka loogu tala—galay dhagan-gelinta Sanad-miisaaniyeedka 2007. Waxaa
Dhageysiga Dadweynaha la qaban doonaa April 5, 2007, 7:00 P.M., waxaana lagu
gabanayaa Xafiiska Maamul ee Dhexe ee KCHA ee ku yaalla 600 Andover Park West;
Tukwila, Washington. Xubnaha xiisaynaya in ay helaan qorshaha qabyada ah waxay la
soo xidhiidhi karaan Judi Jones, Agaasimaha Barnaamijka MTW, lambarka taleefonka
(206)574-1100, si e-mailka loogu soo diro. Faallooyinka qoraalka ah ee ku-—saabsan
Qorshaha MTW iyo fikradaha siyaasadeed waxaa la soo diri karaa inta ka horaysa April
5, 2007 iyada oo lagu soo hagaajinayo ciwaanka ah: KCHA MTW Plan West, Tukwila,
Washington 98188.
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REQUEST NO.

King County Housing Authority
600 Andover Park West
Seattle WA 98188

02706 020

SEATTLE TIMES-ADS KCHA

PO BOX (C34805 600 ANDOVER PARK WEST

SEATTLE, WA 98124-1805 SEATTLE, WA 98188
Project No. Requested By CHERYLS Title

3/21/07 3/26/07

PO #47416 ASSIGNED
MTW PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE EA 1 469.80 469.80
AD IN NEWSPAPER

TOTAL THIS REQUISTION-> 469.80

fUﬂFmAﬂOWHMHBE MTW PUBLIC NOTICE FOR JUDI JONES

P99 42240030910 469.80 |7 13
2 8 14
< 9 15
3 10 16
b 11 17
12 18
EUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE DATE EXEC./DEP. DIRECTOR SIGNATURE DATE
IWCCOUNTING APPROVAL SIGNATURE DATE FUNDS AVAILABILITY P.O. NUMBER APPROVED VENDOR/ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
YES [:] NO [:]

MST-228





Public Notice for King County Housing Authority Page 1 of 1

Cheryl Southwick | | M LIL[Q BU

From: Legals [legals@seattietimes.com]

Sent: Wednesday, March 21, 2007 1:31 PM

To: Cheryl Southwick

Subject: RE: UNDER AD#3681610 — Public Notice for King County Housing Authority

Hi Cheryi,
Your legal notice is scheduled to run on Monday, 3/26 ( Times only ) under AD#3681610 at the cost of $469.80.

Thanks,
Jared

From: Cheryl Southwick [mailto:CherylS@kcha.org]

Sent: Wednesday, March 21, 2007 11:59 AM

To: Legals

Subject: UNDER AD#3681610 -- Public Notice for King County Housing Authority

Please run the attached Public Notice as soon as possible. The contact name for this
order is Judi Jones. Her phone # is 206-574-1152 if you should have any questions. Please
reference PO # 47416 on your billing. Our billing address is: 600 Andover Park West,
Tukwila, WA 98188.

Thank you.

Cheryl Southwick

King County Housing Authority
206-574-1120

<<PUBLIC NOTICE 2008.doc>>

04/18/2007 :





PUBLIC NOTICE

The King County Housing Authority (KCHA) announces the availability of its draft
Making Transition Work (MTW) Annual Plan for fiscal year 2008, which begins on July
1, 2007. The MTW program is a HUD demonstration program that allows high-
performing housing authorities to make program and policy changes to (1) increase the
housing choices of low-income families, (2) help residents achieve self-sufficiency, and
(3) increase the cost-effectiveness of federal housing programs. As an MTW participant,
KCHA is required to develop an MTW Annual Plan. The MTW Annual Plan outlines
and identifies policies that the housing authority plans to change during the coming fiscal
year. The Draft Plan will be available for review beginning March 19, 2007, during
normal business hours at KCHA’s Administrative Offices (600 Andover Park West,
Tukwila, Washington). KCHA will hold a Public Hearing to review and receive
comment regarding: (1) the draft MTW Annual Plan for FY 2008; and, (2) proposed
changes to policies governing Tenant Selection Preferences and Annual Income and
Assets proposed for implementation in FY 2007. The Public Hearing will be held on
April 5th, 2007, at 7:00 P.M. at KCHA’s Central Administrative Office at 600 Andover
Park West; Tukwila, Washington. The draft plan can be e-mailed to interested members
of the public upon request by calling Judi Jones, MTW Program Director at (206) 574-
1100. Written comments regarding the MTW Plan and policy proposals can be submitted
by mail prior to April 5%, 2007 to the following address: KCHA MTW Plan, Attn: Judi
Jones, 600 Andover Park West, Tukwila, Washington 98188.
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King County Housing Authority
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Seattle WA 98188
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FACTS NEWSPAPER KCHA

PO BOX 24364 600 ANDOVER PARK WEST

SEATTLE, WA 98124 SEATTLE, WA 98188
Project No. Requested By: CHERYLS Title

3/21/07 4/26/07

PO #47415 ASSIGNED

MTW PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE EA 1 143.00 143.00
AD IN PAPER
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THESFACTS

Seattie, Wa 98124
Questions: LaVonne Beaver (2008) 271-0498

Judi Jehnee— JOries
King County Housling Authority
600 Andover Park W.
Tukwila, WA 98118

The Truth Is Great ... The Facts Is Reality ...

INVOICE

ey,

ey 2






ge 10 - The Facts

THE FACTS NEWSPAPER =

March 28, 2007

“LASSIFIEDS

Vice President for Office of Minority Affairs
and Vice Provost for Diversity

e University of Washington invites nominations and applications for the position of Vice President
‘Minority Affairs and Vice Provost for Diversity. This is the chief diversity officer of the University.
+ seek an individual with the drive and creativity to maintain and expand our national leadership in
s area. : .
unded in' 1861, the University of Washington is one of the nation’s premier research-oriented public
versities. For each of the past 30 years, the University has led the nation’s public research universities
competing for federal support for research and training. With campuses in Bothell, Seattle, and
soma, the University of Washington enrolls &u...ooc students in a comprehensive array of undergraduate,
wduate, and professional programs.
e University of Washington considers diversity as a university-wide responsibility and core value.
e vice president/vice provost is part of the executive leadership team and advises the president and
provost on policies and actions that reflect the core values of the University. 1n collaboration with
-provost, deans, chancellors, and vice presidents, the vice president/vice provost provides leadership
1 coordination of diversity planning to ensure success for diversity initiatives.
e vice president/vice provost directs the Office of Minority Affairs (OMA). Established in 1968,
1A is invested with the responsibility for ensuring diversity at the undergraduate level through its
grams of K-12 outreach and recruitment, student counseling, instructional assistance, graduate and
fessional school preparation, and the activities and programs of its Ethnic Cultural Center. OMA
:a state-funded annual budget of $5 million and annual private donations and grants of approximately
! million. The vice president/vice provost also leads the University’s efforts to be a national leader in
development of a diverse campus community, which includes ensuring a diverse student body,
ulty, and staff and a vibrant, inclusive, rich intellectual environment. The vice president/vice provost
orts directly to the president and provost. )

seek a person with senior leadership experience who has an entrepreneurial approach to program
'elopment related to diversity initiatives and thrives in a collaborative environment. Competitive
«didates will have a good record of developing and sustaining relationships with students, faculty,
Tand community leaders, government and foundation officials, and other relevant constituent groups.
idates should have demonstrated budgetary management ability, and a record of grant writing
cess is desirable. An advanced degree is strongly preferred.

plications: ’

plications will be accepted until the position is filled, but priority will be given to those received

April 2, 2007. Application materials should include a letter addressing how the candidate’s vision

institutional diversity and experience maich the position requirements, a curriculum vitae, and
itact information for at least three references. Nominations should include the name, present
ition, address, telephone number, address, and e-mail of the nominee.. Nomination and
lication materials should be sent to:

irch Advisory Committee on the Vice President for Minority Affairs and Vice Provost for
rersity .

iversity of Washington

GL\:VHN{!LHSQ Uall

PUBLIC NOTICE

The King County Housing Authority
(KCHA) announces the availability of its
draft Making Transition Work (MTW)
Annual Plan for fiscal year 2008, which
begins on July 1,2007. The MTW program
is a HUD demonstration program that
allows high-performing housing authorities
to make program and policy changes to (1)
increase the housing choices of low-
income families, (2) help residents achieve
self-sufficiency, and (3) increase the cost-
effectiveness of federal housing programs.
As an MTW participant, KCHA is required
to develop an MTW Annual Plan. The
MTW Annual Plan outlines and identifies
policies that the housing authority plans to
change during the coming fiscal year. The
Draft Plan will be available for review
beginning March 19, 2007, during normal
business hours at KCHA’s Administrative
Offices (600 Andover Park West, Tukwila,
Washington). KCHA will hold a Public
Hearing to review and receive comment
regarding: (1) the draft MTW Annual Plan
for FY 2008; and, (2) proposed changes
to policies governing Tenant Selection
Preferences and Annual Income and Assets
proposed for implementation in FY 2007.
The Public Hearing will be held on April
3th, 2007, at 7:00 P.M. at KCHA’s Central
Administrative Office at 600 Andover Park
West; Tukwila, Washington. The draft plan
can be e-mailed to interested members of
the public upon request by calling Judi
Jones, MTW Program Director at (206)
574-1100. Written comments regarding the
MTW Plan and policy proposals can be
submitted by mail prior to April 5%, 2007
to the following address: KCHA MTW
Plan, Attn: Judi Jones, 600 Andover Park
West, Tukwila, Washington 98188.

Seattle Central Community
College’s CONTINUING and
PROFESSIONAL
EDUCATION OFFICE is
providing entrepreneurial
training,

The program provides information, tool and
insights from business development specialists,

- experienced entrepreneurs, Seattle instructors,

and representatives from different business
sectors.

Business knowledge of the participants in the
program range from those who are just now
thinking about starting a business, those needing
to put a plan together, those who have started a
business but need guidance and implementation

* assistance, to those who already have a year or

two of business experience and are making
money but want the “know-how” to expand.
Weekly seminars have included presentations
by experts and successful entrepreneurs along
with detailed materials and hands-on activities.
Participants have a choice of registering for
individual classes at $50.00 each or a series of
ten at $350.00. Limited partial scholarships are
available for a series of workshops.

Some of the offerings for Spring quarter include

both lecture and computer workshops.

Computer workshops include QuickBooks for
Entrepreneurs, Publisher for Entrepreneurs;
lectures include Ask the CPA, Cleaning up your
credit; and many more.

Open house is Thursday, April 5™ from 6:30 to
8:30 p.m. and classes start Wednesday
evening April 11, Register today!

For more information on the Business
Development Institute, contact program
manager, Michelle Jones at 206. 903-3270.
A current student writes,“ I am so excited
about everything I am learning in the
Entrepreneurial Certification Program! The
instructors are at the top of their game, and
the breadth of topics covered give us a great
overview of what is necessary to be a successful
small business owner.” -Monica Hall

Top Ten Mistakes Taxpayers Make on Returns

National Society of Accountarits membershave seen them all

Alexandria, VA, March 26, 2007 - Ever make a mistake on your tax return? If so, you're not alone.

Mictalac nan ~nnb iimis mmmeass OO .





PUBLIC NOTICE

The King County Housing Authority (KCHA) announces the availability of its draft
Making Transition Work (MTW) Annual Plan for fiscal year 2008, which begins on July
1, 2007. The MTW program is a HUD demonstration program that allows high-
performing housing authorities to make program and policy changes to (1) increase the
housing choices of low-income families, (2) help residents achieve self-sufficiency, and
(3) increase the cost-effectiveness of federal housing programs. As an MTW participant,
KCHA is required to develop an MTW Annual Plan. The MTW Annual Plan outlines
and identifies policies that the housing authority plans to change during the coming fiscal
year. The Draft Plan will be available for review beginning March 19, 2007, during
normal business hours at KCHA’s Administrative Offices (600 Andover Park West,
Tukwila, Washington). KCHA will hold a Public Hearing to review and receive
comment regarding: (1) the draft MTW Annual Plan for FY 2008; and, (2) proposed
changes to policies governing Tenant Selection Preferences and Annual Income and
Assets proposed for implementation in FY 2007. The Public Hearing will be held on
April 5th, 2007, at 7:00 P.M. at KCHA’s Central Administrative Office at 600 Andover
Park West; Tukwila, Washington. The draft plan can be e-mailed to interested members
of the public upon request by calling Judi Jones, MTW Program Director at (206) 574-
1100. Written comments regarding the MTW Plan and policy proposals can be submitted
by mail prior to April 5%, 2007 to the following address: KCHA MTW Plan, Attn: Judi
Jones, 600 Andover Park West, Tukwila, Washington 98188.





REQUEST NO.

REQUISITION FORM requrstio. REQ= 044937

King County Housing Authority
600 Andover Park West
Seattle WA 98188

04022 020
NORTHWEST ASIAN WKLY KCHA
DBA NORTHWEST ASIAN WEEKLY 600 ANDOVER PARK WEST
PO BOX 3468 SEATTLE, WA 98188
SEATTLE WA 98114, 98114

Project No. Requested By: CHERYLS Title

3/21/07 3/23/07

PO #47417 ASSIGNED
MTW PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE EA 1 240.00 240.00
AD IN PAPER

TOTAL THIS REQUISTION-> 240.00

UUSTIFICATION/PURPOSE: MTW PUBLIC NOTICE FOR JUDI JONES

P99 42240030910

v

B 9 15

4 10 16

5 11 17

6 12 18

FUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE DATE EXEC./DEP. DIRECTOR SIGNATURE DATE

IN\CCOUNTING APPROVAL SIGNATURE DATE FUNDS AVAILABILITY P.O. NUMBER APPROVED VENDOR/ENVIRONMENT AL REVIEW
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PUBLIC NOTICE

The King County Housing Authority (KCHA) announces the availability of its draft
Making Transition Work (MTW) Annual Plan for fiscal year 2008, which begins on July
1, 2007. The MTW program is a HUD demonstration program that allows high-
performing housing authorities to make program and policy changes to (1) increase the
housing choices of low-income families, (2) help residents achieve self-sufficiency, and
(3) increase the cost-effectiveness of federal housing programs. As an MTW participant,
KCHA is required to develop an MTW Annual Plan. The MTW Annual Plan outlines
and identifies policies that the housing authority plans to change during the coming fiscal
year. The Draft Plan will be available for review beginning March 19, 2007, during
normal business hours at KCHA’s Administrative Offices (600 Andover Park West,
Tukwila, Washington). KCHA will hold a Public Hearing to review and receive
comment regarding: (1) the draft MTW Annual Plan for FY 2008; and, (2) proposed
changes to policies governing Tenant Selection Preferences and Annual Income and
Assets proposed for implementation in FY 2007. The Public Hearing will be held on
April 5th, 2007, at 7:00 P.M. at KCHA’s Central Administrative Office at 600 Andover
Park West; Tukwila, Washington. The draft plan can be e-mailed to interested members
of the public upon request by calling Judi Jones, MTW Program Director at (206) 574-
1100. Written comments regarding the MTW Plan and policy proposals can be submitted
by mail prior to April 5%, 2007 to the following address: KCHA MTW Plan, Attn: Judi
Jones, 600 Andover Park West, Tukwila, Washington 98188.






_1239451327/Appendix E - Section 8 Waiting List Demographics.pdf
Appendix E

Section 8 Waiting List Demographics

Private Housing - PBS8

910

Household Type Race / Ethnicity
i Mixed /
Wait List Type Households | 202" Disabled  Eiderly  Family  Unknown | White  Black Native  psian  Hispanic ixed
Income American Unknown
General Voucher 467 $8,899 103 10 354 0 96 77 5 14 3 272

Private Housing - PBS8

$9,929

17%

8%

2% 10%

Note : KCHA's Section 8 waiting list reopened April 26 - May 9, 2006 during which time more than 10,000 families completed the application process. To accurately project
characteristics of applicants during FY 2008, data shown reflects households remaining on the waiting list as of April 1, 2007, following “lottery” assignment of 2500 available

positions. As noted in the MTW FY 2008 Annual Plan, KCHA anticipates opening the Section 8 waiting list in the near future.

Household Type Race / Ethnicity
Wait List Type Households | VANl 1 bled Elderly Family Unknown | White  Black Native  ,Gan  Hispanic xed!
Income American Unknown
General Voucher 467 $8,899 22% 2% 76% 0% 21% 16% 1% 3% 1% 58%
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Appendix B: Mixed Population Development Demographics

Income Group (As % of Area|
Median income

Primary Income Source

North BRIARWOOD $9,238 0 0
NORTHRIDGE | 70 8.5 $9,187] 61 6 3 2 0
NORTHRIDGE !l 70 8.9 $9,543) 60 10 2 0
PARAMOUNT HOUSE 70 6.8 $9,162] 67 3 1 3 3
THE LAKE HOUSE 68 8.4 $9,608] 54 13 1 1 1
Subtotal] 347 8.2 $9,347) 297 44 7 0 8 4
|East CASA JUANITA 80 8.3 $8,681] 69 8 3 3 1
EASTRIDGE HOUSE 40 77 $9,016] 37 3 0 2 0
FOREST GLEN 40 8.3 $8,839] 38 1 3 6 1
Subtotal] 160 8.2 $8,842] 142 12 6 0 11 2
Southwest BOULEVARD MANOR 70 5.2 $8,828] 60 9 1 4 0
BRITTANY PARK 43 5.1 $9,407] 37 4 0 2 4 0
MUNRO MANOR 60 6.7 $8,951] 53 6 1 3 1
YARDLEY ARMS 67 71 $6,807] 62 4 1 2 1
RIVERTON TERRACE (Mixed) 29 8.3 $8,584] 26 2 1 1 0
Subtotiil 269 6.3 $8,533] 238 25 4 2 14 2
Southeast MARDI GRAS JI 60 9.6 $9,8371 55 4 1 1 1
I Subtotal 60 9.6 $9,837] 55 4 1 0 1 1
JSouth CASA MADRONA 69 55 $11,807] 61 6 1 1 6 0
GUSTAVES MANOR 35 7.8 $9,315| 29 6 1 1
PLAZA SEVENTEEN 70 7.5 $9,801| 62 6 2 0 0
SOUTHRIDGE HOUSE 80 8.2 $8,722] 69 7 2 2 0 1
'WAYLAND ARMS 67 5.7 $9,307} 61 5 0 1 1 1
Subtotal 321 7.8 $9,810F 282 30 5 4 8 3
Income Group (As % of Area Primary Income Source
Median Income

BRIARWOOD

$9,238| 80%

NORTHRIDGE | 70 8.5 59,187] 87% 9% 4% 0% 3% 0%

NORTHRIDGE Il 70 89 14% 0% 0% 3% 0%

PARAMOUNT HOUSE 70 6.8 4% 1% 0% 4% 4%

THE LAKE HOUSE 68 8.4 77% 19% 1% 0% 1% 1%

_ Subtotal] 347 8.2 $9,347] 85% 13% 2% 0% 2% 1%

East CASA JUANITA 80 8.3 $8,681] 88% 10% 4% 0% % %
EASTRIDGE HOUSE 40 7.7 $9,016] 93% 8% 0% 0% 5% 0%

FOREST GLEN 40 8.3 $8,839] 80% 3% 8% 0% 15% 3%

Subtotal] 160 8.2 $8,842] 90% 8% 4% 0% 7% 1%

Southwest BOULEVARD MANOR 70 5.2 $6,628] 87%  13% 1% 0% 6% 0%
BRITTANY PARK 43 5.1 $9,407] 86% 9% 0% 5% 9% 0%

MUNRO MANOR 60 6.7 $8,051] 81% 10% 2% 0% 5% 2%

YARDLEY ARMS 67 7.1 $6,897] 93% 6% 1% 0% 3% 1%

RIVERTON TERRACE (Mixed) 20 8.3 $8.584] 87% 7% 3%  o% 3% 0%

Subtotal 269 6.3 $8,533] 89% 9% 1% 1% 5% 1%

Southeast [MARDI GRAS ) 9.6 $9,837] 80% 7% 2% 0% 2% 2%
Subtotal| 60 9.6 $9.837] 90% 7% 2% 0% 2% 2%

South CASA MADRONA 69 55 $11,907] 88% 9% 1% 1% 9% 0%
GUSTAVES MANOR 35 7.8 $9,315] 83% 17% 0% 0% 3% 3%

PLAZA SEVENTEEN 70 7.5 50,801 89% 9% 3% 0% 0% 0%

SOUTHRIDGE HOUSE 80 8.2 $8,722] 86% 9% 3% 3% 0% 1%

\WAYLAND ARMS 67 57 $9,307] ®1% 7% 0% 1% 1% 1%

Subtotal 321 7.8 $9,810] 88% 9% 2% 1% 2% 1%






Appendix B: Mixed Population Development Demographics

Household Type

Race / Ethnic Group

Unit Size (# of
Bedrooms)

North BRIARWOOD 22 45 2 49 7 1 5 4 3 89
NORTHRIDGE { 30 40 0 47 15 0 6 1 1 42 27 1
NORTHRIDGE It 21 48 1 48 14 2 3 0 3| 69 1
PARAMOUNT HOUSE 27 42 1 47 12 0 7 2 2 42 27 1
THE LAKE HOUSE 18 49 1 47 6 0 10 1 4 67 1
— Subtotal] 118 | 224 5 238 54 3 31 8 13 84 259 4
|East CASA JUANITA 23 57 0 60 9 0 8 2 1 80
EASTRIDGE HOUSE 14 26 0 33 1 0 6 0 0 39 1
JFOREST GLEN 16 23 1 29 5 1 3 1 1 40
| - Subtotal 53 106 1 122 16 1 17 3 2 0 159 1
Southwest BOULEVARD MANOR 30 38 2 32 18 1 3 3 13 70
BRITTANY PARK 19 21 3 29 8 0 2 2 2 43
MUNRO MANOR 28 30 2 38 g 0 1 8 4 60
YARDLEY ARMS 26 40 1 39 15 0 8 1 4 67
RIVERTON TERRACE (Mixed) 7 19 3 8 9 0 4 0 8} 29
I_ Subtotal| 110 148 11 146 59 1 18 14 31 0 269 0
Southeast MARDI GRAS | 2 58 0 55 2 0 1 0 2 60
Subtotal| 2 58 0 56 2 0 1 0 2 60 0
South CASA MADRONA 24 44 1 63 0 0 4 0 2 69
GUSTAVES MANOR 4 31 0 29 3 0 1 1 1 4 31
PLAZA SEVENTEEN 8 62 0 64 1 0 4 1 0 70
SOUTHRIDGE HOUSE 10 70 0 30 24 1 22 1 2 80
WAYLAND ARMS 17 50 0 61 2 0 2 0 2 36 30 1
1 1 3

BRIARWOOD

Household Type

65% 3%

Race / Ethnlc Group

1% 7%

6%

4%

Unit Size (# of
Bedrooms)

North 32% 71% 0% 100% 0%
NORTHRIDGE | 43% 57% 0% 67% 21% 0% 8% 1% 1% §0% 39% 1%
NORTHRIDGE Il 30% 69% 1% 69%  20% 3% 4% 0% 4% 0% 99% 1%
PARAMOUNT HOUSE 39% 61% 1% 68% 17% 0% 10% 3% 3% 61% 39% 1%
THE LAKE HOUSE 26% 70% 1% 67% 9% 0% 14% 1% 6% 0% 96% 1%
— Subtotal]l  34% 64% 1% 68%  16% 1% 9% 2% 4% 24% T74% 1%
East CASA JUANITA 29% 73% 0% 77% 12% 0% 10% 3% 1% 0% 103% 0%
EASTRIDGE HOUSE 35% 65% 0% 83% 3% 0% 15% 0% 0% 0% 98% 3%
FOREST GLEN 40% 58% 3% 73%  13% 3% 8% 3% 3% 0% 100% 0%
- Subtotal} 34% 67% 1% 77% 9% 1% 11% 2% 1% 0% 101% 1%
Southwest BOULEVARD MANOR 43% 55% 3% 46%  26% 1% 4% 4% 19% 0% 101% 0%
BRITTANY PARK 44% 49% 7% 67% 19% 0% 5% 5% 5% 0% 100% 0%
MUNRO MANOR 48% 52% 3% 66% 16% 0% 2% 14% 7% 0% 103% 0%
YARDLEY ARMS 39% 60% 1% 58%  22% 0% 12% 1% 6% 0% 100% 0%
RIVERTON TERRACE (Mixed) 23% 83% 10% | 27%  30% 0% 13% 0% 27% 0% 987% 0%
- Subtotal] 41% 56% 4% 55%  22% 0% 7% 5% 12% 0% 101% 0%
Southeast IMARDI GRAS 3% 95% 0% 80% 3% 0% 2% 0% 3% 0% 98% 0%
Subtotal 3% 95% 0% 90% 3% 0% 2% 0% 3% 0% 98% 0%
South CASA MADRONA 35% 64% 1% 91% 0% 0% 6% 0% 3% 0% 100% 0%
GUSTAVES MANOR 1% 89% 0% 83% 9% 0% 3% 3% 3% 1% 89%% 0%
PLAZA SEVENTEEN 1% 89% 0% 91% 1% 0% 6% 1% 0% 0% 100% 0%
SOUTHRIDGE HOUSE 13% 88% 0% 38%  30% 1% 28% 1% 3% 0% 100% 0%
WAYLAND ARMS 25% 75% 0% 91% 3% 0% 3% 0% 3% 54% 45% 1%
Subtotal] 20%







_1239451011/Funding Allocation Forms - FY 2008 MTW Plan.pdf
APPLICATION FOR Version 7/03
FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 2. DATE SUBMITTED 0115/2006 Applicant Identifier
1. TYPE OF SUBMISSION: 3. DATE RECEIVED BY STATE State Application identifier
Application Pre-application
3 construction B construction 4, DATE RECEIVED BY FEDERAL AGENCY |Federal identifier
. on WA00202507D

o (|
5. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Legal Name:

| Organizational Unit:

Other (specify)

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING, OLYMPIA Department:
Organizational DUNS: Division:
02-024-4976
Address: Name and telephone number of person to be contacted on matters
Street: Involving this application {give area code)
Prefix: First Name:

600 ANDOVER PARK WEST MS CONSTANCE

City: Middle Name
SEATLE

County: Last Name
KING DAVIS

State: Zip Code Suffix:
WA 98188

Country: Emall:

USA CONNIED@KCHA.ORG
6. EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (E/N): Phone Number (give area code) Fax Number (give area code)
pl[1]=-El0lblp]E]T (208) 574-1110 (206) 574-1104
8. TYPE OF APPLICATION: 7. TYPE OF APPLICANT: (See back of form for Application Types)
0O New B continuation  [J Revision
Revision, enter appropriate letter(s) in box(es) C. MUNICIPAL
KSee back of form for description of letters.) D D Other (specify)

9. NAME OF FEDERAL AGENCY:
DEPT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT

10. CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE NUMBER:

TITLE (Name of Program):

(M4~ 51l

11. DESCRIPTIVE TITLE OF APPLICANT'S PROJECT:
PUBLIC HOUSING OPERATING SUBSIDY

12, AREAS AFFECTED BY PROJECT (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):
CITY OF OLYMPIA

14. CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICTS OF:

13. PROPOSED PROJECT —
Start Date: Ending Date: a. Applicant b. Project
JANUARY 1, 2007 DECEMBER 31, 2007 9TH, ADAM SMITH 3RD, BRIAN BAIRD
15. ESTIMATED FUNDING: 16. 18 APPLICATION SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY STATE EXECUTIVE
ORDER 12372 PROCESS?
a. Federal w 2, Yes. [] THIS PREAPPLICATION/APPLICATION WAS MADE
100,000 - Y85 I AVAILABLE TO THE STATE EXECUTIVE ORDER 12372
b. Applicant .°° PROCESS FOR REVIEW ON
c. State had DATE:
d. Local ."" b.No. [#] PROGRAM IS NOT COVERED BY E. O. 12372
6. Other A [J ORPROGRAM HAS NOT BEEN SELECTED BY STATE
FOR REVIEW _
f. Program Income F 175.000 w 17. IS THE APPLICANT DELINQUENT ON ANY FEDERAL DEBT?
P
g TOTAL 275,000 U Yes If “Yes" attach an explanation. @ no

IATTACHED ASSURANCES IF THE ASSISTANCE IS AWARDED.

18. TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, ALL DATA IN THIS APPLICATION/PREAPPLICATION ARE TRUE AND CORRECT. THE
DOCUMENT HAS BEEN DULY AUTHORIZED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE APPLICANT AND THE APPLICANT WILL COMPLY WITH THE

Prefix

First Nam iddie Name
MS |FirstNeme o sTANCE p
Last Name uffix
DAVIS
b. Titl c. Telephone Number (give area code)

{206) 574-1110

e
ASSISTANT EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

s

. Date Signed
r SEPTEMBER 15, 2006

AuthariZed for Local Reproduction

Standard Form 424 (Rev.8-2003)
Prescribed bv OMB Circular A-102





Certification of Payments
to Influence Federal Transactions

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Applicant Name

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING ~ OLYMPIA

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding
PUBLIC HOUSING OPERATING SUBSIDY S-020

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connec-
tion with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its
instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this
certificationbe included in the award documents for all subawards
at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered
into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.

(18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official

CONSTANCE DAVIS

Title
ASSISTANT EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Signature

o cee (PR~

Date (mm/dd/yyyy)

9/15/2006

Previous edition is obsolete

form HUD 80071 (3/98)
ref. Handboooks 7417.1,7475.13, 7485.1, & 7485.3





Operating Fund U.S. Department of Housing and
Calculation of Operating Subsidy Urban Development
PHA-Owned Rental Housing Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB Approval No. 2677-0029 (exp. 10/31/2008)

Public Reporting Burden for this collection of information is estimated to average .75 hours per responss, Including the time for reviewing Instructions, searching existing data
|sources, gathering and maintaining the data nesded, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. This agsncy may not collect this information, and you are not
required to complete this form, uniess it displays a currently valid OMB control number. This information is required by Section 9(a) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1637, s amended,
and by 24 CFR Part 880 HUD regulations. HUD makes payments for the operation and maintenance of iow-income housing projects to PHAs. The Operating Fund determines the
amount of operating subsidy to be paid to PHAs. PHAs provide information on the Projoct Expense Level (PEL), Utiiities Expenee Level (UEL), Other Formula Expenses (Add-Ons)
and Formule income - the major Operating Fund components. HUD reviews the i to each PHA's Formula Amount and the funds to be cbfigated for the Funding
Period to each PHA based on the appropriation by Congress. HUD aiso uses the information es the basis for requesting annual appropriations from Congress. Responces to the
collection of information are required to obtain a benefit. The information request does not land itseif to confidentiallty

Section 1
1. Name and Address of Public Housing Agency: 2, Funding Period: 1I1/mm 1231/ Q7

713, Type of Submission:
Original
Revision No.
8. Oporatlng Fund Pro)ect Numbor

HUD Use Only
8. ROFO Code: 1001 9. Financlal Analyst:

Section 2
Calculation of ACC Units for the 12-month period from July 1 to June 30 that Is prior to the first day of the Funding Perlod:
ACC Unitson 7/1/ 2005 | + |Units Added to ACC = |Units Deleted from ACC = | ACC Units on 6/30/ 2006
70 0 0 70
Line Column A Column B Column €
No Category Unit Months Eligible Unit Months (EUMs) Reslident Participation Unit
’ Months
Categorization of Unit Months:
Occupled Unit Months
01 |Occupied dwelling units - by public 822 822 ) 822
housing eligibie family under lease

02 |Occupied dwelling units - by PHA
employee, polics officer, or other security
personnel who Is not otherwise eligible for
public housing

03 |New Units - eligible to receive subsidy
during the funding period but not included - -
on Lines 01, 02, or 05-13 of this sectlon
04 |New Units - eligible to recslve subsidy
from 10/1 to 12/31 of previous funding
period but not included on previous
Calculation of Operating Subsidy
Vacant Unit Months

05 {Units undergoing modemization

06 |Special use units

06a |Units on Line 02 that are occupied by
police officers and that aiso qualify as
special use units

07 |Units vacant due to litigation

08 |Units vacant due to disasters

09 |Units vacant due to casuaity losses

10  [Unlts vacant due to changing market

conditions
11 |Units vacant and not categorized above
Other ACC Unit Months

12 |Units eligible for asset repositioning fee
and still on ACC (occupied or vacant)
13 | Ali other ACC units not categorized above

Previous edition is obsolete Eage 1 form HUD-52723 (08/2005)

07 PFS OLY 9-18-08.xis 52723 A ©/18/2008 5:15PM





Operating Fund Project Number:

WA

2002570

Calculations Based on Unit Months:

14

Limited vacancies

15

Total Unit Months

18

Untts Eligibie for resident
participation activities (Line 15C divided
by 12)

Speclal Provision for Calculation of Utiiities Expense Level:

17  {Unit months for which actual consumption
is included on Line 01 of form HUD-
52722 and that were removed from Lines
01 through 11, above, because of
removal from inventory, including :
eligibility for the asset repositioning fee L
Section 3
;’:‘ Description Requested by PHA | HUD Modifications
Part A. Formula Expense
Project Expense Level (PEL)
01 |PUM project expense level (PEL) 244.66
02 |inflation factor 1.024
03 |PUM Inflated PEL (Part A, Line 01 times Line 02) 250.53
04 |PEL (Part A, Line 03 times Section 2, Line 15, Column B) 210,445
Utilities Expense Level
05 |PUM utilities expense level (UEL) (from Line 26 of form HUD-52722) 103.84
068 [UEL (Part A, Line 05 times Section 2, Line 15, Column B) 87,310
Add-Ons
07 |Seif-sufficiency -
08 |Energy loan amortization 4,808
00 |[Payment in Lieu of taxes (PILOT) 11,300
10 |Cost of independent audit 586
11  |Funding for resident participation activities 1,725
12 |Asset management fee 3,360
13 |Information technology fee 1,680
14 |Asset Repositioning fee
15 |Costs attributable to changes in federal law, regulation, or economy -
16 |Total Add-Ons (Sum of Part A, Lines 07 through 15) 23,549
17  |Total Formula Expenses (Part A, Line 04 plus Line 06 pius Line 168) 321,304
Part B. Formula income
01 |PUM formula income 198.75
02 |PUM change in utility allowances -
03 |PUM adjusted formula income (Sum of Part B, Lines 01 and 02) 198.75
04 |Total Formula Income (Part B, Line 03 times Section 2, Line 15, Column B) 166,950
Part C. Other Formula Provisions
01 |Moving-to-Work (MTW) -
02 |[Transition funding (17,297)
03 [Other . -
04 [Total Other Formula Provislons (Sum of Part C, Lines 01 through 03) (17,297)
Part D, Caicuiation of Formula Amount
01 |Formula calculation (Part A, Line 17 minus Part B, Line 04 plus Part C, Line 04) 137,058
02 |Cost of independent audit (same as Part A, Line 10) 588
03 |Formula amount ngater of Part D, Lines 01'or 02) 137,058
Part E. Calculation of Operating Subsidy (HUD Use Only)
01 |Formula amount (same as Part D, Line 03) 137,058
02 |Adjustment due to availabiiity of funds (30,153)
03 |HUD discretionary adjustments -
04 |Funds Obligated for Period (Part E, Line 01 minus Line 02 minus Line 03)
Appropriatiation symbol(s): 106,805
“Previous edition I§ obsolate Page 2 form HUD-52723 (08/2005)

07 PFS OLY 9-19-08.ds 52723 B' 6/18/2008 11:50 AM





Operating Fund Project Number:
WA OO0 200 257D

Section 4

Remarks (provide section, part and line numbers):

Section 5

Certifications:
[X] In accordance with 24 CFR 990.215, | hereby certify that

HUD Requirements and regulations

[X] 1n accordance with 24 CFR 880(f), | hereby certify that

1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

HA of King County — OLYPMIA _ Housing Agency Is In compliance with the annual

income reexamination requirements and that rents and utility allowance calculations have been or will be adjusted In accordance with current

HA of King County — OLYPMIA _ Housing Agency has fewer than 250 units and

has elected to transition to asset management and therefore is eligible to recelve an asset management fee.

[X] 1 hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, Is true and
accurate. Waming: HUD will prosecute false cialms and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penaities. (18 U. S. C.

Signature of Auth PHA Representitive & Date:

X e 2 (P~

Signature of Authorized HUD Representitive & Date:

X 9-/5-06

form HUD-52723 (08/2005)

Pravious edition is obsolete

Page 3
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APPLICATION FOR Version 7/03

FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 2. DATE SUBMITTED O15/2006 Applicant Identifier
1. TYPE OF SUBMISSION: 3. DATE RECEIVED BY STATE State Application identifier
Application Pre-application
3 construction B construction 4. DATE RECEIVED BY FEDERAL AGENCY | Federal Identifier
Non- |CINon-Construction WA00200307D
5. APPLICANT INFORMATION
Legal Name: | Organizationat Unit: i
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING Department:
Organizational DUNS: Division:
02-024-4976
Address: Name and telephone number of person to be contacted on matters
Street: involving this application (give area code)
Prefix: IFirst Name;
600 ANDOVER PARK WEST MS CONSTANCE
City: Middie Name
SEATLE
C : Last N
ounty KING ame DAVIS
State: Zip Code Suffix:
WA PO ga1es S
Country: Email:
USA . CONNIED@KCHA.ORG
6. EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (E/Nj: Phone Number (give area code) Fax Number (give area code)
@l‘_ﬂ-]; @@ (206) 574-1110 (206) 574-1104
8. TYPE OF APPLICATION: 7. TYPE OF APPLICANT: (See back of form for Application Types)
3 New P} continuation [0 Revision
hf Ravision, enter appropriate letter(s) in box(es) C. MUNICIPAL
See back of form for description of letters.) D D Other (specify)
Other (specify) 9. NAME OF FEDERAL AGENCY:
‘ DEPT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT
10. CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE NUMBER: 11. DESCRIPTIVE TITLE OF APPLICANT’S PROJECT:
mm_@@@ PUBLIC HOUSING OPERATING SUBSIDY
TITLE (Name of Program):
12. AREAS AFFECTED BY PROJECT (Clties, Counties, States, etc.):
KING COUNTY
13. PROPOSED PROJECT 14, CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICTS OF:
Start Date: Ending Date: a. Applicant b. Project
JANUARY 1, 2007 DECEMBER 31, 2007 9TH, ADAM SMITH 2ND, 7TH, 8TH, 9TH
15. ESTIMATED FUNDING: 16. IS APPLICATION SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY STATE EXECUTIVE
ORDER 12372 PROCESS?
a. Federal W a. Yes. [J THIS PREAPPLICATION/APPLICATION WAS MADE
7,000,000 - 168 AVAILABLE TO THE STATE EXECUTIVE ORDER 12372
b. Applicant o PROCESS FOR REVIEW ON
c. State Al DATE:
1.
d. Local . b.No. Il PROGRAM 1S NOT COVERED BY E. O. 12372
e. Other At O OR PROGRAM HAS NOT BEEN SELECTED BY STATE
FOR REVIEW
f. Program Income F 7,000,000 e 17.18 THE APPLICANT DELINQUENT ON ANY FEDERAL DEBT?
o0
9. TOTAL 14,000,000 Ul ves If “Yes" attach an explanation. No
118. TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, ALL DATA IN THIS APPLICATION/PREAPPLICATION ARE TRUE AND CORRECT, THE
DOCUMENT HAS BEEN DULY AUTHORIZED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE APPLICANT AND THE APPLICANT WILL COMPLY WITH THE
ATTACHED ASSURANCES IF THE ASSISTANCE IS AWARDED.
|a. Authorized Representative _
Prefix MS First Name CONSTANCE rmddle Name
Last Name uffix
DAVIS
tie c. Telephone Number (give area code)
ASSISTANT EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (206) 574-1110
F. Signatur ed Repre: e la Date Signed
SEPTEMBER 18§, 2006
Previo sable Standard Form 424 (Rev.9-2003)

Authorizéd for Local Reoroduction Prescribed bv OMB Circular A-102





Certification of Payments
to Influence Federal Transactions

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Applicant Name

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding
PUBLIC HOUSING OPERATING SUBSIDY SF-173

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a8 Member of Congress in connec-
tion with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its
instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this
certification be included in the award documents for all subawards
at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered
into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $§100,000 for each such failure,

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.

(18 U.8.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.8.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official Titie
CONSTANCE DAVIS ASSISTANT EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Signature Date (mm/dd/yyyy)

vires ﬁff %/— 9/15/2006

Previous edition is obsolets

form HUD 50071 (3/08)
ref. Handboooks 7417.1,7475.13, 7485.1, & 7485.3





Operating Fund U.S. Department of Housing and

Caicuiation of Operating Subsidy Urban Development
PHA-Owned Rental Housing Office of Public and Indian Housing

oMB Approvai No. 2577-0021@@0/31/2008
Public Reporting Burden for this coliection of information is eatimated fo average .75 hours per response, inciuding the time for reviewing instructions, searching exiating dats
sources, gathering and maintalning tha data needed, and completing and reviewing the cofiection of information. This agency may not caliect this information, and you are not
{required to compieta this form, unless it displays a currsntly valid OMB control number. This Information is required by Section 8(a) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as amended,
and by 24 CFR Part 980 HUD reguiations. HUD makes paymants for the operation and maintenance of low-income housing projects to PHAs. Tha Operating Fund determines the
amount of operating subsidy to be paid to PHAs. PHAS provide information on the Project Expense Lavel (PEL), Utilities Expense Level (UEL), Other Formuia Expenses (Add-Ons)
and Formula Income - the major Operating Fund components. HUD reviews the information to determine each PHA's Formuis Amount and the funds to be obligated for the Funding
Period to each PHA based on tha appropriation by Congress. HUD also uses the Information as the basis for requesting annuai appropristions from Congress, Responces (o the
collection of information are required 1o obtain a benefit. The information requast does not lend Itseif to confidentiality

. Section 1 .
1. Name and Address of Public Housing Agency: 2. Funding Period: 11/ B to 1231/ 01

3. Type of Submission:
Onginal
Revision No.

6. Opcraﬂng Fund Project Number

Fiscal Year End: __

-12131. w1 X srso 8/30

HUD Use Only _

#218. ROFO Code: 1001 9. Financlal Analyst:
Section 2
Calculation of ACC Units for the 12-month period from July 1 to June 30 that is prior to the first day of the Funding Period:
ACC Units on 7/1/ 2005 + {Units Added to ACC = |Units Deleted from ACC = | ACC Units on 6/30/ 2006
3,222 0 301 2,921

Line column A Column B Column C
No. Category Unlit Months Eligible Unit Months (EUMs) Resldent Participation Unit

: Months
Categorization of Unit Months:
Occupled Unit Months
01 |Occupisd dwelling units - by public

housing eligible family under lease 33128 3329 - 33120

02 |Occupied dwelling units - by PHA
employee, police officer, or other security
personnel who is not otherwise eligible for
public housing

03 |New Units - eliglble to receive subsidy
during the funding period but not included - -
on Lines 01, 02, or 05-13 of this section
04 |New Units - eligible to receive subsidy
from 10/1 to 12/31 of previous funding
period but not inciuded on previous
Calculation of Operating Subsidy
Vacant Unit Months

05  jUnits undergoing modernization

06 |Special use units

06a {Units on Line 02 that are occupied by
police officers and that also qualify as
special use units

07  {Units vacant due to litigation

08 |Units vacant due to disasters

08 |Units vacant due to casualty losses

10 {Units vacant due to changing market

conditions
11 {Units vacant and not categorized above
Other ACC Unit Months

12 |Units eligible for asset repositioning fee
and still on ACC (occupied or vacant)
13 |Ali other ACC units not categorized above

“Frevious edition is obsolete "Page 1 Torm HUD-52723 (08/2005)
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Operating Fund Project Number:

WA O

200307D

Calculations Based on Unit Months:

14 |Limited vacancies

1,052

15 |Total Unit Months

16 |Units Eligible for resident

participation activities (Line 15C divided R
by 12) o
Speclal Provision for Caiculation of Utllities Expense Level:

2,761

17  {Unit months for which actual consumption
is included on Line 01 of form HUD-
52722 and that were removed from Lines
01 through 11, above, because of
removati from inventory, including
sligibllity for the asset repositioning fee

‘;;“ Description Requested by PHA HUD Modtfications
Part A. Formula Expense
Project Expense Level (PEL)
01 |PUM project expense level (PEL) 317.83
02 {Infiation factor 1.024
03 |PUM inflated PEL (Part A, Line 01 times Line 02) 325.48
04 |PEL (Part A, Line 03 times Section 2, Line 15, Column B) 11,213,073
Utilities Expense Level
05 |PUM utliities expense ievel (UEL) (from Line 26 of form HUD-52722) 81.93
08 [UEL (Part A, Line 05 times Section 2, Line 15, Column B) 2,822,734
Add-Ons
07 |Self-sufficiency 309,965
08 |Energy loan amortization 135,195
09 [Payment in Lieu of taxes (PILOT) 510,784
10 |Cost of independent audit 25,229
11 |Funding for resident participation activities 68,025
12 |Asset management fee 140,208
13 linformation technology fee 70,104
14 |{Asset Repositioning fee 413,741
15 |Costs attributable to changes in federal law, reguiation, or economy -
16 |{Total Add-Ons (Sum of Part A, Lines 07 through 15) 1,674,251
17 [Total Formula Expenses (Part A, Line 04 plus Line 08 plus Line 16) 15,710,058
Part B, Formula income
01 {PUM formula income 197.17
02 |PUM change in utility allowances -
03 |PUM adjusted formula income (Sum of Part B, Lines 01 and 02) 187.17
04 |Total Formula Income (Part B, Line 03 times Section 2, Line 15, Column B) 6,793,098
Part C. Other Formula Provisions
01 |Moving-to-Work (MTW) -
02 |[Transition funding 182,272
03 |Other -
04 |Total Other Formula Provisions (Sum of Part C, Lines 01 through 03) 182,272
Part D. Caiculation of Formula Amount
01 |Formula calculation (Part A, Line 17 minus Part B, Line 04 plus Part C, Line 04) 9,099,232
02 |Cost of independent audit (same as Part A, Line 10) 25,229
03 |Formula amount {greater of Part D, Lines 01 or 02) 9,089,232
Part E. Calculation of Operating Subsidy (HUD Use Only)
01 jFormuia amount (same as Part D, Line 03) 9,099,232
02 |Adjustment due to availability of funds (2,001,831)
03 |HUD discretionary adjustments
04 IFunds Obligated for Period (Part E, Line 01 minus Line 02 minus Line 03)
Appropriatiation symbol(s): 7,097,401
Previous edition Is obsolete " Page 2 form HUD-52723 (08/2005)
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Operating Fund Project Number:
WAOO0O2003070D
Section 4
Remarks (provide section, part and line numbers):
Section 5

Certifications:
|E In accordance with 24 CFR 990.215, | hereby certify that HA of King County Housing Agency is in compliance with the annual
income reexamination requirtements and that rents and utility allowance calculations have been or will be adjusted in accordance with current

HUD Requirements and regulations

E In accordance with 24 CFR 89((f), 1 hereby certify that HA of King County Housing Agency has fewer than 250 units and

has elected to transition to asset management and therefore is eligible to receive an asset management fee.

IE | hereby certify that alf the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and

accurate. Waming: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may resuit in criminal and/or civit penalties. (18 U. S. C.

1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Signature of Authorized PHA Repressntitive & Dats: Signature of Authorized HUD Representitive & Date;

X forrtbns LT~ X 91506

-~

Page 3 form HUD-52723 (08/2005)
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Operating Fund U.S. Department of Housing and
Calculation of Utilities Expense Level Urban Development

~ PHA-Owned Rental Housing Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB Approval No. 2577-0029 (exp. 10/31/2008)

Public Reporting Burden for this collection of information is estimated to average .75 hours per response, including the time for reviewing Instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and
compieting and reviewing the collection of information. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not required to complete this form unless it displays a currently valid OMB coltrol number. This information Is required
by Section (a) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as amended, and by 24 CFR Part 990 HUD regulations. HUD makes payments for the operation and maintenance of low-income housing projects to PHAs. The Operating Fund
|determines the amount of operating subsidy to be paid to PHAs. PHAs provide information on the Project Expense Level (PEL), Utilities Expense Level (UEL), Other Formula Expenses (Add-Ons) and Formuta income - the major
Operating Fund components. HUD reviews the information to determine each PHA's Formula Amount and the funds to be obligated for the period to each PHA based on the appropriation by Congress. HUD also usas the information
as the basis for requesting annual appropriations from Congress. Responces to the collection of information are required to obtain a benefit. The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality.

Section 1 - General Information

1. Name of Public Housing Agency: 2. Funding Period: 3. Type of Submission: 4. Unit Change 5. Frozen 6. Rate
HA of King County Indicator: , Rolling Base: Reduction
600 Andover Park West mn or to 12/31/ 07 _M”_Ozcmzm_ : Incentive:
Seattle, WA 98188 [ JRevision No. [ Yes [Jves
7. ACC Number: 8. Operating Fund Project Number: 9. Fiscal Year End: 10. ROFO Code
~ {HUD Use Only):
SF-173 <<—> o]J]o]|2}]o0 ‘ 013]0 _ 7 — D _Ill_ 12131 D 3131 _M_ 6130 _u /30
Line Description Sewerage and Water|Electricity Gas Fuel (S| Type, e.4., oil, coal, wood
No. T
A B c D E F | G
Section 2 - Current Consumption Level
01 {Actuat consumption (12-month
period 7/1/ 05 to  6/30/ 08) 152,710,925 5,260,763 275,173
1
01a [Unit of consumption (e.g., Gallons Kwh CCF

gaflons, kWh, therms)

Section 3 - Rolling Base Consumption Level

02 jRolling base year 1-actual
consumption (12-month period 205,881,435 5,360,321 209,425
7/1/ 04 10 6/30/ 05)
03 ]Rolling base year 2-actual
consumption (12-month period 201,789,830 5,153,520 219,227
7/1/ 03 10 6/30/ 04)
04 |Roliing base year 3-actual
consumption {12-month period 183,598,057 4,775,775 250,430
7/1/ 02 to 6/30/ 03)

05 |Total Consumption during 3-

year rolling base period 591,269,322 15,289,616 679,083
(Line 02 + Line 03 + Line 04)
Previous editions are obsolete Page 1 of 7 form HUD-52722 ( 08/2005 )
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Operating Fund Project Number:

WA 0 0 2 0 0 3 0 7 D

06  |Average rolling base

ogm:na%o::w::o 05+3) 197,089,774 5,096,539 226,361
07  [Actual consumption for new

units
08  |Rolling Base Consumption

E:o:mm s tina07) p 197,089,774 5,096,539 226,361

Section 4 - Base Consumption

09  |Base Consumption (Lesser of

pase Consump o ( 152,710,925 5,096,539 226,361

Section 5 - Utility Consumption Incentive

10 Actual consumption > rolling

base (If Line 01 is greater than

Line 08, enter the difference as ) 164,224 48,812

positive; if not enter 0)
11 Actual consumption < rolling

base (If Line 01 is less than

Line 08, enter the difference as 44,378,849 ) )

positive; if not enter 0)
12 75%I25% Split (Line 10 x 0.25) - 41,056 12,203
13 75%125% Split (Line 11 x 0.75) 42,455,988 - -
14 |Annualization of consumption

for new units
15 Payable consumption (Sum of )

Line 09, Line 12, Line 13 and 195,166,913 5,137,595 238,564

Line 14)

Section 7 - Actual Utility Costs and Average Rate

16 |Actual utility costs (12-month

Feriod o Rhiai |8 1eoeses|s 356,558 | § 282,844
17 |Actual average utiity rate (Line 0.0009 0.0678 1.0279

16 + Line 01)

Section 8 - Base Utilitles and Inflation/Deflation Factor

18 |Base utilities expense level -

whole doliars (Line 15 x Line $ 1,928,016 | $ 348,329 | $ 245,220 $ 2,521,565

17)
19 |Surcharges for excess

consumption of PHA-supplied

utilities (12-month period 7/1/ 05

{o 8/30/_06) - whole dollars

Previous editions are obsolete
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20 Base utilities expense level
minus surcharges (Line 18
minus Line 19)

21 |uytiities inflation/deflation factor

22 |utilities expense level adjusted
for inflation/deflation - whole
dollars (Line 20 x Line 21)

23 Energy rate incentive

24 |Utilities expense level - whole
dollars (Line 22 + Line 23)

25  |Eligible unit months (from the
original form HUD-52723,
Column B, Line 15 plus Line 17
minus Line 04)

26  lutilities Expense Level - PUM

(Line 24 + Line 25)

Section 10 -xoa.m..ru ?..Q&no mon:os. —wwa n.:n ==o :::.fo-.mw,

Operating Fund Project Number:
WA Q0 2 00 307D

2,521,565

$ 2,822,892

$ 2,822,892

Previous editions are obsolete
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Operating Fund U.S. Department of Housing and
Calculatlon of Utilities mxvo:mb Level Urban Development
PHA-Owned Rental Housing Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB Approval No. 2577-0029 (exp. 10/31/2008)

Public Reporting Burden for this collection of information is estimated to average .75 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and

completing and reviewing the collection of information. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not required to complate this form unless it displays a currently vatid OMB cotrol number. This information is required

{by Section 9(a) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as amended, and by 24 CFR Part 990 HUD regulations. HUD makes payments for the operation and maintenance of low-income housing projects to PHAs. The Operating Fund

determines the amount of operating subsidy to be paid to PHAs. PHAs provide information on the Project Expense Level (PEL), Utilities Expense Level (UEL), Other Formula Expenses (Add-Ons) and Formula Income - the major

Ovﬁwg_uﬂdoﬂ._g Icoasmauc.w!.ﬂ:ﬁag.ono.n::_:uosn:I..)nﬂ%?gﬂacdgsgga&*ﬂggsggggggﬂgsg Icclsgaﬁgmao:
Q : appropriations oy esponces Bquired eq d does not lend itself to confide

Section1 - ma..o_.m_ Information

1. Name of Public Housing Agency: 2. Funding Period: 3. Type of Submission: 4. Unit Change 5. Frozen 6. Rate
HA of King County Indicator: Rolling Base: Reduction
600 Andover Park West 1/ 07  ©12/31/ 07 [X]original Incentive:
Seattie, WA 98188 [ IRevision No. ] ves [X]Yes [ Jves
7. ACC Number: 8. Operating Fund Project Number: 9. Fiscal Year End: 10. ROFO Code 11. DUNS Number:
(HUD Use Only):
SF-173 w _ Ajojol 2 ‘ o0jol]3 _ 0 _ 7 _ D 12431 _HH_ 31 E 6/30 D 9/30 02-024-4976
Line Description Sewerage and Water | Electricity Gas
No.
A B C D E {

Section 2 - Current Consumption Level

01 |Actual consumption (12-month
period 7/1/ 05 to 6/30/ 06 )

01a Unit of consumption (e.g.,
gallons, kWh, therms)

115,073,266

Gallons

Section 3 - Rolling Base Consumption Level

02 }Rolling base year 1-actual
consumption (12-month period 158,654,524
7/1/ 04 t06/30/ 05)
03 |Rolling base year 2-actual
consumption (12-month period 144,878,801
7/1/ 03 106/30/ 04)
04 |Rolling base year 3-actual
consumption (12-month period 128,159,678
7/102 t06/30/ 03)
05 {Total Consumption during 3-
year rolling base period 431,693,094
(Line 02 + Line 03 + Line 04)

Previous editions are obsolete Page 10of 7 form HUD-52722 ( 08/2005 )
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Operating Fund Project Number:
W A 0 0 2 0 0 3 0 7 D

06 Aw rolling base

Oc”q»w%huac:q.w::w 05+ 3) 143,897.698
07 |Actual consumption for new

units
08  |Rolling Base Consumption

E:%wm + Line 07) ° 143,897,698

Section 4 - Base Consumption

09  |Base Consumption (Lesser of

Line 01 or E:au 08) A 115,073.266

Section § - Utility Consumption Incentive

10 Actual consumption > rolling

base (If Line 01 is greater than

Line 08, enter the difference as )

positive; if not enter 0)
1 Actual consumption < rolling

base (If Line 01 is less than

Line 08, enter the difference as 28,824,432

positive; if not enter 0)
12 75%/25% Split (Line 10 x 0.25) - - -
13 ESCO 100% Spilit (Line 11 x 1) 28,824,432 - -

Section 6 - Payable Consumption

14 {Annualization of consumption o .

for new units
15 Payable consumption (Sum of

Line 09, Line 12, Line 13 and 143,897,698 - -

Line 14)

Section 7 - Actual Utility Costs and Average Rate

16 |Actual utility costs (12-month

period .S_\QB A to 6/30/ 06 $ 1:130.265
17 |Actual average utility rate (Line

3+:=mo% fyrate 0.0098

Section 8 - Base Utilities and Inflation/Deflation Factor

18 Base utilities expense level -

whole dollars (Line 15 x Line $ 1,410,197 $ 1,410,197

17)
19 |Surcharges for excess

consumption of PHA-supplied
utilities (12-month period 7/1/ 05 §
to 6/30/ 06)- wholedollars

Previous editions are obsolete
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20 [Base utilitios expense level
minus surcharges (Line 18
minus Line 19)

21 lutiiities inflation/defiation factor

22 Utilities expense level adjusted
for inflation/deflation - whole
dollars (Line 20 x Line 21)

23 Energy rate incentive

24  |Utilities expense level - whole
dollars (Line 22 + Line 23)

25  |Eligible unit months (from the
original form HUD-52723,
Column B, Line 15 plus Line 17
minus Line 04)

26 |utilities Expense Level - PUM

002 0 0 3 0 7 D

Operating Fund Project Number:

SRR s 1,410,197

¢

(Line 24 + Line 25) S e R e el
Section 10 - Remarks (provide section, part and lihe numbers)
Previous editions are obsolete Page 3 of 7 form HUD-52722
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Operating Fund U.S. Department of Housing and
Calculation of Utilities Expense Level Urban Development

PHA-Owned Rental Housing Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB Approval No. 2577-0029 (exp. 10/31/2008)

Public Reporting Burden for this collection of information is estimated to average .75 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and
completing and reviewing the collection of information. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not required to compiete this form uniess R displays a currently valid OMB colrol number. This information is required
_S.moﬂ_osﬂmf&:.mcm Ioﬁ-..mku.&dou.\ as amended, and by 24 CFR Part 990 HUD regulations. HUD makes payments for the operation and maintenance of low-income housing projects to PHAs. The Operating Fund
the ant of op g subsidy to be paid to PHAs. PHAs provide information on the Project Expensae Level (PEL), Utiitles Expense Level (UEL), Other Formula Expenses (Add-Ons) and Formula income - the major
Operating mE&ooBvo.!nu Iccigggsgggamﬂ..HE).:Q-nnagimag&ﬁﬁafgvﬂgaggggggﬂoﬂggoﬁeg :ch_mo_uma-_,o;ﬂ!m._g
By priations Responces .ooeB!mua:on. The information re d.does not lend itself to ¢
Section 1 - Qa:oqm_ information
1. Name of Public Housing Agency: 2, Funding Period: 3. Type of Submission: 4. Unit Change 5. Frozen 6. Rate
HA of King County Indicator: Rolling Base: Reduction
600 Andover Park West 1M/ 07 123107 [X]originat Incentive:
Seattie, WA 98188 [ JRevision No. [ Yes [X]ves [Clves
7. ACC Number: 8. Operating Fund Project Number: 9. Fiscal Year End: 10. ROFO Code 11. DUNS Number:
(HUD Use Only):
SF-173 <<_> 0o N‘o_o w—o—ﬂ_o D 1231 D 3131 E 6/30 _H_ 9/30 02-024-4976
Line Description Sewerage and Water|Electricity Gas Total
No. i
A B C D E i
Section 2 - Current Consumption Level
01 )Actual consumption (12-month
period 7/1/ 05 to 6/30/ 06 ) 37.637.659
01a |Unit of consumption (e.g., Gallons

gallons, kWh, therms)

Section 3 - Rolling Base Consumption Level

02 |Rolling base year 1-actual
consumption (12-month period 47,226,911
7/1/ 04 _ to 6/30/ 05)
03 |Rolling base year 2-actual
consumption (12-month period 56,910,939
7/1/ 03  06/30/ 04}
04 |Rolling base year 3-actual
consumption (12-month period 55,438,378
7/1 02 10 6/30/ 03 )

05 |Total Consumption during 3-
year rolling base period 159,576,228
(Line 02 + Line 03 + Line 04)

Previous editions are obsolete Page 1 of 7 form HUD-52722 ( 08/2005 )
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Operating Fund Project Number:
w A 0 O0 2 00 3 0 7 D

06  |Average rolling base
067

Consumption (Line 05 + 3) 55.813.06
07  }Actual consumption for new

units
08  |Rolling Base Consumption

(Line 06 + Line 07) 85,813,067

. Section 4 - Base Consumption ]

09  |Base Consumption (Lesser of . . .

Line 01 or Line 08) 37.637.659 .

Section 5 - Utility Consumption Incentive

10 Actual consumption > rolling

base (If Line 01 is greater than ) _ _

Line 08, enter the difference as

positive; if not enter 0)
11 Actual consumption < rolling

base (If Line 01 is less than

Line 08, enter the difference as 18,175,408

positive; if not enter 0)
12 |75%/25% Spilit (Line 10 x 0.25) - - - - -
13 75%425% Split (Line 11 x 0.75) 13,631,556 - - - -

6 - Payable Consumption

T e

14 |Annualization of consumption By
for new units
15 Payable consumption (Sum of
Line 09, Line 12, Line 13 and 51,269,215 -
Line 14)
Section 7 - Actual Utility Costs and Average Rate
16 |Actual utility costs (12-month
period 7/1 \_< 05 A to 6/30/ 06 $ 379,421
17 |Actual average utility rate (Line
oualay cwwm ty rate ( 0.0101 ; - .
Section 8 - Base Utilities and Inflation/Deflation Factor
18  |Base utiliies expense level -
whole dollars (Line 15 x Line $ 517,819 $ 517.819
17)
19 |surcharges for excess
consumption of PHA-supplied
utilities (12-month period 7/1/ 05
to 6/30/ 06 ) - whole dollars
Previous editions are obsolete Page 20f 7
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e LW A0 02 0 0 3 0 7 D

Operating Fund Project Number:

20 Base utilities expense level
minus surcharges (Line 18 $ 517,819
minus Line 19)
21 Jutlities inflation/deflation factor
22 |utilities expense level adjusted
for inflation/deflation - whole
dollars (Line 20 x Line 21)
23  |Energy rate incentive
24 |utilties expense level - whole 570,608
doliars (Line 22 + Line 23) ,
25  |Eligible unit months (from the
original form HUD-52723,
Column B, Line 15 plus Line 17
minus Line 04)
26 |utilities Expense Level - PUM
{Line 24 + Line 25) . B R : S -
Section 10 - Remarks (provide section, part and line numbers)
Previous editions are obsolete Page 3of 7 form HUD-52722
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF) Part 1: Summary

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: WA19P002501-06
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

2006

Federal FY of Grant:

L] Original Annual Statement [ JReserve for Disasters/ Emergencies [ |Revised Annual Statement (revision no:

X Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: 12/31/06

[ IFinal Performance and Evaluation Report

Line No.

Summary by Development Account

Total Estimated Cost

Total Actual Cost

Original Revised

Obligated

Expended

[a—

Total non-CFP Funds

1406 Operations

W

1408 Management Improvements Soft Costs

Management Improvements Hard Costs

1410 Administration

1411 Audit

1415 Liquidated Damages

1430 Fees and Costs

1440 Site Acquisition

Do |Qin|n s

1450 Site Improvement

1460 Dwelling Structures

11

1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable

12

1470 Nondwelling Structures

13

1475 Nondwelling Equipment

14

1485 Demolition

15

1490 Replacement Reserve

16

1492 Moving to Work Demonstration

4,849,613.00 4,849,613.00

687,630.00

306,539.24

17

1495.1 Relocation Costs

18

1499 Development Activities

19

1502 Contingency

Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines.....)

4,849,613.00 4,849,613.00

687,630.00

306,539.24

Amount of line XX Related to LBP Activities

Amount of line XX Related to Section 504 compliance

Amount of line XX Related to Security —Soft Costs

Amount of Line XX related to Security-- Hard Costs

Amount of line XX Related to Energy Conservation
Measures

Collateralization Expenses or Debt Service

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

Capital Fund Program Tables Page 1





Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF) Part 1: Summary

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: WA19P002501-05
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2005

[] Original Annual Statement [ |Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies [ |Revised Annual Statement (revision no:

X Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: 12/31/06

[]Final Performance and Evaluation Report

Line No.

Summary by Development Account

Total Estimated Cost

Total Actual Cost

Original Revised

Obligated

Expended

Total non-CFP Funds

1406 Operations

1408 Management Improvements Soft Costs

Management Improvements Hard Costs

1410 Administration

1411 Audit

1415 Liquidated Damages

1430 Fees and Costs

1440 Site Acquisition

1450 Site Improvement

1460 Dwelling Structures

1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable

1470 Nondwelling Structures

1475 Nondwelling Equipment

1485 Demolition

1490 Replacement Reserve

1492 Moving to Work Demonstration

6,118.426.00 6,118.426.00

5,538,988.00

4,899,369.00

1495.1 Relocation Costs

1499 Development Activities

1502 Contingency

Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines.....)

6,118.426.00 6,118.426.00

5,538,988.00

4,899,369.00

Amount of line XX Related to LBP Activities

Amount of line XX Related to Section 504 compliance

Amount of line XX Related to Security ~Soft Costs

Amount of Line XX related to Security-- Hard Costs

Amount of line XX Related to Energy Conservation
Measures

Collateralization Expenses or Debt Service

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

Capital Fund Program Tables Page 1





Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF) Part 1: Summary

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant:
Capital Fund Program Grant No: WA19P002501-04 2004
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:
] Original Annual Statement [_|Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies [ _|Revised Annual Statement (revision no:
X Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: 12/31/06 [ IFinal Performance and Evaluation Report
Line No. | Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Original Revised Obligated Expended
1 Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations
3 1408 Management [mprovements Soft Costs
Management Improvements Hard Costs

4 1410 Administration
5 1411 Audit
6 1415 Liquidated Damages
7 1430 Fees and Costs
8 1440 Site Acquisition
9 1450 Site Improvement
10 1460 Dwelling Structures
11 1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable
12 1470 Nondwelling Structures
13 1475 Nondwelling Equipment
14 1485 Demolition
15 1490 Replacement Reserve
16 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration 6,379,738.00 6,379,738.00 6,379,738.00 5,957,726.00
17 1495.1 Relocation Costs
18 1499 Development Activities
19 1502 Contingency

Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines.....) 6,379,738.00 6,379,738.00 6,379,738.00 5,957,726.00

Amount of line XX Related to LBP Activities

Amount of line XX Related to Section 504 compliance

Amount of line XX Related to Security —Soft Costs

Amount of Line XX related to Security-- Hard Costs

Amount of line XX Related to Energy Conservation

Measures

Collateralization Expenses or Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Capital Fund Program Tables Page 1





Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF) Part 1: Summary

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number

Capital Fund Program Grant No: WA19P002502-03 SET ASIDE GRANT

Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2003

[ Original Annual Statement [ |Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies [ JRevised Annual Statement (revision no: )

X _Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending 12-31-06

[ IFinal Performance and Evaluation Report

Line No.

Summary by Development Account

Total Estimated Cost

Total Actual Cost

Original Revised

Obligated

Expended

Total non-CFP Funds

1406 Operations

(9]

1408 Management Improvements Soft Costs

Management Improvements Hard Costs

1410 Administration

1411 Audit

1415 Liquidated Damages

1430 Fees and Costs

RN s

1440 Site Acquisition

O

1450 Site Improvement

1460 Dwelling Structures

11

1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable

12

1470 Nondwelling Structures

13

1475 Nondwelling Equipment

14

1485 Demolition

15

1490 Replacement Reserve

16

1492 Moving to Work Demonstration

1,102,828.00 1,102,828.00

1,102

,828.00

17

1495.1 Relocation Costs

18

1499 Development Activities

19

1502 Contingency

Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines.....)

1,102,828.00 1,102,828.00

1,102,828.00

Amount of line XX Related to LBP Activities

Amount of line XX Related to Section 504 compliance

Amount of line XX Related to Security —Soft Costs

Amount of Line XX related to Security-- Hard Costs

Amount of line XX Related to Energy Conservation
Measures

Collateralization Expenses or Debt Service

Capital Fund Program Tables Page 1

1,102,828.00
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Pro

ram Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF) Part 1: Summary

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: WA19P002501-03
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2003

_H_ Original Annual Statement _H_wmmn.do for Disasters/ Emergencies [ JRevised Annual Statement (revision no: )

X _Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: 12/31/06

[ IFinal Performance and Evaluation Report

Line No.

Summary by Development Account

Total Estimated Cost

Total Actual Cost

Original Revised

Obligated

Expended

Total non-CFP Funds

1406 Operations

W

1408 Management Improvements Soft Costs

Management Improvements Hard Costs

1410 Administration

1411 Audit

1415 Liquidated Damages

1430 Fees and Costs

1440 Site Acquisition

DR[|V ||

1450 Site Improvement

1460 Dwelling Structures

11

1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable

12

1470 Nondwelling Structures

13

1475 Nondwelling Equipment

14

1485 Demolition

15

1490 Replacement Reserve

16

1492 Moving to Work Demonstration

5,533,626.00 5,533,626.00

5,533,626.00

5,533,626.00

17

1495.1 Relocation Costs

18

1499 Development Activities

19

1502 Contingency

Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines.....)

5,533,626.00 5,533,626.00

5,533,626.00

5,533,626.00

Amount of line XX Related to LBP Activities

Amount of line XX Related to Section 504 compliance

Amount of line XX Related to Security —Soft Costs

Amount of Line XX related to Security-- Hard Costs

Amount of line XX Related to Energy Conservation
Measures

Collateralization Expenses or Debt Service

Capital Fund Program Tables Page 1





Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF) Part 1: Summary

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant:
Capital Fund Program Grant No: WA19P002501-02 2002
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:
DO&%:». Annual Statement [_|Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies [ |Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
X Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: 12/31/06 [ |Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line | Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
No.
Original Revised Obligated Expended
1 Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations 60,976.73 60,976.73 60,976.73 60,976.73
3 1408 Management Improvements Soft Costs 508,138.83 508,138.83 508,138.83 508,138.83
Management Improvements Hard Costs
4 1410 Administration 650,045.89 650,045.89 650,045.89 650,045.89
5 1411 Audit
6 1415 Liquidated Damages
7 1430 Fees and Costs 346,394.93 346,394.93 346,394.93 346,394.93
8 1440 Site Acquisition
9 1450 Site Improvement 1,326,675.83 1,326,675.83 1,326,675.83 1,326,675.83
10 1460 Dwelling Structures 3,158,407.02 3,158,407.02 3,158,407.02 3,158,407.02
11 1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable 47,096.00 47,096.00 47,096.00 47,096.00
12 1470 Nondwelling Structures 300,406.13 300,406.13 300,406.13 300,406.13
13 1475 Nondwelling Equipment 257,829.64 257,829.64 257,829.64 257,829.64
14 1485 Demolition
15 1490 Replacement Reserve
16 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration
17 1495.1 Relocation Costs 69,509.92 69,509.92 69,509.92 69,509.92
18 1499 Development Activities
19 1502 Contingency 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines.....) 6,725,480.00 6,725,480.00 6,725,480.00 6,725,480.00
Amount of line XX Related to LBP Activities
Amount of line XX Related to Section 504 compliance 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000
Amount of line XX Related to Security —Soft Costs 245,000 245,000 245,000 245,000
Amount of Line XX related to Security-- Hard Costs
Amount of line XX Related to Energy Conservation 490,000 490,000 490,000 490,000
Measures
Collateralization Expenses or Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Capital Fund Program Tables Page 1






Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)

Part II: Supporting Pages

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: WA19P002501-02
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant: 2002

Development General Description of Major Work Dev. Qty Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Categories Acct
Name/HA-Wide No.
Activities
Original Estimate | Revised Obligated Expended
Estimate
WA2-05 a) Electrical-Upgrades, Smoke detectors, | 1460 165 10,026.19 10,026.19 10,026.19 10,026.19 | Phase [ —Exterior,
Park Lake IT Hazmat Abatement, Lights completed
Drywall, Painting, and other work to
complete installation.
WA 2-05 Total 10,026.19 10,026.19 10,026.19 10,026.19
WA2-09 a) Emergency Furnace Replacement 1460 14 23,988.00 23,988.00 23,988.00 23,988.00
Valli Kee
WAZ2-09 Total 23,988.00 23,988.00 23,988.00 23,988.00
WA2-16 p) Complete Interior Fire, Life Safety 1460 70 786,974.51 786,974.51 786,974.51 786,974.51
Northridge [ Upgrades, including Fire Alarm &
Fire Sprinklers
b) Roofing 1460 70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
£) Windows and Doors 1460 70 4,774.30 4,774.30 4,774.30 4,774.30
WA2-16 Total 791,748.81 791,748.81 791,748.81 791,748.81
WA2-17 a) Roofing/Structural/Upgrades 1460 110 740,964.78 740,964.78 740,964.78 740,964.78
Ballinger b) Underground Utilities 1450 5,519.79 5,519.79 5,519.79 5,519.79
Homes
WA2-17 Total 746,484.57 746,484.57 746,484.57 746,484.57

Capital Fund Program Tables Page 2






Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)

Part II: Supporting Pages

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number

Capital Fund Program Grant No: WA 19P002501-02
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant: 2002

Development General Description of Major Work Dev. Qty Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Categories Acct
Name/HA-Wide No.
Activities
Original Estimate | Revised Obligated Expended
Estimate
WA2-21 a) Fire/Life Safety Upgrades including 1460 80 810,451.18 810,451.18 810,451.18 810,451.18 | Project Funding
Casa Juanita Fire Alarm, Fire Sprinklers, New Split CFP02 &
Domestic Water Lines; New Heating 03
and Indoor Air Quality Improvements;
Complete Corridor & Lobby Remodel;
New Automatic Entry Doors; Window
Coverings; Signage & Complete
Community Room Remodel.
WA2-21 Total 810,451.18 810,451.18 810,451.18 810,451.18
WA2-22 p) Fire/Life Safety Upgrades including 1460 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | Deferred to
Yardley Arms Fire Alarm, Fire Sprinklers, New future CFP 04
Domestic Water Lines; New Heating funding
System & Indoor Air Quality
Improvements; Complete Corridor &
Lobby Remodel; New Automatic
Entry Doors; Window Coverings;
Signage & Complete Community
Room Remodel.
WA2-22 Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
WA2-26 )  Complete Interior Unit Remodel 1460 1 0.00 2,282.71 2,282.71 2,282.71
Burndale vv Emergency Furnace Replacement 1460 50 102,232.71 99,950.00 99,950.00 99,950.00
Homes
WA2-26 Total 102,232.71 102,232.71 102,232.71 102,232.71
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part II: Supporting Pages

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: WA19P002501-02
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant: 2002

Development General Description of Major Work Dev. Qty Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Categories Acct
Name/HA-Wide No.
Activities
Original Estimate | Revised Obligated Expended
Estimate
WA2-29 a) Complete Interior Fire, Life Safety 1460 70 107,707.24 107,707.24 107,707.24 107,707.24 | Continuation of
Northridge II Upgrades, including Fire Alarm & CFP 01 Project
fire Sprinklers
b) Windows and Doors 1460 70 50,211.86 50,211.86 50,211.86 50,211.86
¢) Roofing 1460 70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
WA2-29 Total 157,919.10 157,919.10 157,919.10 157,919.10
WA2-34 a) Communuity Building Remodel & 1470 | 52,171.35 52,171.35 52,171.35 52,171.35 | Stream
Springwood Family Center Building Construction Mitigation,
including Site Work, Paving/Parking; Mail box
Stream Mitigation; Storm Drainage; replacement,
Site Lighting. bio-swale-work
compl.eted.
WA2-34 Total 52,171.35 52,171.35 52,171.35 52,171.35
WA2-35 a) Maintenance Shop (New 1470 1 72,122.65 72,122.65 72,122.65 72,122.65
Cascade Construction)
b) Underground Utilities 1450 | 234,996.94 234,996.94 234,996.94 234,996.94
c) Storage Units 1460 108 339,671.53 339,671.53 339,671.53 339,671.53
d) Remodel Community Bldg. 1470 1 176,112.13 176,112.13 176,112.13 176,112.13
WA2-35 Total 822,903.25 822,903.25 822,903.25 822,903.25
WA2-39 a) Surface Water Management; 1450 1 834,825.72 834,825.72 834,825.72 834,825.72 | Project Funding
College Place Underground Utilities/Paving/ Split CFP 01-02
Curbs/ Gutters Structural Upgrades
b) Complete Unit Interior Remodel. 1460 5 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | Deferred
WA2-39 Total 834,825.72 834,825.72 834,825.72 834,825.72

Capital Fund Program Tables Page 4






Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)

Part II: Supporting Pages

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: WA19P002501-02
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant: 2002

Development General Description of Major Work Dev. Qty Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Categories Acct
Name/HA-Wide No.
Activities
Original Estimate | Revised Obligated Expended
Estimate
WA2-46 a) Emergency Furnace Replacement 1460 8 14,668.00 14,668.00 14,668.00 14,668.00 | Completed
Cedarwood
WA2-46 Total 14,668.00 14,668.00 14,668.00 14,668.00
WA2-55 a) Roofing, Gutters, Downspouts, 1460 2 35,678.48 35,678.48 35,678.48 35,678.48 | Completed
Campus Court Exterior Upgrades
WAZ2-55 Total 35,678.48 35,678.48 35,678.48 35,678.48
WA2-62 a) Surface Water Management; Paving; | 1450 1 251,333.38 251,333.38 251,333.38 251,333.38 | Completed
Shoreham Curbs; Sidewalks
WA2-62 Total 251,333.38 251,333.38 251,333.38 251,333.38
WA2-12 a) Complete Unit Interior Remodel 1460 50 2,765.90 2,765.90 2,765.90 2,765.90
Firwood Circle | b) Emergency Furnace Replacement 1460 50 103,808.00 103,808.00 103,808.00 103,808.00 | Completed
WA2-12 Total 106,573.90 106,573.90 106,573.90 106,573.90
PHA Wide a) Community Buildings/Rooms 1470 Various 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | Deferred
Remodels (Ballinger & Burndale)
Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PHA Wide a) Appliances 1465 Various 47,096.00 47,096.00 47,096.00 47,096.00
Total 47,096.00 47,096.00 47,096.00 47,096.00
Operations 1406 Various 60,976.73 60,976.73 60,976.73 60,976.73
Total 60,976.73 60,976.73 60,976.73 60,976.73
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)

Part II: Supporting Pages

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: WA 19P002501-02
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant: 2002

Development General Description of Major Work Dev. Qty Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Categories Acct
Name/HA-Wide No.
Activities
Original Estimate | Revised Obligated Expended
Estimate

PHA Wide MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENTS 1408
Resident services Initiatives Coordinator | 1408 3 17,111.02 17,111.02 17,111.02 17,111.02
Boys & Girls club Coordinating Services | 1408 Various 51,499.00 51,499.00 51,499.00 51,499.00
Young’s Lake YMCA 1408 1 42,000.00 42,000.00 42,000.00 42,000.00
Resident Council Activities 1408 Various 9,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00
Security Police Patrols 1408 1 29,910.00 29,910.00 29,910.00 29,910.00
Main System Software — Purchase & 1408 1 188,843.11 188,843.11 188,843.11 188,843.11
Install
Safety Officer-Safety Program 1408 1 21,319.22 21,319.22 21,319.22 21,319.22
Development, Implementation & Train.
Training C & M 1408 Various 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
IS Staft Support for Computer Software | 1408 Various 81,827.18 81,827.18 81,82718 81,82718
Training
Construction Dept. Staff-Comprehensive | 1408 6 41,376.00 41,376.00 41,376.00 41,376.00
Needs Assessments
Management Improvement Studies 1408 Various 19,973.30 19,973.30 19,973.30 19,973.30
Translations 1408 Various 30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00
Develop Site Based Marketing Tools 1408 1 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Access Telephone Tracking Training 1408 1 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00
Management Improvement Total 508,183.83 508,183.83 508,183.83 508,183.83

PHA WIDE ADMINISTRATION 1410
Advertising 1410 Various 3,212.89 3,212.89 3,212.89 3,212.89
Administrative Salaries 1410 15 496,685.00 496,685.00 496,685.00 496,685.00
Administrative Benefits 1410 15 150,148.00 150,148.00 150,148.00 150,148.00

PHA wide Administration Total 650,045.89 650,045.89 650,045.89 650,045.89
Capital Fund Program Tables Page 6






Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)

Part II: Supporting Pages

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: WA19P002501-02
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant: 2002

Development General Description of Major Work Dev. Qty Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Categories Acct
Name/HA-Wide No.
Activities
Original Estimate | Revised Obligated Expended
Estimate
PHA WIDE PLANNING 1430
Clerk of the Works 1430 Various 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
A & E Professional Services 1430 Various 303,200.48 303,200.48 303,200.48 303,200.48
Building Conditions Survey 1430 Various 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Safety/Hazmat Consultants 1430 Various 765.00 765.00 765.00 765.00
Building Permit Fees 1430 Various 35,353.54 35,353.54 35,353.54 35,353.54
Sundry/Planning Costs 1430 Various 7,075.91 7,075.91 7,07591 7,075.91
PHA Wide Planning Total 346,394.93 346,394.93 346,394.93 346,394.93
PHA WIDE NON-DWELLING EQUIPMENT 1475
Computer Hardware — Purchase & Install | 1475 1 152,923.21 152,923.21 152,923.21 152,923.21
Vehicle C & M 1475 2 15,176.27 15,176.27 15,176.27 15,176.27
Auxiliary emergency Power System at 1475 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CoO
Furnishings — Senior Buildings 1475 various 89,730.16 89,730.16 89,730.16 89,730.16
PHA Wide Non-Dwelling Equip Total 257,829.64 257,829.64 257,829.64 257,829.64
PHA WIDE RELOCATION 1495
Relocation Coordinator 1495 1 38,824.00 38,824.00 38,824.00 38,824.00
Relocation Costs 1495 Various 30,685.00 30,685.00 30,685.00 30,685.00
PHA Wide Relocation Total 69,509.00 69,509.00 69,509.00 69,509.00
PHA WIDE CONTINGENCY 1502
Contingency 1502 Various 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PHA WIDE Contingency Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
GRAND TOTAL 6,725,480.00 6,725,480.00 | 6,725,480.00 6,725,480.00
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part III: Implementation Schedule

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number

Capital Fund Program No: WA19P002501-02

Federal FY of Grant: 2002

Replacement Housing Factor No:
Development Number All Fund Obligated All Funds Expended Reasons for Revised Target Dates
Name/HA-Wide (Quarter Ending Date) (Quarter Ending Date)
Activities
Original Revised Actual Original Revised Actual
WA2-05 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Park Lake II
WA2-16 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Northridge I
WA2-17 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Ballinger Homes
WA2-21 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Casa Juanita
WA2-22 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Yardley Arms
WA2-26 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Burndale
WA2-29 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Northridge II
WA2-34 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Springwood
WA2-35 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Cascade Homes
WA2-39 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
College Place
WA2-55 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Campus Cout
WA2-62 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Shoreham
WA2-12 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Firwood Circle
PHA Wide 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Management
Improvements

Capital Fund Program Tables Page 8






Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part III: Implementation Schedule

PHA Name: King County Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program No: WA19P002501-02
Replacement Housing Factor No:

Federal FY of Grant: 2002

Development Number All Fund Obligated All Funds Expended Reasons for Revised Target Dates
Name/HA-Wide (Quarter Ending Date) (Quarter Ending Date)
Activities
Original Revised Actual Original Revised Actual
PHA Wide 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Administration
PHA Wide 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Planning
PHA Wide 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Non-Dwelling
Equipment
PHA Wide 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Relocation
PHA Wide 3/31/04 6/30/04 N/A 9/30/05 6/30/06 N/A
Contingency

Capital Fund Program Tables Page 9
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_1239450944/Board Resolution - FY 2008 MTW Plan.pdf
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
RESOLUTION NO. 5097

APPROVING THE MAKING TRANSITION WORK ANNUAL PLAN
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008

WHEREAS, the King County Housing Authority (KCHA) participates in the
Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) Moving to Work Demonstration
Program (MTW) under a 2003 MTW Agreement with HUD; and

WHEREAS, KCHA changed the name of the program to Making Transition Work to
better reflect the Authority’s intent and the broader purpose of the Demonstration; and

WHEREAS, the MTW Agreement authorizes KCHA to design and test new ways of

providing housing assistance and needed services to low-income households; and

WHEREAS, the MTW Agreement requires the Authority to develop an MTW Annual
Plan (the Plan) that includes the Authority’s budget and outlines the MTW initiatives to be

pursued during the year; and

WHEREAS, staff has developed the required MTW Annual Plan covering Fiscal Year
2008 (July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008) in a manner that is responsive to and complies with
the MTW Agreement requirements; and

WHEREAS, in developing the FY 2008 Annual Plan, KCHA provided opportunity for
public input regarding the Plan components, including coordination with the KCHA Resident
Advisory Committees, community stakeholders and a public hearing held on April 5, 2007 to

receive comment on the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Plan envisions a number of significant changes in the operational
policies of the Section 8 and Public Housing Programs which are consistent with the goals of

the MTW Demonstration and KCHA’s mission; and





WHEREAS, a Board Resolution approving the Plan and certifying that the Plan

complies with MTW Plan requirements must be included when it is submitted to HUD.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING:

1. The Board of Commissioners hereby approves the MTW Plan attached to this resolution
and the accompanying memorandum (“Fiscal Year 2008 Annual Plan”) for
implementation and submission to the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

2. The Board of Commissioners certifies that the Public Hearing Requirement has been
met and authorizes the Chair of the Board to execute the Attached HUD Certification of
Compliance with MTW Plan Requirements and Related Regulations.

‘ ADOPTED AT A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
THIS 16™ DAY OF APRIL 2007.

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
F KING, WASHINGTON

\ PETER ORSER, Chair
Board of Commissioners

[~

STEPHEN NORMAN
Secretafy-Treasurer
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PHA Certifications of Compliance with MTW Plan Requirements
And Related Regulations
Board Resolution to Accompany the MTW Plan

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the King County Housing Authority
(KCHA) listed below, as its Chair, I approve the submission of the Annual MTW Plan for the
KCHA fiscal year beginning July 1, 2007 (FY 2008), hereinafter referred to as the Plan of which
this document is a part and make the following certifications and agreements with the T
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in connection with the submission of
the Plan and implementation thereof:

1. The KCHA held a public hearing regarding the Plan on April 5%, 2007.

2. The KCHA will carry out the Plan in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, the Fair Housing Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and Title II of
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

3. As the 2008 Plan includes the development of a site-based waiting list policy for all of its

developments:
»  KCHA will regularly submit required data to HUD in an accurate and complete, and
timely manner.

» The site-based waiting list system provides full disclosure to each applicant in the
selection of the development in which to reside, including basic information about the
available sites and an estimate of the period of time the applicant would likely have to
wait to be admitted to units of different types and sizes at each site.

» Adoption of site-based waiting lists will not violate any court order or settlement
agreement or be inconsistent with a pending complaint brought by HUD.

= KCHA will take reasonable measures to assure that such waiting list is consistent
with affirmatively furthering Fair Housing objectives.

» KCHA will provide for review of its site-based waiting list policy to determine if it is
consistent with civil rights laws and certifications, as specified in 24 CFR part 903.7.

4. The KCHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age
pursuant to the Age Discrimination Act of 1975.

5. The KCHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41,
Policies and Procedures for the Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for
Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped.

6. The KCHA will comply with the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban
Development Act of 1968, Employment Opportunities for Low- or Very-Low Income
Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24 CFR Part 135.

7. The KCHA has submitted with the Plan a certification with regard to a drug-free
workplace required by CFR Part 24, Subpart F.





10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The KCHA has submitted with the Plan a certification with regard to compliance with
restrictions on lobbying required by 24 CFR Part 87, together with disclosure forms if
required by this Part, and with restrictions on payments to influence Federal Transactions,
in accordance with the Byrd Amendment and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part
24.

The KCHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and
implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable. '

The KCHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and
women’s business enterprises under 24 CFR 4.105(a).

The KCHA will provide HUD or the responsible entity any documentation that the
Department needs to carry out its review under National Environmental Policy Act and
other related authorities. In accordance with 24 CFR Part 58.

With respect to public housing the KCHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or HUD
determined wage rate requirements under section 12 of the United States Housing Act of
1937 and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

The KCHA will keep records in accordance with 24 CFR 85.20 and facilitate an
effective audit to determine compliance with program requirements.

The KCHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act and 24
CFR Part 35.

The KCHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of OMB Circular
No. A-87 (cost Principals for State and Local and Indian Tribal Governments) and 24

CFR Part 85 (Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to
State, Local and Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.).

The KCHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Plan in a manner
consistent with its Plan and the MTW Agreement executed by the KCHA and HUD and
will utilize funds made available under the Capital Fund Operating Fund and Section 8
tenant-based assistance only for activities that are allowable under applicable regulations
as modified by the MTW Agreement and included in its Plan.

King County Houstmy Authority WA-002

PHAT PHA number

KCHA Board Chair

/Dl
Date





Certification for
a Drug-Free Workplace

U.S. Department of Housling
and Urban Development

Applicant Name
King County Housing Authority

Program/Activity Recelving Federal Grant Funding

Public Housing Agency Plan / Public Housing Capital Fund

Acting on behalf of the above named Applicant as its Authorized Official, I make the following certifications and agreements to
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regarding the sites listed below:

I certify that the above named Applicant will or will continue
to provide a drug-free workplace by:

a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the un-
lawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use
of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Applicant's work-
place and specifying the actions that will be taken against
employees for violation of such prohibition.

b. Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to
inform employees ---

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free
workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and
employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees
for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

¢. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged
in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement
required by paragraph a.;

d. Notifying the employee in the statement required by para-
graph a. that, as a condition of employment under the grant, the
employee will ---

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her convic-
tion for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the
workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

e. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days
after receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2) from an em-
ployee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, includ-
ing position title, to every grant officer or other designee on
whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federalagency has designated a central point for the
receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification
number(s) of each affected grant;

f. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar
days of receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2), with respect
to any employee who is so convicted ---

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an
employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the
requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfacto-
rily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program ap-
proved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

g. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-
free workplace through implementation of paragraphs a. thru f,

2, Sites for Work Performance. The Applicant shall list (on separate pages) the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the
HUD funding of the program/activity shown above: Place of Performance shall include the street address, city, county, State, and zip code.
Identify each sheet with the Applicant name and address and the program/activity receiving grant funding.)

Check here l:] if there are workplaces on file that are not identified on the attached sheets.

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may resuit in criminal and/or civil penaities.

(18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010,1012; 31U.S.C. 3729, 3802)
Name of Authorized Official

Title
Executive Director

Stephen Norman / ]
Signature / / L-\
X

Date
dfrefs 7
form HUD-50070 (3/98)

ref. Handbooks 7417.1,7475.13,7485.1 & .3





Certification of Payments
to Influence Federal Transactions

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Applicant Name
King County Housing Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding
Public Housing Agency Plan / Public Housing Capital Fund

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connec-
tion with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its
instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this
certification be included in the award documents for all subawards
at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered
into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title
31, US. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.

Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.

(18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.8.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official

Stephen Norman

Title

Executive Director

Signature

Date (mm/dd/yyyy)

“fre/07

Previous edition is obsol ’te

form HUD 50071 (3/98)
ref. Handboooks 7417.1, 7475.13,7485.1, & 7485.3





DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES
Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352

Approved by OMB
0348-0046

(See reverse for public burden disclosure.)

1. Type of Federal Action:
E’ a. contract
b. grant
c. cooperative agreement
d. loan
e. loan guarantee
f. loan insurance

2. Status of Federal Action:

a. bid/offer/application

b. initial award
c. pqst-award

3. Report Type:
a. initial filing

b. material change
For Material Change Only:
year quarter
date of last report

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:
E Prime ] subawardee
Tier , ifknown:

Congressional District, if known:

5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name
and Address of Prime:

._Congressional District, if known:

6. Federal Department/Agency:

7. Federal Program Name/Description:

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development MTW Annual Plan

CFDA Number, if applicable:

9. Award Amount, if known:
$

8. Federal Action Number, /f known:

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant
(ifindividual, last name, first name, Ml):

b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if
different from No. 10a)
(last name, first name, MI):

11 Information requested through this form is suthorized by title 31 U.S.C. section
" 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact
upon which reliance was placed by the tler above when this transaction was made

or into. This discl is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352, This

Signature:

Print Name: _Stephen N/rman
Title: Executive Ditec%‘

Telephone No.: 20}{574-‘1“1'9‘? 1190 Date: ié L/677

information will be reported to the Congress semi-annually and will be avallable for
public inspection. Any person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less that $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Authorized for Local Reproduction
Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97)






INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal
action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreementto make
paymentto any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employeeof any agency, 8 Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employeeof a Member of Congress in connectionwith a covered Federal action. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material
change report. Refer to the Implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action.
2. ldentify the status of the covered Federal action.

3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a followup report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter
the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal
action.

4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the appropriate classification
of the reporting entity that designatesif it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee
of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants.

5. If the organizationfiling the report in item 4 checks "Subawardes,” then enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the prime Federal
recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.

6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizationalievel below agency name, if known. For
example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.

7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments.

8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number;

Invitation for Bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposa! control number
assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-80-001."

9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan
commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 engaged by the reporting
entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action.

(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name, and
Middle initial (MI).

11. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his’her name, title, and telephone number.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of Information unless it displays a valid OMB Contro}
Number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is OMB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is
estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Managementand Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington,
DC 20503.
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